
 

Regular Meeting of the: 

 

Pampa City Commission 
January 24, 2022 

4:00 p.m. 
 
 
City of Pampa 
201 W. Kingsmill 
P.O. Box 2499 
Pampa, Texas 79066-2499 
Phone: 806-669-5750 
Fax: 806-669-5767  









CITY OF PAMPA 
AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET 

 
 

 
  PRESENTATION 

ITEM/PROJECT:   CODE ENFORCEMENT SURVEY 

MEETING DATE:  January 24, 2022 

DESCRIPTION  Code Enforcement Survey 

STAFF CONTACT:  Gary Turley, Public Works Director 
 

 
 
 



CITY OF PAMPA 
AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET 

 
 

 
  REPORT 

ITEM/PROJECT:   2021 ANNUAL REPORT- POLICE DEPARTMENT 

MEETING DATE:  January 24, 2022 

   
STAFF CONTACT:  Lance Richburg, Chief of Police 

BACKGROUND/ 
ADDITIONAL 
INFORMATION: 

 Copy of Annual Reports Attached 

   

   
   
   

 



PAMPA POLICE DEPARTMENT 

2021 ANNUAL REPORT 

 

 
 

Lance Richburg 

Chief of Police 



 

LAW ENFORCEMENT CODE OF ETHICS 

 
AS A LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER, my fundamental duty is to serve the 
community; to safeguard lives and property; to protect the innocent against 
deception, the weak against oppression or intimidation, and the peaceful against 
violence or disorder; and to respect the constitutional rights of all persons to 
liberty, equality, and justice. 

I WILL keep my private life unsullied as an example to all and will conduct myself 
in a manner that does not bring discredit to me or to my agency. I will maintain 
courageous calm in the face of danger, scorn or ridicule; develop self-restraint; 
and be constantly mindful of the welfare of others. Honest in thought and deed in 
both my personal and official life. I will be exemplary in obeying the laws of the 
land and the regulations of my department. Whatever I see or hear of a 
confidential nature or that is confided to me in my official capacity will be kept 
ever secret unless revelation is necessary in the performance of my duty. 

I WILL never act officiously or permit personal feeling, prejudices, political 
beliefs, aspirations, animosities or friendships to influence my decisions. With no 
compromise for crime and with relentless prosecution of criminals, I will enforce 
the law courteously and appropriately without fear or favor, malice or ill will, 
never employing unnecessary force or violence and never accepting gratuities.  

I RECOGNIZE the badge of my office as a symbol of public faith, and I accept it as 
a public trust to be held so long as I am true to the ethics of the police service. I 
will never engage in acts of corruption or bribery, nor will I condone such acts by 
other police officers. I will cooperate with all legally authorized agencies and their 
representatives in the pursuit of justice. 

I KNOW that I alone am responsible for my own standard of professional 
performance and will take every reasonable opportunity to enhance and improve 
my level of knowledge and competence.   

I WILL constantly strive to achieve these objectives and ideals, dedicating myself 
before God to my chosen profession…Law Enforcement.  
 

 



 

PAMPA POLICE 

DEPARTMENT 

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 

 
The 2021 Pampa Police Department Annual Report was published by the 
Administrative/Support Services Division of the Police Department.  The 
information contained within is provided to give readers an accurate as possible 
depiction of the Pampa Police Department in the year 2021.  Changes in case 
statuses and dispositions occur regularly.  These changes can occur days, 
months, and even years after an initial report is taken.  Such changes can affect 
the accuracy of this report beyond its published date. 

 

 

 

 

Lieutenant Brian Massey 

Administrative/Support Services Division Commander 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



DEPARTMENT PERSONEL 

 

The Pampa Police Department is authorized of a total of 28 sworn law enforcement personnel, 
along with 13 civilian personnel.  Also, under the direction of the Chief of Police are a total of 10 
Animal Services personnel, including the Animal Services Supervisor.  The department is directed 
by Chief of Police Lance Richburg. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Pampa Police Department is divided into 4 divisions, with a command level supervisor 
responsible for leading each division.  The department also has several specialized units, which 
also fall under the command of one of the command staff members listed below.  For the 2021 
calendar year, the divisions and their respective command staff were as follows: 

 

Chief of Police-      Lance Richburg 

Assistant Chief of Police-  Kenneth Hopson 

 

Patrol Division    Lieutenant Rick Armstrong 

Criminal Investigation Division Lieutenant Tobie Bias 

Admin/Support Services Division Lieutenant Brian Massey 

Communications Division  Communications Supervisor Debbie McDonald 

 

Animal Services   Animal Services Supervisor Monty Montgomery 

 The chart below shows the organizational structure of the department:  



 



Department-Wide Stats 

The following are department-wide statistics for the Pampa Police Department during the 2021 
calendar year.  The statistics are further dissected into Division-wide numbers where 
appropriate/applicable in the “Division” pages to follow.  For the 2021 year the department made 
630 arrests, generated a total of 4,768 initial and supplemental reports, investigated 231 traffic 
crashes, and issued a total of 3,824 citations and warnings.  In addition, the department 
responded to or initiated a total of 17,596 calls for service. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

287

205 190

231

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Dept-wide Traffic Collisions

Traffic Crashes

10 Yr. Avg 20192 20202 2021

3787

4839

2996

4960

2730
3591

1641
22281949 1875

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

Citations Warnings

Total Citations/Warnings

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

1086

1300

999

682 630

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Dept. Total Arrests

5223 5018 5334

4270
4768

Dept. Total Reports 
Generated

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

19961

17116
17596

15000

16000

17000

18000

19000

20000

21000

Calls for Service

10 Yr Avg. 2020 2021



 

Patrol Division 

 

Rick Armstrong, Patrol Division Lieutenant 

 

 

The patrol division, with 18 personnel, is the largest division within the Police Department.  It is 
comprised of 8 Patrol Officers, 4 Patrol Corporals, 4 Patrol Sergeants, a School Resource Officer, 
and the Patrol Lieutenant.  This division is overseen by Lieutenant Rick Armstrong. 

Patrol is the division most commonly seen and noted by the public as they are responsible for 
responding to all emergency and non-emergency calls for police service within the city.  When not 
responding to calls, patrol officers are trained and encouraged to be proactive, performing roving 
and directed patrols of our streets and neighborhoods.  In addition, they perform traffic 
enforcement and detect and investigate suspicious persons or circumstances.  They also 
participate in various community related events.   

For patrol assignments, the city is divided into 3 zones, known as “beats”.  During the 2019 year, 
the Patrol Division switched to 12 hour rotating shifts from the traditional 8-hour shift that they 
had worked for numerous years.  This resulted in a slight restructuring of the Patrol Division.  The 
Division now operates with four shifts of four personnel, who work on a rotating 12-hour work 
schedule.  Each shift is comprised of a Sergeant, Corporal, and 2 Patrol Officers.   

In agreement and cooperation with the Pampa Independent School District, the Patrol Division 
also has one School Resource Officer stationed throughout the district.  The SRO is responsible 
for investigating and mitigating all criminal matters that occur on Pampa ISD property.  In 
addition, the SRO performs and assists with teaching various crime prevention and awareness 
initiatives and alcohol and substance abuse programs throughout the school year.  The SRO also 
strives to build strong, professional relationships with the students and staff of PISD.   

During 2021 the patrol division responded to a total of 16,107 calls for service or officer-initiated 
activities.  That number was up slightly from 15,724 in 2020.  During the year, the division made 
550 arrests, completed 1,886 initial incident reports, performed a total of 184 traffic collision 
investigations, and issued a total of 3,228 traffic citations and warnings.  The charts below show 
those numbers compared to their historical data points.   

 

 

 

 

 

21566 22429
20156

15724 16107

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

Calls for Service

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

962 998
882

616
550

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Patrol Division Arrests

140
152

120
134

184

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Patrol Division Crash 
Investigations

6345 6667

5029

3380 3228

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Patrol Division Citations 
and Warnings

0:00 1:12 2:24 3:36 4:48

Routine Calls

Priority Calls

Routine Calls Priority Calls
2021 4:23 3:51
2020 4:34 3:41
2019 4:28 3:47

Response Time
Time in shown as Min:Sec

2021

2020

2019



 

Traffic Unit 

 

Kenneth Hopson, Assistant Chief 

 

The Traffic Unit of the Pampa Police Department, also known as the Motors Unit, was formed in 
May of 2016 and is under the command of Assistant Chief Hopson.  The Traffic Unit’s duties 
include responding to and investigating traffic collisions, traffic law enforcement, and parade and 
funeral escorts.  This unit was created in part to reduce the number of motor vehicle crashes 
through increased enforcement of traffic laws.  In addition, the traffic unit was created to reduce 
the workload of the patrol division by removing some of the focus from traffic collision 
investigations and traffic enforcement duties, so that they could redirect that focus on criminal 
patrol and responding to calls for service.   

During this year, the unit investigated a total of 47 traffic collisions and issued a total of 596 
citations and warnings for various traffic offenses.  It is noteworthy to mention that this unit 
operated short one officer the entire year due to staffing shortages.       

The total number of traffic collisions within the city limits of Pampa for the year of 2021 was 231.  
This is up from 190 in the previous year, however, continues to be below the 10-year average of 
287.    

The charts below, and above in the “department-wide section”, show these numbers compared to 
their historical data points.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

99
108

85

56
47

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Motors Division Crash 
Investigations

2281

1289 1292

489 596

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Motors Division Citations 
and Warnings



Criminal Investigations Division 

Tobie Bias, CID Lieutenant  

 

The Criminal Investigations Division, CID, consists of a total of 2 Detectives, CID Corporal, CID 
Sergeant, and the CID Lieutenant. This division is overseen by Lieutenant Tobie Bias.   

CID is responsible for processing and investigating all reports that are generated by the Patrol 
Division and other sources.  The duties related to this include identifying possible suspects 
through the investigative process, interviewing victims, witnesses, and suspects, and collecting 
and processing evidence.  They are also responsible for the preparation and filing of all criminal 
cases sent to the appropriate prosecutor, and any performing any subsequent follow-up 
investigation required.  Our detectives utilize a wide array of investigative tools, techniques, and 
resource databases to identify suspects and prosecute them the offenses they commit.  The CID 
division also has portable emergency scene lighting and a Crime Scene Response trailer 
equipped with the items needed to process a larger scaled crime scene.   

In 2021, the CID division processed and investigated a total of 1,886 reports generated by the 
department.  That number is up slightly from 1,841 in 2020.  During the 2021 year, of the 1,886 
reports investigated,1,052 have a disposition status of closed or cleared by arrest/citation.  In 
addition, another 316 have a case disposition of unfounded.  Unfounded reports are a mixture of 
instances where a report was taken solely for informational/documentational purposes in which 
no offense was alleged or occurred, and cases in which an offense was reported and was later 
proven to not have occurred or did not met the appropriate elements of the reported crime.  
Removing the unfounded report numbers out of the total cases investigated and looking solely at 
the remaining two data points (1,570 investigated cases, 1,052 closed/cleared) the division has a 
case clearance rate of 67%, which is a slight decrease from 70% in the previous year.  Also, in 
2021, 481 cases were listed as inactive, primarily due to lack of evidence or suspect identification.  
30 reports were still active at the year end.  The charts below show those numbers compared to 
their historical data points: 

It is noteworthy to point out the increase in number of unfounded cases this year, along with a 
decrease in the number of cases cleared/closed over previous years.  Prior to this year, 
informational (documentation only) reports would be listed in with cases cleared and closed.  In 
efforts to provide accurate and actionable statistical data, as well as comply with NIBRS reporting, 
those instances were removed from having closed/cleared dispositions and are listed as 
unfounded due to no offense occurring.  The charts below will depict that change in reporting 
procedures.  This change in procedure results in a significant change in the percentages for the 
2021 Case Dispositions chart below.   

 

 

 

 
2118 2265 2333 2392 2380 2395

1841 1886

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Total Cases Investigated
Total Cases Investigated



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

56%25%

17%

2% 0%

2021 
Case Dispositions

Cleared/Closed Inactive

Unfounded Active

Unknown

74%

20%

3% 3% 0%

2018 Case 
Dispositions

Cleared/Closed Inactive

Unfounded Active

Unknown

70%

27%

2% 1%0%

2019 Case 
Dispositions

Cleared/Closed Inactive

Unfounded Active

Unknown

70%

27%

1% 2% 0%

2020 Case 
Dispositions

Cleared/Closed Inactive

Unfounded Active

Unknown



 

Communications Division 

 

Debbie McDonald, Dispatch Supervisor 

 

The Communications division consists of 10 Telecommunications Operators (dispatchers).  The 
division is led by Dispatch Supervisor Debbie McDonald.  The Communications Center at the 
Pampa Police Department is the 9-1-1 Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP) for all of Gray 
County.  All landline and cell phone calls made to 9-1-1 within Gray County are answered and 
dispatched accordingly by the Communications Division.  In June of 2020, the Communications 
Division acquired the dispatch service for the Gray County Sheriff’s Office, along with other 
county agencies that the Sheriff’s Office was dispatching for.  This move left the Communications 
Division responsible for all dispatch services within Gray County, creating a centralized and more 
efficient hub for emergency service-related communications for the county.   

The Communications Division utilizes a Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) system and VHF radio 
network to communicate with each of the 12 primary agencies dispatched for.  In 2021, the 
Communications Division received a total of 19,912, 9-1-1 calls.  These calls consisted of 3,601 
emergency calls, 2,483 non-emergency calls, and 11,602 duplicate calls related to an incident 
already reported on another 9-1-1 call.  A 3-year comparison of these figures is shown on the 
chart below. 

In 2021, the Communications Center dispatched a combined total of 29,221 calls for service for all 
of the agencies/departments that they provide dispatch service for.  This was an increase of 2,850 
dispatched calls from the 2020 year.  This figure is above the 10-year average of 26,024 calls.  The 
charts below show further breakdown and historical data points for these statistics.   

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20%

14%
66%

2021 Total 9-1-1 Calls = 
19,912

Emergency Calls

Non-Emergency Calls

Duplicate Calls

3553 3053 36013875 4056
2483

11153

13006
11602

2019- Total 18,581 2020- Total 20,115 2021- Total 19,912

3 year 9-1-1 Call Type Comparison
Emergency Non-Emergency Duplicate



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17749

22982

27246

24251 23485
25997 25306

23393
22024 22969

25311
28103

29370
27400 26371

29221

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

35000

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Total Dispatched Calls for Service-
All Agencies

Calls for Service

53%

19%

12%

7%
5%

2%
1% 1% 0% 0% 0%

2021 Total CFS by Agency
Pampa PD-17,596
Sheriff's Office-6,329
Gray CO EMS-3,889
Pampa Fire-2,123
Animal Services-1,701
City of Pampa Utilities-559
TX DPS-365
Hoover VFD-245
McLean VFD-130
Groom EMS/FD-52
Lefors VFD=41



Admin/Support Services Division 

 

Brian Massey, Lieutenant 

 

The Admin/Support Services Division is overseen by Lieutenant Massey.  This Division is 
primarily comprised of members of the Department who serve in other divisions of the 
department, who have special assignments in support of the department’s initiatives and efforts.  
The division oversees Police Records, Property/Evidence room, Mobile Device Forensics 
Laboratory, sUAS (drone) unit, management of the Texas Police Chief’s Best Practices 
Recognition Program, grant program management, and coordinates all department information 
technology initiatives and solutions, along with other administrative functions of the department.   

 

The Division also oversees the day-to-day operation of the 3 county Crime Stoppers organization, 
Top of Texas Crime Stoppers, Inc.  Top of Texas Crime Stoppers is a 501(c)(3) organization that 
offers anonymity and cash rewards to people who provide information on subjects who commit 
crimes and/or the location of wanted persons that lead to their arrest.  Founded in 1981, then 
Pampa Crime Stoppers, has received and processed thousands of tips that have led to the arrest 
of hundreds of people and the clearance of crimes that would have otherwise gone unsolved. 

 

A large portion of the division’s responsibility is the training and education of each of the 
department’s Officers and Telecommunicators.  It is the goal of the department to far exceed the 
minimum training standards established by the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement.  In the 
2021 calendar year, Officers and Telecommunicators of the department attended and completed 
440 training courses, for a total of 2,902 in-service training hours.  Officers of the department also 
participated in short “roll-call” training video courses that the division produces and publishes 
weekly.  These courses cover a vast number of topics centered around improving Officer safety, 
mitigating risks, and reducing liability. 

 

In the 2020 year, after a lengthy application process, the department itself received a TCOLE 
Training Contract and can now host and instruct in-service training courses for Officers, Jailers, 
and Telecommunicators from around the region and state.  The department currently has 8 
Officers who are certified instructors by the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement (TCOLE).  
The division continues to develop curriculum in accordance with TCOLE’s requirements and will 
be offering a wide array of courses throughout the upcoming years.  During the 2021 calendar 
year, the Training Division instructed a total of 28 courses, 191 students, and 741 total course 
hours.  This was the department’s first full year of instructing courses in this manner, so previous 
statistical data is not available.   

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

28

191

741

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

2021

TCOLE Training Provider Courses Conducted

Courses Conducted # of Students Total Course Hours

3035

1735

3587

2902

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

In-Service Training Hours Attended

2018 2019 2020 2021



 

Crime in Pampa 

 

The following data is compiled from the National Incident Based Reporting System (NIBRS) data 
submitted to the Texas Department of Public Safety and Federal Bureau of Investigations on a 
monthly basis.  These include only offenses classified as Part 1 (Index Crimes) by the FBI.   

 

Part 1 Data 2021 compared to 2020 

Offense 2021 2020 Change  
    
Criminal Homicide 5 0 +5 
Forcible Rape 9 15 -6 
Robbery  1 3 -2 
Aggravated Assaults 48 60 -12 
Burglary 59 97 -38 
Larceny- Theft 225 385 -160 
Motor Vehicle Theft  15 29 -14 
Total 362 589 -227 

 
Source: NIBRS database, Texas Department of Public Safety, Year-to-date analysis report 
 

 

 

 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

FBI Part 1 Offense Totals

FBI Part 1 Offense Totals



 

 

Drug/Narcotic Cases 

 

  

 

 

Total Incidents Total Violations
2019 126 144
2020 72 101
2021 50 58

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

Drug/Narcotic Cases- 3 year totals

2019 2020 2021

Total Incidents Total Violations
2019 111 113
2020 85 85
2021 66 69

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Drug/Narcotic Cases- 3 year totals

2019 2020 2021



Accomplishments: 
 

Continuation of Decline in Crime 

During the 2021 calendar year, the city saw a significant reduction in crime over previous years.  This 
decline has been the trend for the previous 6 years.  During the 2021 calendar year, according to data 
from the FBI’s NIBRS/UCR’s “Part 1” crime data (Murders, Forcible Rape, Robbery, Assaults, Burglary, 
Larceny-Theft, and Motor Vehicle Theft), crime in Pampa is at a new 10 year low.  This reduction cannot 
be attributed to just one program, or event.  Crime prevention/reduction is a community effort.  Law 
enforcement agencies hold only a small portion of the puzzle when it comes to the ability to prevent and 
reduce crime.  Certain efforts, such as better reporting methods, crime prevention programs such as the 
#9pmRoutine, high visibility patrols, strong working with relationships with prosecutors and other criminal 
justice agencies, and participation in various community engagement efforts are a few small pieces of the 
puzzle that the department has utilized to aid in the reduction.  These are just that though, small pieces of 
the puzzle.  We are happy to report that our community is truly working together to make Pampa a better 
place to live! 

Training Facility placed into service   

During the 2020-year, utilizing Capital Improvement funds budgeted for the 19/20 fiscal year, the 
department broke ground on a new 2,000 square foot training facility at the existing Law Enforcement 
Firing Range.  This building would replace the existing building which in addition to being too small, had 
several structural issues causing safety concerns.  The new building was named the “Kenneth Hopson 
Law Enforcement Training Facility” after current and long-time Pampa PD Assistant Chief Hopson.  On 
April 20th, 2021, the first class was conducted at the facility.  For the remainder of the year, an additional 
13 courses were held at the facility, instructing over 120 law enforcement personnel and over 20 fire 
department personnel.      

 

Continuation of TPCA Recognition program 

The Law Enforcement Recognition Program is a voluntary process where police agencies in Texas prove 
their compliance with 170 Texas Law Enforcement Best Practices. These Best Practices were carefully 
developed by Texas Law Enforcement professionals to assist agencies in the efficient and effective 
delivery of service, the reduction of risk and the protection of individual’s rights. While similar in nature to 
the national accreditation program, the Best Practices Recognition Program is easier to administer, lower 
in cost and is designed specifically for Texas Law Enforcement. The Texas Legislature demands a great 
deal of professional law enforcement in Texas and the Best Practices were specifically designed to aid 
Texas agencies in meeting those demands and providing the best quality of service to the people of our 
State. Since its inception in 2006, over 170 Texas Law Enforcement Agencies have been Recognized 
and many more are currently in the process to become Recognized Agencies. While members of the 
Texas Police Chiefs Association recognize and supports the national accreditation program, The Texas 
Best Practices Recognition Program has clearly become the new Gold Standard for Texas Law 
Enforcement!  In addition, the program is expected to meet and exceed President Trump’s Executive 
Order #13929, requiring certification through the Department of Justice.  



The Pampa Police Department has proudly been a “Recognized Agency” of the program since 2008 and 
was the 6th agency in the State to achieve this status.  During the 2021 calendar yet, the department met 
the requirements to continue being a “Recognized Agency”.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Racial Profiling Report- 2021 

 

The Pampa Police Department has adopted a detailed written policy on racial profiling.  Our policy: 

1. clearly defines acts constituting racial profiling; 
2. strictly prohibits peace officers employed by the agency from engaging in racial profiling;  
3. implements a process by which an individual may file a complaint with the agency if the 

individual believes that a peace officer employed by the agency has engaged in racial profiling 
with respect to the individual;  

4. provides public education relating to the agency's compliment and complaint process, including 
providing the telephone number, mailing address, and email address to make a compliment or 
complaint with respect to each ticket, citation, or warning issued by a peace officer;  

5. requires appropriate corrective action to be taken against a peace officer employed by the 
agency who, after an investigation, is shown to have engaged in racial profiling in violation of 
the agency's policy adopted under this article;  

6. requires collection of information relating to motor vehicle stops in which a ticket, citation, or 
warning is issued and to arrests made as a result of those stops, including information relating 
to:  

a. the race or ethnicity of the individual detained;  
b. whether a search was conducted and, if so, whether the individual detained consented 

to the search;  
c. whether the peace officer knew the race or ethnicity of the individual detained before 

detaining that individual; and  
d. whether the peace officer used physical force that resulted in bodily injury, as that term 

is defined by Section 1.07, Penal Code, during the stop;  
e. the location of the stop; and  
f. the reason for the stop; and  

7. requires the chief administrator of the agency, regardless of whether the administrator is 
elected, employed, or appointed, to submit an annual report of the information collected under 
Subdivision (6) to:  

a.  the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement; and  
b. the governing body of each county or municipality served by the agency, if the agency is 

an agency of a county, municipality, or other political subdivision of the state. 

 

 



PAMPA POLICE DEPT.
01. Total Traffic Stops: 3752

02. Location of Stop:
 a. City Street 3712 98.93%
 b. US Highway 0 0.00%
 c. County Road 2 0.05%
 d. State Highway 0 0.00%
 e. Private Property or Other 38 1.01%

03. Was Race known prior to Stop:
 a. NO 3752 100.00%
 b. YES 0 0.00%

04. Race or Ethnicity:
 a. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 4 0.11%
 b. Asian/ Pacific Islander 16 0.43%
 c. Black 184 4.90%
 d. White 2629 70.07%
 e. Hispanic/ Latino 919 24.49%

05. Gender:
 a. Female 1538 40.99%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 1 0.03%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 6 0.16%
  iii. Black 38 1.01%
  iv.  White 1139 30.36%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 354 9.43%
 b. Male 2214 59.01%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 3 0.08%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 10 0.27%
  iii. Black 146 3.89%
  iv.  White 1490 39.71%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 565 15.06%

06. Reason for Stop:
 a. Violation of Law 312 8.32%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 1 0.32%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%

1/10/2022 1  of  7

Racial Profiling Analysis Report



  iii. Black 17 5.45%
  iv.  White 232 74.36%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 62 19.87%
 b. Pre-Existing Knowledge 93 2.48%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 6 6.45%
  iv.  White 67 72.04%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 20 21.51%

 c. Moving Traffic Violation 2589 69.00%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 3 0.12%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 12 0.46%
  iii. Black 128 4.94%
  iv.  White 1836 70.92%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 610 23.56%

 d. Vehicle Traffic Violation 758 20.20%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 4 0.53%
  iii. Black 33 4.35%
  iv.  White 494 65.17%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 227 29.95%

07. Was a Search Conducted:
 a. NO 3619 96.46%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 4 0.11%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 16 0.44%
  iii. Black 169 4.67%
  iv.  White 2544 70.30%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 886 24.48%
 b. YES 133 3.54%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 15 11.28%
  iv.  White 85 63.91%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 33 24.81%

08. Reason for Search:
 a. Consent 31 0.83%

1/10/2022 2  of  7

Racial Profiling Analysis Report



  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 4 12.90%
  iv.  White 20 64.52%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 7 22.58%
 b. Contraband in Plain View 0 0.00%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0
  iii. Black 0
  iv.  White 0
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 0
 c. Probable Cause 63 1.68%
  ii.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  i.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 10 15.87%
  iv.  White 36 57.14%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 17 26.98%
 d. Inventory 15 0.40%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 1 6.67%
  iv.  White 8 53.33%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 6 40.00%
 e. Incident to Arrest 24 0.64%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 0 0.00%
  iv.  White 21 87.50%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 3 12.50%

09. Was Contraband Discovered:
 YES 75 2.00%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
      Finding resulted in arrest - YES 0
      Finding resulted in arrest - NO 0
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
      Finding resulted in arrest - YES 0
      Finding resulted in arrest - NO 0
  iii. Black 7 9.33%

1/10/2022 3  of  7

Racial Profiling Analysis Report



      Finding resulted in arrest - YES 0
      Finding resulted in arrest - NO 7
  iv.  White 45 60.00%
      Finding resulted in arrest - YES 10
      Finding resulted in arrest - NO 35
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 23 30.67%
      Finding resulted in arrest - YES 7
      Finding resulted in arrest - NO 16
 b. NO 58 1.55%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  i.   Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 8 13.79%
  iv.  White 40 68.97%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 10 17.24%

10. Description of Contraband:
 a. Drugs 56 1.49%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 4 7.14%
  iv.  White 37 66.07%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 15 26.79%
 b. Currency 0 0.00%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0
  iii. Black 0
  iv.  White 0
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 0
 c. Weapons 1 0.03%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 0 0.00%
  iv.  White 0 0.00%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 1 100.00%
 d. Alcohol 16 0.43%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 3 18.75%
  iv.  White 6 37.50%

1/10/2022 4  of  7

Racial Profiling Analysis Report



  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 7 43.75%
 e. Stolen Property 1 0.03%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 0 0.00%
  iv.  White 0 0.00%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 1 100.00%
 f. Other 5 0.13%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  i.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 0 0.00%
  iv.  White 3 60.00%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 2 40.00%

11. Result of Stop:
 a. Verbal Warning 0 0.00%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0
  iii. Black 0
  iv.  White 0
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 0
 b. Written Warning 1848 49.25%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 1 0.05%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 9 0.49%
  iii. Black 90 4.87%
  iv.  White 1387 75.05%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 361 19.53%
 c. Citation 1813 48.32%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 2 0.11%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 7 0.39%
  iii. Black 88 4.85%
  iv.  White 1176 64.86%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 540 29.78%
 d. Written Warning and Arrest 0 0.00%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0
  iii. Black 0
  iv.  White 0
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 0

1/10/2022 5  of  7

Racial Profiling Analysis Report



 e. Citation and Arrest 91 2.43%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 1 1.10%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 6 6.59%
  iv.  White 66 72.53%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 18 19.78%
 f. Arrest 0 0.00%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0
  iii. Black 0
  iv.  White 0
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 0

12. Arrest Based On:
 a. Violation of Penal Code 75 2.00%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 1 1.33%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 6 8.00%
  iv.  White 52 69.33%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 16 21.33%
 b. Violation of Traffic Law 7 0.19%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 0 0.00%
  iv.  White 5 71.43%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 2 28.57%
 c. Violation of City Ordinance 6 0.16%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 0 0.00%
  iv.  White 6 100.00%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 0 0.00%
 d. Outstanding Warrant 3 0.08%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0 0.00%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0 0.00%
  iii. Black 0 0.00%
  iv.  White 3 100.00%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 0 0.00%

1/10/2022 6  of  7

Racial Profiling Analysis Report



13. Was Physical Force Used:
 a. NO 3752 100.00%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 4 0.11%
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 16 0.43%
  iii. Black 184 4.90%
  iv.  White 2629 70.07%
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 919 24.49%
 b. YES 0 0.00%
  i.   Alaska/ Native American/ Indian 0
  ii.  Asian/ Pacific Islander 0
  iii. Black 0
  iv.  White 0
  v.   Hispanic/ Latino 0
 b 1. YES: Physical Force Resulting in Bodily Injury to Suspect 0
 b 2. YES: Physical Force Resulting in Bodily Injury to Officer 0
 b 3. YES: Physical Force Resulting in Bodily Injury to Both 0

14. Total Number of Racial Profiling Complaints Received: 0

REPORT DATE COMPILED  01/10/2022

1/10/2022 7  of  7

Racial Profiling Analysis Report





































CITY OF PAMPA 
AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET 

 
 

 
  AGENDA ITEM: 1 

ITEM/PROJECT:   Minutes 

MEETING DATE:  January 24, 2022 

DESCRIPTION  Consider approving the minutes of the January 10, 2022, 
Regular Commission Meeting. 

STAFF CONTACT:  Barbara Stucker, City Secretary 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  N/A 
SOURCE OF FUNDS:  N/A 

START/COMPLETION 
SCHEDULE: 

 Minutes take effect after Commission approves. 

RECOMMENDED 
ACTION: 

 Staff recommends Commission approve the minutes of the 
January 10, 2022, Regular Commission Meeting as 
presented. 

RECOMMENDED 
MOTION: 

 I make a motion to approve the minutes of the January 
10, 2022, Regular Commission Meeting as presented. 

BACKGROUND/ 
ADDITIONAL 
INFORMATION: 

 Copy of minutes of the January 10, 2022, meeting 
attached. 

 
 
 
 



MINUTES OF THE 
CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PAMPA, TEXAS 

REGULAR MEETING 
MONDAY, JANUARY 10, 2022 

 
CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Lance DeFever at 4:00 p.m. 
 
PRESENT:   Lance DeFever  Mayor 
    Paul Searl   Commissioner 
    Brian Doughty   Commissioner 
    Jimmy Keough  Commissioner 
    Bryan Fisher   Commissioner 
 
ABSENT:   None 
 
STAFF:   Shane Stokes   City Manager 
    Bryan Guymon  City Attorney 
    Barbara Stucker  City Secretary 
    Theresa Daniels  Finance Director 
    Gary Turley   Director Public Works 
    Lance Richburg  Chief of Police 
    Cary Rushing   Building Official 
    Kevin Webb   Information Technology 
     
VISITORS:   Clay Rice 

  
NEWS MEDIA:  John Lee   Pampa News 
 
INVOCATION:  Commissioner Brian Doughty   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: None 
 
 

AUTHORIZATIONS BY CITY COMMISSION: 
 

 
22-001 

 
1. Consider approving the minutes of the December 13, 2021, Regular Commission 

Meeting as presented. 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Doughty and Seconded by Commissioner Keough to 
approve the minutes of the December 13, 2021, Regular Commission Meeting as presented, with 
each Commission Member voting AYE, the motion carried.  
 
 
 

22-002 
 
2. Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into and execute a Service Contract with 

Tyler Technology for financial software. 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Fisher and Seconded by Commissioner Searl to authorize 
the City Manager to enter into and execute a Service Contract with Tyler Technology for Incode 
Financial Software, with each Commission Member voting AYE, the motion carried.  
 
 
 

22-003 
 
3. Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Participation Agreement for Tax 

Increment Reinvestment Zone #1 – Downtown Pampa (TIRZ 1), with Gray County, TX. 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Keough and Seconded by Commissioner Doughty to 
authorize the City Manager to enter into a Participation Agreement for Tax Increment 



Reinvestment Zone # 1 – Downtown Pampa (TIRZ 1), with Gray County, TX, with each 
Commission Member voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 
 

22-004 
 
4. Consider adopting Resolution No. R22-001, a Resolution by the City Commission 

continuing Executive Order GA-34 and extending to January 24, 2022, the City of 
Pampa’s Declaration of Local Disaster Order. 

 
RESOLUTION NO. R22-001 
CITY OF PAMPA, TEXAS 

EXTENSION OF DECLARATION OF LOCAL DISASTER 
 

A motion of was made by Commissioner Searl and Seconded by Commissioner Doughty to 
adopt Resolution No. R22-001, a Resolution by the City Commission continuing Executive 
Order GA-34 and extending to January 24, 2022, the City of Pampa’s Declaration of Local 
Disaster Order, with each Commission Member voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 
 

22-005 
 
5. Consider approving the List of Disbursements dated November 2021 with the total 

Disbursements being $2,015,798.62 and the amount after balance sheet and income 
accounts is $1,168,264.77. 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Doughty and Seconded by Commissioner Searl to 
approve the List of Disbursements dated November 2021 with the total Disbursements being 
$2,015,798.62 and the amount after balance sheet and income accounts is $1,168,264.77. 
with each Commission Member voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 
 

22-006 
 
6. CONSENT AGENDA – All Consent Agenda items are considered routine in nature by 

the Commission and will be enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion 
on these items unless a Commissioner so requests, in which event that item will be 
removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in normal sequence on the Agenda. 

 
a. Consider awarding bid to Sandra L. Martinez in the amount of $1,300.00 for 

delinquent tax property located at Lot 13, Block 2, Hillcrest Terrace Addition, 
commonly known as 430 Crest. 
 

b. Consider awarding bid to Sandra L. Martinez in the amount of $1,500.00 for 
delinquent tax property located at Lot 12, Block 12, Prairie Village Addition, 
commonly known as 1041 Varnon. 

 
c. Consider awarding bid to Alejandra Soriano in the amount of $2,800.00 for 

delinquent tax property located at Lot 3 and W 20’ of Lot 4, Block 2, Hillcrest 
Terrace Addition, commonly known as 305 E. Browning. 
 

d. Consider awarding bid to Alejandra Soriano in the amount of $600.00 for 
delinquent tax property located at Lot 5, Block 1, Cohen Addition, commonly 
known as 410 Maple. 

 
e. Consider awarding bid to Sandra Martinez in the amount of $2,000.00 for 

delinquent tax property located at Lot 15, Block 1, Routson Subdivision, 
commonly known as Lot on Clark. 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Keough and Seconded by Commissioner Doughty to 
approve the Consent Agenda Items A through E (Delinquent Tax Properties) as presented, 
with each Commission Member voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 
 

7. EXECUTIVE SESSION: The City Commission convened into closed session at 
4:11 p.m.  in accordance with Texas Government Code, Subchapter D, Section 



551.074 – Personnel Matters and Section 551.087 – Deliberations Regarding 
Economic Development to discuss: 

 
• Board Appointments 
• Economic Development – Tax Abatement Application 

 
RECONVENE:  The City Commission reconvened into open session at 4:34 p.m. with no 
action taken. 

 

ADJOURNED: 
 
There being no further business on the agenda, the meeting was adjourned at 4:34 p.m. by Mayor 
Lance DeFever. 
  
 
              
Barbara Stucker, City Secretary   Lance DeFever, Mayor 



CITY OF PAMPA 
AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET 

 
 

  AGENDA ITEM: 2 

ITEM/PROJECT:   BOND REFUNDING SERIES 2022 

MEETING DATE:  January 24, 2022 

DESCRIPTION  Consider and approve Ordinance No.1762, an Ordinance by 
the City Commission of the City of Pampa, Texas authorizing 
the issuance of “City of Pampa, Texas General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2022”, levying an annual ad valorem 
tax within the limitations prescribed by law, for the payment of 
the bonds; authorizing the execution of any necessary 
engagement agreement with the City’s Financial Advisor; and 
providing an effective date. 
 

STAFF CONTACT:  Theresa Daniels, Finance Director 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  Information provided at meeting. 

SOURCE OF FUNDS:  N/A 

START/COMPLETION 
SCHEDULE: 

 Ordinance No. 1762 will be effective upon its adoption by the 
Commission. 

RECOMMENDED 
ACTION: 

 Staff recommends Commission adopt Ordinance No. 1762, an 
Ordinance authorizing the issuance of the “City of Pampa, 
Texas General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2022.” 

RECOMMENDED 
MOTION: 

 I make a motion that the City Commission adopt Ordinance 
No. 1762, authorizing the issuance of the “City of Pampa, 
Texas General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2022.” 

BACKGROUND/ 
ADDITIONAL 
INFORMATION: 

 Copy of Ordinance No. 1762 attached. 

 



82653382.5 

FINAL 

ORDINANCE NO. 1762 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
PAMPA, TEXAS AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF “CITY OF PAMPA, 
TEXAS GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2022”, 
LEVYING AN ANNUAL AD VALOREM TAX, WITHIN THE 
LIMITATIONS PRESCRIBED BY LAW, FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE 
BONDS; PRESCRIBING THE FORM, TERMS, CONDITIONS, AND 
RESOLVING OTHER MATTERS INCIDENT AND RELATED TO THE 
ISSUANCE, SALE, AND DELIVERY OF THE BONDS, AUTHORIZING 
THE EXECUTION OF A PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT, A 
PURCHASE AND INVESTMENT LETTER, AND AN ESCROW DEPOSIT 
LETTER; COMPLYING WITH THE LETTER OF REPRESENTATIONS 
ON FILE WITH THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY; AUTHORIZING 
THE EXECUTION OF ANY NECESSARY ENGAGEMENT AGREEMENT 
WITH THE CITY’S FINANCIAL ADVISOR; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

WHEREAS, the City Commission (the City Commission) of the City of Pampa, Texas (the 
City) has heretofore issued, sold, and delivered, and there are currently outstanding obligations in 
the aggregate original principal amount of $2,100,000, being the obligations set forth on Schedule I 
hereto which is incorporated by reference for all purposes to this ordinance (the Refunded 
Obligations); and 

WHEREAS, the City Commission intends to issue an aggregate principal amount of 
$1,940,000 in general obligation refunding bonds the proceeds of which will be utilized to provide 
for the (i) discharge and final payment of the Refunded Obligations and (ii) payment of the costs 
of issuance of general obligation refunding bonds; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 1207, as amended, Texas Government 
Code (the Act), the City Commission is authorized to issue refunding bonds and deposit the 
proceeds of sale under an escrow agreement to provide for the payment of the Refunded 
Obligations, and such deposit, when made in accordance with the Act, shall constitute the making 
of firm banking and financial arrangements for the discharge and final payment of the Refunded 
Obligations; and 

WHEREAS, the Act permits that the deposit of the proceeds from the sale of the refunding 
bonds be deposited directly with any designated escrow agent or the paying agent/registrar for the 
Refunded Obligations which is not the depository bank of the City; and 

WHEREAS, when firm banking arrangements have been made for the payment of principal 
of and interest to the stated maturity or redemption dates of the Refunded Obligations, then the 
Refunded Obligations shall no longer be regarded as outstanding except for the purpose of 
receiving payment from the funds provided for such purpose and may not be included in or 



82653382.5  -2- 

considered to be an indebtedness of the City for the purpose of a limitation on outstanding 
indebtedness or taxation or for any other purpose; and 

WHEREAS, The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Dallas, Texas currently 
serves as the paying agent for the Refunded Obligations; and 

WHEREAS, [The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Dallas, Texas] is 
hereby appointed as the Escrow Agent (hereinafter defined) for the general obligation refunding 
bonds; and 

WHEREAS, Community National Bank, Hondo, Texas is hereby appointed as the Paying 
Agent/Registrar (hereinafter defined) for the general obligation refunding bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the City Commission also hereby finds and determines that the Refunded 
Obligations are scheduled to mature or are subject to being redeemed, not more than twenty (20) 
years from the date of the general obligation refunding bonds herein authorized and being issued 
to restructure the City’s debt service and associated tax rates in the coming years, and such 
refunding will result in a net present value savings of $119,707.02 (5.700%), and a gross savings 
of $131,020.00; taking into account the City’s cash contribution of $16,904.44; and 

WHEREAS, the City Commission hereby finds and determines that the issuance of general 
obligation refunding bonds for the purpose of refunding the Refunded Obligations is in the best 
interests of the residents of the City, now, therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PAMPA, TEXAS 
THAT: 

SECTION 1. Authorization - Designation - Principal Amount - Purpose.  General 
obligation refunding bonds of the City shall be and are hereby authorized to be issued in the 
aggregate principal amount of ONE MILLION NINE HUNDRED FORTY THOUSAND AND 
NO/100 DOLLARS ($1,940,000), to be designated and bear the title of “CITY OF PAMPA, 
TEXAS GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2022” (the Bonds), for the 
purpose of providing funds for the (i) discharge and final payment of the Refunded Obligations 
and (ii) payment of the costs of issuance of the Bonds, all in conformity with the laws of the State 
of Texas, particularly the Act, this ordinance adopted by the City Commission on January 24, 
2022, and the City’s Home Rule Charter. 

SECTION 2. Fully Registered Obligations - Authorized Denominations - Stated 
Maturities - Interest Rates – Dated Date.  The Bonds shall be issued as fully registered obligations, 
without coupons, shall be dated March 1, 2022 (the Dated Date), and shall generally be in 
denominations of $100,000 or any integral multiple of $5,000 in excess thereof, and the Bonds 
shall be lettered “R” and numbered consecutively from One (1) upward, and principal shall become 
due and payable on June 1 in each of the years and in principal amounts (the Stated Maturities) 
and bear interest on the unpaid principal amounts from the Dated Date, or from the most recent 
Interest Payment Date (hereinafter defined) to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, 
to the earlier of redemption or Stated Maturity, at the per annum rates, while Outstanding, in 
accordance with the following schedule: 



82653382.5  -3- 

Years of 
Stated Maturity 

Principal 
Amounts ($) 

Interest 
Rates (%) 

2023 160,000 4.000 
2024 170,000 4.000 
2025 175,000 4.000 
2026 185,000 4.000 
2027 190,000 4.000 
2028 195,000 4.000 
2029 205,000 4.000 
2030 215,000 4.000 
2031 220,000 4.000 
2032 225,000 2.000 

   
The Bonds shall bear interest on the unpaid principal amounts from the Dated Date, or 

from the most recent Interest Payment Date (hereinafter defined) to which interest has been paid 
or duly provided for, to the earlier of redemption or at Stated Maturity, while Outstanding, at the 
rates per annum shown in the above schedule (calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 
30-day months).  Interest on the Bonds shall be payable on June 1 and December 1 in each year 
(each, an Interest Payment Date), commencing June 1, 2022 while the Bonds are Outstanding. 

SECTION 3. Payment of Bonds - Paying Agent/Registrar. 

The principal of, premium, if any, and the interest on the Bonds, due and payable by reason 
of Stated Maturity, or otherwise, shall be payable in any coin or currency of the United States of 
America which at the time of payment is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts, 
and such payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be without 
exchange or collection charges to the Holder (as hereinafter defined) of the Bonds. 

The selection and appointment of Community National Bank, Hondo, Texas (the Paying 
Agent/Registrar) to serve as the initial Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds is hereby approved 
and confirmed, and the City agrees and covenants to cause to be kept and maintained at the 
corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar books and records (the Security Register) for 
the registration, payment, and transfer of the Bonds, all as provided herein, in accordance with the 
terms and provisions of a Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement, attached, in substantially final form, 
as Exhibit A hereto, and such reasonable rules and regulations as the Paying Agent/Registrar and 
the City may prescribe.  The City covenants to maintain and provide a Paying Agent/Registrar at 
all times while the Bonds are Outstanding, and any successor Paying Agent/Registrar shall be (i) a 
national or state banking institution or (ii) an association or a corporation organized and doing 
business under the laws of the United States of America or of any state, authorized under such 
laws to exercise trust powers.  Such Paying Agent/Registrar shall be subject to supervision or 
examination by federal or state authority and authorized by law to serve as a Paying 
Agent/Registrar. 



82653382.5  -4- 

The City reserves the right to appoint a successor Paying Agent/Registrar upon providing 
the previous Paying Agent/Registrar with a certified copy of a resolution or ordinance terminating 
such agency.  Additionally, the City agrees to promptly cause a written notice of this substitution 
to be sent to each Holder of the Bonds by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, which 
notice shall also give the address of the new Paying Agent/Registrar. 

Principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, due and payable by reason of 
Stated Maturity, redemption, or otherwise, shall be payable only to the registered owner of the 
Bonds appearing on the Security Register (the Holder or Holders) maintained on behalf of the City 
by the Paying Agent/Registrar as hereinafter provided (i) on the Record Date (hereinafter defined) 
for purposes of payment of interest on the Bonds, (ii) on the date of surrender of the Bonds for 
purposes of receiving payment of principal thereof upon redemption or at the Bonds’ Stated 
Maturity, and (iii) on any other date for any other purpose.  The City and the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, and any agent of either, shall treat the Holder as the owner of a Bond for purposes 
of receiving payment and all other purposes whatsoever, and neither the City nor the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, or any agent of either, shall be affected by notice to the contrary. 

Principal of and premium, if any, on the Bonds shall be payable only upon presentation 
and surrender of the Bonds to the Paying Agent/Registrar at its corporate trust office (provided, 
however, with respect to principal payments prior to the final Stated Maturity, the Bonds need not 
be surrendered to the Paying Agent/Registrar, who will merely document this payment on an 
internal ledger maintained by the Paying Agent/Registrar).  Interest on the Bonds shall be paid to 
the Holder whose name appears in the Security Register at the close of business on the fifteenth 
day of the month next preceding an Interest Payment Date for the Bonds (the Record Date) and 
shall be paid (i) by check sent on or prior to the appropriate date of payment by United States mail, 
first-class postage prepaid, by the Paying Agent/Registrar, to the address of the Holder appearing 
in the Security Register or (ii) by such other method, acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar, 
requested in writing by the Holder at the Holder’s risk and expense. 

If the date for the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds 
shall be a Saturday, a Sunday, a legal holiday, or a day on which banking institutions in the city 
where the corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are authorized by law or 
executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is 
not such a day.  The payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the 
original date any such payment on the Bonds was due. 

In the event of a non-payment of interest on a scheduled payment date, and for thirty (30) 
days thereafter, a new record date for such interest payment (a Special Record Date) will be 
established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment of such interest have 
been received from the City.  Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment 
date of the past due interest (the Special Payment Date - which shall be fifteen (15) days after the 
Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five (5) business days prior to the Special Record Date 
by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, to the address of each Holder of a Bond 
appearing on the Security Register at the close of business on the last business day next preceding 
the date of mailing of such notice. 

SECTION 4. Redemption.  



82653382.5  -5- 

A. Optional Redemption.  The Bonds having Stated Maturities on and after June 1, 
2032 shall be subject to redemption prior to Stated Maturity, at the option of the City, on June 1, 
2031, or on any date thereafter, as a whole or in part, in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral 
multiple thereof (and if within a Stated Maturity selected at random and by lot by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar), at the redemption price of par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. 

B. Exercise of Redemption Option.  At least forty-five (45) days prior to a date set for 
the redemption of Bonds (unless a shorter notification period shall be satisfactory to the Paying 
Agent/Registrar), the City shall notify the Paying Agent/Registrar of its decision to exercise the 
right to redeem Bonds, the principal amount of each Stated Maturity to be redeemed, and the date 
set for the redemption thereof.  The decision of the City to exercise the right to redeem Bonds shall 
be entered in the minutes of the governing body of the City. 

C. Selection of Bonds for Redemption.  If less than all Outstanding Bonds of the same 
Stated Maturity are to be redeemed on a redemption date, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall select 
at random and by lot the Bonds to be redeemed, provided that if less than the entire principal 
amount of a Bond is to be redeemed, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall treat such Bond then subject 
to redemption as representing the number of Bonds Outstanding which is obtained by dividing the 
principal amount of such Bond by $5,000. 

D. Notice of Redemption.  Not less than thirty (30) days prior to a redemption date for 
the Bonds, a notice of redemption shall be sent by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, 
in the name of the City and at the City’s expense, by the Paying Agent/Registrar to each Holder of 
a Bond to be redeemed, in whole or in part, at the address of the Holder appearing on the Security 
Register at the close of business on the business day next preceding the date of mailing such notice, 
and any notice of redemption so mailed shall be conclusively presumed to have been duly given 
irrespective of whether received by the Holder.  This notice may also be published once in a 
financial publication, journal, or reporter of general circulation among securities dealers in the City 
of New York, New York (including, but not limited to, The Bond Buyer and The Wall Street 
Journal), or in the State of Texas (including, but not limited to, The Texas Bond Reporter). 

All notices of redemption shall (i) specify the date of redemption for the 
Bonds, (ii) identify the Bonds to be redeemed and, in the case of a portion of the principal amount 
to be redeemed, the principal amount thereof to be redeemed, (iii) state the redemption price, 
(iv) state that the Bonds, or the portion of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed, shall 
become due and payable on the redemption date specified, and the interest thereon, or on the 
portion of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed, shall cease to accrue from and after the 
redemption date, and (v) specify that payment of the redemption price for the Bonds, or the 
principal amount thereof to be redeemed, shall be made at the corporate trust office of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar only upon presentation and surrender thereof by the Holder. 

If a Bond is subject by its terms to redemption and has been called for redemption and 
notice of redemption thereof has been duly given or waived as herein provided, such Bond (or the 
principal amount thereof to be redeemed) so called for redemption shall become due and payable, 
and if money sufficient for the payment of such Bonds (or of the principal amount thereof to be 
redeemed) at the then applicable redemption price is held for the purpose of such payment by the 
Paying Agent/Registrar, then on the redemption date designated in such notice, interest on the 



82653382.5  -6- 

Bonds (or the principal amount thereof to be redeemed) called for redemption shall cease to accrue 
and such Bonds shall not be deemed to be Outstanding in accordance with the provisions of this 
Ordinance. 

E. Transfer/Exchange of Bonds.  Neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall 
be required (1) to transfer or exchange any Bond during a period beginning forty-five (45) days 
prior to the date fixed for redemption of the Bonds or (2) to transfer or exchange any Bond selected 
for redemption; provided, however, such limitation of transfer shall not be applicable to an 
exchange by the Holder of the unredeemed balance of a Bond which is subject to redemption in 
part. 

SECTION 5. Execution - Registration.  The Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the City 
by its Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem under the seal of the City reproduced or impressed thereon and 
attested by its City Secretary.  The signature of any of said officers on the Bonds may be manual 
or facsimile.  Bonds bearing the manual or facsimile signatures of individuals who were, at the 
time of the Dated Date, the proper officers of the City shall bind the City, notwithstanding that 
such individuals or either of them shall cease to hold such offices prior to the delivery of the Bonds 
to the Purchasers (hereinafter defined), all as authorized and provided in Chapter 1201, as 
amended, Texas Government Code. 

No Bond shall be entitled to any right or benefit under this Ordinance, or be valid or 
obligatory for any purpose, unless there appears on such Bond either a certificate of registration 
substantially in the form provided in Section 8C, executed by the Comptroller of Public Accounts 
of the State of Texas or his duly authorized agent by manual signature, or a certificate of 
registration substantially in the form provided in Section 8D, executed by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar by manual signature, and either such certificate upon any Bond shall be conclusive 
evidence, and the only evidence, that such Bond has been duly certified or registered and delivered. 

SECTION 6. Registration - Transfer - Exchange of Bonds - Predecessor Bonds.  The 
Paying Agent/Registrar shall obtain, record, and maintain in the Security Register the name and 
address of every owner of the Bonds, or, if appropriate, the nominee thereof.  Any Bond may, in 
accordance with its terms and the terms hereof, be transferred or exchanged for Bonds of other 
authorized denominations upon the Security Register by the Holder, in person or by his  duly 
authorized agent, upon surrender of such Bond to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation, 
accompanied by a written instrument of transfer or request for exchange duly executed by the 
Holder or by his duly authorized agent, in form satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

Upon surrender for transfer of any Bond at the corporate trust office of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, the City shall execute and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall register and deliver, 
in the name of the designated transferee or transferees, one or more new Bonds of authorized 
denomination and having the same Stated Maturity and of a like interest rate and aggregate 
principal amount as the Bond or Bonds surrendered for transfer. 

At the option of the Holder, Bonds may be exchanged for other Bonds of authorized 
denominations and having the same Stated Maturity, bearing the same rate of interest and of like 
aggregate principal amount as the Bonds surrendered for exchange upon surrender of the Bonds 
to be exchanged at the corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar.  Whenever any Bonds 



82653382.5  -7- 

are so surrendered for exchange, the City shall execute, and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall 
register and deliver, the Bonds to the Holder requesting the exchange. 

All Bonds issued upon any transfer or exchange of Bonds shall be delivered at the corporate 
trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, or be sent by registered mail to the Holder at his request, 
risk, and expense, and upon the delivery thereof, the same shall be the valid and binding obligations 
of the City, evidencing the same obligation to pay, and entitled to the same benefits under this 
Ordinance, as the Bonds surrendered upon such transfer or exchange. 

All transfers or exchanges of Bonds pursuant to this Section shall be made without expense 
or service charge to the Holder, except as otherwise herein provided, and except that the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall require payment by the Holder requesting such transfer or exchange of any 
tax or other governmental charges required to be paid with respect to such transfer or exchange. 

Bonds canceled by reason of an exchange or transfer pursuant to the provisions hereof are 
hereby defined to be Predecessor Bonds, evidencing all or a portion, as the case may be, of the 
same debt evidenced by the new Bond or Bonds registered and delivered in the exchange or 
transfer therefor.  Additionally, the term  Predecessor Bonds shall include any Bond registered and 
delivered pursuant to Section 17 in lieu of a mutilated, lost, destroyed, or stolen Bond which shall 
be deemed to evidence the same obligation as the mutilated, lost, destroyed, or stolen Bond. 

SECTION 7. Initial Bond.  The Bonds herein authorized shall be initially issued as a 
single fully registered Bond in the aggregate principal amount of $1,940,000 with principal 
installments to become due and payable as provided in Section 2 hereof and numbered T-1 (the 
Initial Bond), and the Initial Bond shall be registered in the name of the Purchasers or the designee 
thereof.  The Initial Bond shall be the Bond submitted to the Office of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas for approval, certified and registered by the Office of the Comptroller of Public 
Accounts of the State of Texas and delivered to the Purchasers.  Any time after the delivery of the 
Initial Bond, the Paying Agent/Registrar, pursuant to written instructions from the Purchasers, or 
the designee thereof, shall cancel the Initial Bond delivered hereunder and exchange therefor 
definitive Bonds of like kind and of authorized denominations, Stated Maturities, principal 
amounts bearing applicable interest rates, and shall be lettered “R” and numbered consecutively 
from one (1) upward for transfer and delivery to the Holders named at the addresses identified 
therefor; all pursuant to and in accordance with such written instructions from the Purchasers, or 
the designee thereof, and such other information and documentation as the Paying Agent/Registrar 
may reasonably require. 

SECTION 8. Forms. 

A. Forms Generally.  The Bonds, the Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of 
Public Accounts of the State of Texas, the Registration Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar, and 
the form of Assignment to be printed on each of the Bonds shall be substantially in the forms set 
forth in this Section with such appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions, and other variations 
as are permitted or required by this Ordinance and may have such letters, numbers, or other marks 
of identification (including insurance legends in the event the Bonds, or any Stated Maturities 
thereof, are insured and identifying numbers and letters of the Committee on Uniform Securities 
Identification Procedures of the American Bankers Association) and such legends and 



82653382.5  -8- 

endorsements (including insurance legends and any reproduction of an opinion of Bond Counsel 
(hereinafter referenced)) thereon as may, consistent herewith, be established by the City or 
determined by the officers executing the Bonds as evidenced by their execution thereof.  Any 
portion of the text of any Bond may be set forth on the reverse thereof, with an appropriate 
reference thereto on the face of the Bond. 

The definitive Bonds shall be printed, lithographed, or engraved, produced by any 
combination of these methods, or produced in any other similar manner, all as determined by the 
officers executing the Bonds as evidenced by their execution thereof, but the Initial Bond 
submitted to the Attorney General of Texas may be typewritten or photocopied or otherwise 
reproduced. 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.] 
  



82653382.5  -9- 

B. Form of Definitive Bond. 

REGISTERED REGISTERED 
NO. _______ PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 
 $_____________ 

United States of America 
State of Texas 

County of Gray 
CITY OF PAMPA, TEXAS 

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, 
SERIES 2022 

Dated Date: Interest Rate: Stated Maturity: CUSIP NO: 
March 1, 2022    

REGISTERED OWNER: _________________________________________________________ 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: _________________________________________________________ 

The City of Pampa, Texas (the City), a body corporate and a municipal corporation in the 
County of Gray, State of Texas, for value received, acknowledges itself indebted to and hereby 
promises to pay to the order of the Registered Owner specified above, or the registered assigns 
thereof, on the Stated Maturity date specified above, the Principal Amount specified above and to 
pay interest (computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months) on the unpaid 
Principal Amount hereof from the Dated Date, or from the most recent Interest Payment Date 
(hereinafter defined) to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, to the earlier of 
redemption or Stated Maturity, while Outstanding, at the per annum rate of interest specified 
above; such interest being payable on June 1 and December 1 of each year (each, an Interest 
Payment Date), commencing June 1, 2022. 

Principal and premium, if any, on this Bond shall be payable to the Registered Owner 
hereof (the Holder), upon presentation and surrender (provided, however, with respect to principal 
payments prior to the final Stated Maturity, the Bonds need not be surrendered to the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, who will merely document this payment on an internal ledger maintained by the 
Paying Agent/Registrar) at the corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar executing the 
registration certificate appearing hereon or a successor thereof.  Interest shall be payable to the 
Holder of this Bond (or one or more Predecessor Bonds, as defined in the Ordinance hereinafter 
referenced) whose name appears on the Security Register maintained by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the Record Date, which is the fifteenth day of the month 
next preceding each Interest Payment Date.  All payments of principal of, and interest on this Bond 
shall be in any coin or currency of the United States of America which at the time of payment is 
legal tender for the payment of public and private debts.  Interest shall be paid by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar by check sent on or prior to the appropriate date of payment by United States mail, 
first-class postage prepaid, to the Holder hereof at the address appearing in the Security Register 
or by such other method, acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar, requested by the Holder hereof 
at the Holder’s risk and expense. 



82653382.5  -10- 

This Bond is one of the series specified in its title issued in the aggregate principal amount 
of $1,940,000 (the Bonds) pursuant to an ordinance adopted by the governing body of the City (the 
Ordinance), for the purpose of providing funds for the (i) discharge and final payment of the 
Refunded Obligations and (ii) payment of the costs of issuance of the Bonds, under and in strict 
conformity with the laws of the State of Texas, including Chapter 1207, as amended, Texas 
Government Code, and the City’s Home Rule Charter. 

The Bonds of this series are payable from the proceeds of an annual ad valorem tax levied 
upon all taxable property within the City within the limitations prescribed by law. 

As specified in the Ordinance, the Bonds having Stated Maturities on and after June 1, 
2032 shall be subject to redemption prior to Stated Maturity, at the option of the City, on June 1, 
2031 or on any date thereafter, in whole or in part in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral 
multiple thereof (and if within a Stated Maturity selected at random and by lot by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar) at the redemption price of par, together with accrued interest to the date of 
redemption, and upon thirty (30) days prior written notice being given by United States mail, first-
class postage prepaid, to Holders of the Bonds to be redeemed, and subject to the terms and 
provisions relating thereto contained in the Ordinance.  If this Bond is subject to redemption prior 
to Stated Maturity and is in a denomination in excess of  $5,000, portions of the principal sum 
hereof in installments of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof may be redeemed, and, if less than 
all of the principal sum hereof is to be redeemed, there shall be issued, without charge therefor, to 
the Holder hereof, upon the surrender of this Bond to the Paying Agent/Registrar at its corporate 
trust office, a new Bond or Bonds of like Stated Maturity and interest rate in any authorized 
denominations provided in the Ordinance for the then unredeemed balance of the principal sum 
hereof. 

If this Bond (or any portion of the principal sum hereof) shall have been duly called for 
redemption and notice of such redemption has been duly given, then upon such redemption date 
this Bond (or the portion of the principal sum hereof to be redeemed) shall become due and 
payable, and, if the money for the payment of the redemption price and the interest accrued on the 
principal amount to be redeemed to the date of redemption is held for the purpose of such payment 
by the Paying Agent/Registrar, interest shall cease to accrue and be payable hereon from and after 
the redemption date on the principal amount hereof to be redeemed.  If this Bond is called for 
redemption, in whole or in part, the City or the Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be required to 
issue, transfer, or exchange this Bond within forty-five (45) days of the date fixed for redemption; 
provided, however, such limitation of transfer shall not be applicable to an exchange by the Holder 
of the unredeemed balance hereof in the event of its redemption in part. 

Reference is hereby made to the Ordinance, a copy of which is on file in the corporate trust 
office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and to all of the provisions of which the Holder by his 
acceptance hereof hereby assents, for definitions of terms; the description of and the nature and 
extent of the tax levied for the payment of the Bonds; the terms and conditions relating to the 
transfer or exchange of the Bonds; the conditions upon which the Ordinance may be amended or 
supplemented with or without the consent of the Holders; the rights, duties, and obligations of the 
City and the Paying Agent/Registrar; the terms and provisions upon which this Bond may be 
redeemed or discharged at or prior to the Stated Maturity thereof, and deemed to be no longer 



82653382.5  -11- 

Outstanding thereunder; and for the other terms and provisions specified in the Ordinance.  
Capitalized terms used herein have the same meanings assigned in the Ordinance. 

This Bond, subject to certain limitations contained in the Ordinance, may be transferred on 
the Security Register upon presentation and surrender at the corporate trust office of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, duly endorsed by, or accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form 
satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar duly executed by the Holder hereof, or his duly 
authorized agent, and thereupon one or more new fully registered Bonds of the same Stated 
Maturity, of authorized denominations, bearing the same rate of interest, and of the same aggregate 
principal amount will be issued to the designated transferee or transferees. 

The City and the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any agent of either, shall treat the Holder 
hereof whose name appears on the Security Register (i) on the Record Date as the owner hereof 
for purposes of receiving payment of interest hereon, (ii) on the date of surrender of this Bond as 
the owner hereof for purposes of receiving payment of principal hereof at its Stated Maturity or its 
redemption, in whole or in part, and (iii) on any other date as the owner hereof for all other 
purposes, and neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar, or any such agent of either, shall be 
affected by notice to the contrary.  In the event of a non-payment of interest on a scheduled 
payment date, and for thirty (30) days thereafter, a new record date for such interest payment (a 
Special Record Date) will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the 
payment of such interest have been received from the City.  Notice of the Special Record Date and 
of the scheduled payment date of the past due interest (the Special Payment Date - which shall be 
fifteen (15) days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five (5) business days prior 
to the Special Record Date by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, to the address of each 
Holder appearing on the Security Register at the close of business on the last business day next 
preceding the date of mailing of such notice. 

It is hereby certified, covenanted, and represented that all acts, conditions, and things 
required to be performed, exist, and be done precedent to the issuance of this Bond in order to 
render the same a legal, valid, and binding obligation of the City have been performed, exist, and 
have been done, in regular and due time, form, and manner, as required by the laws of the State of 
Texas and the Ordinance, and that the issuance of the Bonds does not exceed any constitutional or 
statutory limitation; and that due provision has been made for the payment of the principal of, 
premium if any, and interest on the Bonds by the levy of a tax as aforestated.  In case any provision 
in this Bond or any application thereof shall be deemed invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the 
validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions and applications shall not in any 
way be affected or impaired thereby.  The terms and provisions of this Bond and the Ordinance 
shall be construed in accordance with and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas. 

 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.]  



82653382.5  -12- 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Bond to be duly executed under its 
official seal. 

CITY OF PAMPA, TEXAS 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
City Secretary 

(CITY SEAL) 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.] 
  



82653382.5  -13- 

C. *Form of Registration Certificate of Comptroller of Public Accounts to Appear on 
Initial Bond Only. 

REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE OF 
COMPTROLLER OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER OF 
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS 

§
§
§
§ 

 
 
REGISTER NO.    

I HEREBY CERTIFY that this Bond has been examined, certified as to validity and 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and duly registered by the Comptroller of 
Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 

WITNESS my signature and seal of office this      . 

____________________________________ 
Comptroller of Public Accounts 

of the State of Texas 

(SEAL) 

* Note to Printer:  Not to appear on printed Bonds 

D. Form of Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar to Appear on Definitive Bonds Only. 

REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR 

This Bond has been duly issued under the provisions of the within-mentioned Ordinance; 
the Bond or Bonds of the above-entitled and designated series originally delivered having been 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the Comptroller of Public 
Accounts, as shown by the records of the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

Registered this date: 
 
 
 
 ___________________________________  

COMMUNITY NATIONAL BANK, 
HONDO, TEXAS, as Paying Agent/Registrar 
 
 
By:  _______________________________  

Authorized Signature 

 
  



82653382.5  -14- 

E. Form of Assignment. 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto  (Print 
or typewrite name, address, and zip code of transferee): _________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
(Social Security or other identifying number):  ________________________________________ 
the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
____________________attorney to transfer the within Bond on the books kept for registration 
thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

DATED: ____________________________ 

________________________________________________ 
NOTICE:  The signature on this assignment must correspond 
with the name of the registered owner as it appears on the 
face of the within Bond in every particular. 

Signature guaranteed: 
 
 
____________________________________ 

F. The Initial Bond shall be in the form set forth in paragraph B of this Section, except 
that the form of the single fully registered Initial Bond shall be modified as follows: 

(i) immediately under the name of the Bond the headings “Interest Rate” and 
“Stated Maturity” shall both be completed “as shown below”; 

(ii) the first two paragraphs shall read as follows: 

REGISTERED OWNER:  ________________________________________________________ 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:  _________________________________________________________ 

The City of Pampa, Texas (the City), a body corporate and municipal corporation in the 
County of Gray, State of Texas, for value received, acknowledges itself indebted to and hereby 
promises to pay to the order of the Registered Owner named above, or the registered assigns 
thereof, the Principal Amount specified above stated to mature on the first day of June in each of 
the years and in principal amounts and bearing interest at per annum rates in accordance with the 
following schedule: 

Years of 
Stated Maturity 

Principal 
Amounts ($) 

Interest 
Rates (%) 

 (Information to be inserted from 
schedule in Section 2 hereof). 



82653382.5  -15- 

(or so much thereof as shall not have been paid upon prior redemption) and to pay interest on the 
unpaid Principal Amount hereof from the Dated Date, or from the most recent Interest Payment 
Date (hereinafter defined) to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, to the earlier of 
redemption or Stated Maturity, while Outstanding, at the per annum rates of interest specified 
above computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months; such interest being 
payable on June 1 and December 1 of each year (each, an Interest Payment Date), commencing 
June 1, 2022.  

Principal of this Bond shall be payable to the Registered Owner hereof (the Holder), upon 
its presentation and surrender to Stated Maturity, while Outstanding, at the corporate trust office 
of Community National Bank, Hondo, Texas (the Paying Agent/Registrar) (provided, however, 
with respect to principal payments prior to the final Stated Maturity, the Bonds need not be 
surrendered to the Paying Agent/Registrar, who will merely document this payment on an internal 
ledger maintained by the Paying Agent/Registrar).  Interest shall be payable to the Holder of this 
Bond whose name appears on the Security Register maintained by the Paying Agent/Registrar at 
the close of business on the Record Date, which is the fifteenth day of the month next preceding 
each Interest Payment Date.  All payments of principal of and interest on this Bond shall be in any 
coin or currency of the United States of America which at the time of payment is legal tender for 
the payment of public and private debts.  Interest shall be paid by the Paying Agent/Registrar by 
check sent on or prior to the appropriate date of payment by United States mail, first-class postage 
prepaid, to the Holder hereof at the address appearing in the Security Register or by such other 
method, acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar, requested by, and at the risk and expense of, 
the Holder hereof. 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.] 
  



82653382.5  -16- 

G. Insurance Legend.  If bond insurance is obtained by the City or the Purchasers for 
the Bonds, the Definitive Bonds and the Initial Bond shall bear an appropriate legend as provided 
by the insurer to appear under the following heading: 

[BOND INSURANCE] 
 

SECTION 9. Definitions.  For all purposes of this Ordinance (as defined below), except 
as otherwise expressly provided or unless the context otherwise requires:  (i) the terms defined in 
this Section have the meanings assigned to them in this Section, and certain terms used in 
Sections 21 and 38 of this Ordinance have the meanings assigned to them in such Sections, and all 
such terms include the plural as well as the singular; (ii) all references in this Ordinance to 
designated “Sections” and other subdivisions are to the designated Sections and other subdivisions 
of this Ordinance as originally adopted; and (iii) the words “herein”, “hereof”, and “hereunder” 
and other words of similar import refer to this Ordinance as a whole and not to any particular 
Section or other subdivision. 

A. The term Authorized Officials shall mean the Mayor, the Mayor Pro Tem, the City 
Manager, the Finance Director, and/or the City Secretary. 

B. The term Bond Fund shall mean the special fund created and established by the 
provisions of Section 10 of this Ordinance. 

C. The term Bonds shall mean the $1,940,000 “CITY OF PAMPA, TEXAS 
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2022” authorized by this Ordinance. 

D. The term City shall mean City of Pampa, located in the County of Gray, Texas and, 
where appropriate, the City Commission of the City. 

E. The term Closing Date shall mean the date of physical delivery of the Initial Bond 
in exchange for the payment in full by the Purchasers. 

F. The term Debt Service Requirements shall mean, as of any particular date of 
computation, with respect to any obligations and with respect to any period, the aggregate of the 
amounts to be paid or set aside by the City as of such date or in such period for the payment of the 
principal of, premium, if any, and interest (to the extent not capitalized) on such obligations; 
assuming, in the case of obligations without a fixed numerical rate, that such obligations bear 
interest at the maximum rate permitted by the terms thereof and further assuming in the case of 
obligations required to be redeemed or prepaid as to principal prior to Stated Maturity, the principal 
amounts thereof will be redeemed prior to Stated Maturity in accordance with the mandatory 
redemption provisions applicable thereto. 

G. The term Depository shall mean an official depository bank of the City. 

H. The term Government Securities, as used herein, shall mean (i) direct noncallable 
obligations of the United States, including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed by, the 
United States of America; (ii) noncallable obligations of an agency or instrumentality of the United 
States, including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the agency or 
instrumentality and that, on the date the governing body of the issuer adopts or approves the 



82653382.5  -17- 

proceedings authorizing the issuance of refunding bonds, are rated as to investment quality by a 
nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than AAA or its equivalent; (iii) noncallable 
obligations of a state or an agency or a county, municipality, or other political subdivision of a 
state that have been refunded and that, on the date the governing body of the issuer adopts or 
approves the proceedings authorizing the issuance of refunding bonds, are rated as to investment 
quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than AAA or its equivalent, or 
(iv) any additional securities and obligations hereafter authorized by the laws of the State of Texas 
as eligible for use to accomplish the discharge of obligations such as the Bonds. 

I. The term Holder or Holders shall mean the registered owner, whose name appears 
in the Security Register, for any Bond. 

J. The term Interest Payment Date shall mean the date interest is payable on the 
Bonds, being June 1 and December 1 of each year, commencing June 1, 2022, while any of the 
Bonds remain Outstanding. 

K. The term Ordinance shall mean this ordinance adopted by the City Commission of 
the City on January 24, 2022. 

L. The term Outstanding when used in this Ordinance with respect to Bonds shall 
mean, as of the date of determination, all Bonds issued and delivered under this Ordinance, except: 

(1) those Bonds canceled by the Paying Agent/Registrar or delivered to the 
Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation; 

(2) those Bonds for which payment has been duly provided by the City in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 23 of this Ordinance; and 

(3) those Bonds that have been mutilated, destroyed, lost, or stolen and 
replacement Bonds have been registered and delivered in lieu thereof as provided in 
Section 17 of this Ordinance. 

M. The term Purchasers shall mean the initial purchasers of the Bonds named in 
Section 18 of this Ordinance. 

N. The term Stated Maturity shall mean the annual principal payments of the Bonds 
payable on June 1 of each year, as set forth in Section 2 of this Ordinance. 

SECTION 10. Bond Fund; Investments.  For the purpose of paying the interest on and to 
provide a sinking fund for the payment, redemption, and retirement of the Bonds, there shall be 
and is hereby created a special fund to be designated “CITY OF PAMPA, TEXAS GENERAL 
OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2022 INTEREST AND SINKING FUND” (the 
Bond Fund), which fund shall be kept and maintained at the Depository, and money deposited in 
such fund shall be used for no other purpose and shall be maintained as provided in Section 21.  
Authorized Officials of the City are hereby authorized and directed to make withdrawals from the 
Bond Fund sufficient to pay the purchase price or amount of principal of, premium, if any, and 
interest on the Bonds as the same become due and payable and shall cause to be transferred to the 
Paying Agent/Registrar from money on deposit in the Bond Fund an amount sufficient to pay the 



82653382.5  -18- 

amount of principal and/or interest stated to mature on the Bonds, such transfer of funds to the 
Paying Agent/Registrar to be made in such manner as will cause immediately available funds to 
be deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar on or before the business day next preceding each 
interest and principal payment date for the Bonds. 

Pending the transfer of funds to the Paying Agent/Registrar, money deposited in any fund 
created and established pursuant to the provisions of this Ordinance, at the option of the City, may 
be placed in time deposits, certificates of deposit, guaranteed investment contracts, or similar 
contractual agreements as permitted by the provisions of the Public Funds Investment Act, as 
amended, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code, secured (to the extent not insured by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation) by obligations of the type hereinafter described, or be invested, as 
authorized by any law, including investments held in book-entry form, in securities including, but 
not limited to, direct obligations of the United States of America, obligations guaranteed or insured 
by the United States of America, which, in the opinion of the Attorney General of the United 
States, are backed by its full faith and credit or represent its general obligations, or invested in 
indirect obligations of the United States of America, including, but not limited to, evidences of 
indebtedness issued, insured or guaranteed by such governmental agencies as the Federal Land 
Banks, Federal Intermediate Credit Banks, Banks for Cooperatives, Federal Home Loan Banks, 
Government National Mortgage Association, Farmers Home Administration, Federal Home Loan 
Mortgage Association, Small Business Administration, or Federal Housing Association; provided 
that all such deposits and investments shall be made in such a manner that the money required to 
be expended from such fund will be available at the proper time or times.  All interest and income 
derived from deposits and investments in such fund shall be credited to, and any losses debited to, 
such fund.  All such investments shall be sold promptly when necessary to prevent any default in 
connection with the Bonds. 

SECTION 11. Tax Levy.  To provide for the payment of the Debt Service Requirements 
on the Bonds being (i) the interest on the Bonds and (ii) a sinking fund for their redemption at 
Stated Maturity or a sinking fund of 2% (whichever amount shall be the greater), there shall be 
and there is hereby levied for the current year and each succeeding year thereafter while the Bonds 
or any interest thereon shall remain Outstanding, a sufficient tax, within the limitations prescribed 
by law, on each one hundred dollars’ valuation of taxable property in the City, adequate to pay 
such Debt Service Requirements, full allowance being made for delinquencies and costs of 
collection; said tax shall be assessed and collected each year and applied to the payment of the 
Debt Service Requirements, and the same shall not be diverted to any other purpose.  The taxes so 
levied and collected shall be paid into the Bond Fund and are thereafter pledged to the payment of 
the Bonds.  The City Commission hereby declares its purpose and intent to provide and levy a tax 
legally and fully sufficient to pay such Debt Service Requirements, it having been determined that 
the existing and available taxing authority of the City for such purpose is adequate to permit a 
legally sufficient tax in consideration of all other outstanding indebtedness and other obligations 
of the City. 

SECTION 12. Deposits to Bond Fund; Surplus Bond Proceeds.  The City hereby covenants 
and agrees to cause to be deposited in the Bond Fund prior to a principal and interest payment date 
for the Bonds, from the annual levy of an ad valorem tax or from other lawfully available funds, 
amounts sufficient to fully pay and discharge promptly each installment of interest and principal 
of the Bonds as the same accrues or matures or comes due by reason of Stated Maturity. 



82653382.5  -19- 

Accrued interest, if any, received from the Purchasers of the Bonds, along with any taxes 
collected pertaining to the Refunded Obligations, after the Closing Date, shall be deposited to the 
Bond Fund.  In addition, any surplus proceeds from the sale of the Bonds, including investment 
income thereon, not expended for authorized purposes shall be deposited in the Bond Fund, and 
such amounts so deposited shall reduce the sums otherwise required to be deposited in said fund 
from ad valorem taxes. 

SECTION 13. Security of Funds.  All money on deposit in the funds for which this 
Ordinance makes provision (except any portion thereof as may be at any time properly invested as 
provided herein) shall be secured in the manner and to the fullest extent required by the laws of 
the State of Texas for the security of public funds, and money on deposit in such funds shall be 
used only for the purposes permitted by this Ordinance. 

SECTION 14. Remedies in Event of Default.  In addition to all the rights and remedies 
provided by the laws of the State of Texas, the City covenants and agrees particularly that in the 
event the City (a) defaults in the payments to be made to the Bond Fund or (b) defaults in the 
observance or performance of any other of the covenants, conditions, or obligations set forth in 
this Ordinance, the Holders of any of the Bonds shall be entitled to seek a writ of mandamus issued 
by a court of proper jurisdiction compelling and requiring the governing body of the City and other 
officers of the City to observe and perform any covenant, condition, or obligation prescribed in 
this Ordinance. 

No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair 
any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or acquiescence 
therein, and every such right and power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may 
be deemed expedient.  The specific remedies herein provided shall be cumulative of all other 
existing remedies and the specification of such remedies shall not be deemed to be exclusive. 

SECTION 15. Notices to Holders; Waiver.  Wherever this Ordinance provides for notice 
to Holders of any event, such notice shall be sufficiently given (unless otherwise herein expressly 
provided) if in writing and sent by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, to the address 
of each Holder appearing in the Security Register at the close of business on the business day next 
preceding the mailing of such notice. 

In any case where notice to Holders is given by mail, neither the failure to mail such notice 
to any particular Holders, nor any defect in any notice so mailed, shall affect the sufficiency of 
such notice with respect to all other Holders.  Where this Ordinance provides for notice in any 
manner, such notice may be waived in writing by the Holder entitled to receive such notice, either 
before or after the event with respect to which such notice is given, and such waiver shall be the 
equivalent of such notice.  Waivers of notice by Holders shall be filed with the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, but such filing shall not be a condition precedent to the validity of any action 
taken in reliance upon such waiver. 

SECTION 16. Cancellation.  All Bonds surrendered for payment, redemption, transfer, 
exchange, or replacement, if surrendered to the Paying Agent/Registrar, shall be promptly canceled 
by it and, if surrendered to the City, shall be delivered to the Paying Agent/Registrar and, if not 
already canceled, shall be promptly canceled by the Paying Agent/Registrar.  The City may at any 



82653382.5  -20- 

time deliver to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation any Bonds previously certified or 
registered and delivered which the City may have acquired in any manner whatsoever, and all 
Bonds so delivered shall be promptly canceled by the Paying Agent/Registrar.  All canceled Bonds 
held by the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be destroyed as directed by the City. 

SECTION 17. Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost, and Stolen Bonds.  If (1) any mutilated Bond is 
surrendered to the Paying Agent/Registrar, or the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar receive 
evidence to their satisfaction of the destruction, loss, or theft of any Bond, and (2) there is delivered 
to the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar such security or indemnity as may be required to save 
each of them harmless, then, in the absence of notice to the City or the Paying Agent/Registrar that 
such Bond has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser, the City shall execute and, upon its request, 
the Paying Agent/Registrar shall register and deliver, in exchange for or in lieu of any such 
mutilated, destroyed, lost, or stolen Bond, a new Bond of the same Stated Maturity and interest 
rate and of like tenor and principal amount, bearing a number not contemporaneously Outstanding. 

In case any such mutilated, destroyed, lost, or stolen Bond has become or is about to 
become due and payable, the City in its discretion may, instead of issuing a new Bond, pay such 
Bond. 

Upon the issuance of any new Bond or payment in lieu thereof, under this Section, the City 
may require payment by the Holder of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental 
charge imposed in relation thereto and any other expenses and charges (including attorney’s fees 
and the fees and expenses of the Paying Agent/Registrar) connected therewith. 

Every new Bond issued pursuant to this Section in lieu of any mutilated, destroyed, lost, 
or stolen Bond shall constitute a replacement of the prior obligation of the City, whether or not the 
mutilated, destroyed, lost, or stolen Bond shall be at any time enforceable by anyone, and shall be 
entitled to all the benefits of this Ordinance equally and ratably with all other Outstanding Bonds. 

The provisions of this Section are exclusive and shall preclude (to the extent lawful) all 
other rights and remedies with respect to the replacement and payment of mutilated, destroyed, 
lost, or stolen Bonds. 

SECTION 18. Sale of Bonds – Authorization of Purchase Contract.  The Bonds authorized 
by this Ordinance are hereby sold by the City to Community National Bank, Hondo, Texas as the 
initial purchasers of the Bonds pursuant to a private placement (the Purchasers, and having all of 
the rights, benefits, and obligations of a Holder) in accordance with the provisions of the Purchase 
and Investment Letter, dated as of January 24, 2022, and between the City and the Purchasers, in 
substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by reference as a part 
of the Ordinance for all purposes, between the City and the Purchasers (the Purchase Contract).  
The Initial Bond shall be registered in the name of Community National Bank.  The pricing and 
terms of the sale of the Bonds are hereby found and determined to be the most advantageous 
reasonably obtainable by the City.  Each Authorized Official is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute the Purchase Contract for and on behalf of the City and as the act and deed of the City 
Commission, and in regard to the approval and execution of the Purchase Contract, the City 
Commission hereby finds, determines and declares that the representations, warranties, and 
agreements of the City contained in the Purchase Contract are true and correct in all material 



82653382.5  -21- 

respects and shall be honored and performed by the City.  Delivery of the Bonds to the Purchasers 
shall occur as soon as practicable after the adoption of this Ordinance, upon payment therefor in 
accordance with the terms of the Purchase Contract. 

SECTION 19. Escrow Deposit Letter Approval and Execution; Proceeds of Sale; 
Contribution by City.  The Escrow Deposit Letter dated as of January 24, 2022 to be effective 
upon the initial delivery of the Bonds to the Purchasers (the Agreement) between the City and The 
Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Dallas, Texas (the Escrow Agent), attached 
hereto as Exhibit C and incorporated herein by reference as a part of this Ordinance for all 
purposes, is hereby approved as to form and content, and such Agreement in substantially the form 
and substance attached hereto, together with such changes or revisions as may be necessary to 
accomplish the refunding or benefit the City, is hereby authorized to be executed by the Mayor, 
Mayor Pro Tem, and City Secretary and on behalf of the City and as the act and deed of this City 
Commission; and such Agreement as executed by said officials shall be deemed approved by the 
City Commission and constitute the Agreement herein approved. 

Furthermore, any Authorized Official, or any one or more of said officials, and Bond 
Counsel in cooperation with the Escrow Agent are hereby authorized and directed to make the 
necessary arrangements for the purchase of the Federal Securities referenced in the Agreement and 
the initial delivery thereof to the Escrow Agent on the day of delivery of the Bonds to the 
Purchasers for deposit to the credit of the “CITY OF PAMPA, TEXAS GENERAL OBLIGATION 
REFUNDING BOND SERIES 2022 ESCROW FUND” (the Escrow Fund), including the 
execution of the subscription forms for the purchase and issuance of the “United States Treasury 
Securities - State and Local Government Series”, if any, for deposit to the Escrow Fund; all as 
contemplated and provided by the provisions of the Act, this Ordinance, and the Agreement. 

Immediately following the delivery of the Bonds, the proceeds of sale along with a cash 
contribution, if any, from the City (less certain costs of issuance, and accrued interest, if any, 
received from the Purchasers of the Bonds) shall be deposited with the Escrow Agent for 
application and disbursement in accordance with the provisions of the Agreement.  The proceeds 
of sale of the Bonds not so deposited with the Escrow Agent for the refunding of the Refunded 
Obligations shall be disbursed for payment of costs of issuance and deposited with the place of 
payment (of the Refunded Obligations) in an account in the name of the City and applied for the 
purposes of providing for the payment of the costs and expenses incurred in connection therewith 
or deposited in the Bond Fund for the Bonds, all in accordance with written instructions from any 
Authorized Officials. 

SECTION 20. Redemption of Refunded Obligations.  The Refunded Obligations 
referenced in the preamble hereof become subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities at 
the price of par, premium, if any, and accrued interest to the date of redemption.  The Mayor or 
City Secretary shall give written notice to the paying agent/registrar for the Refunded Obligations 
that the Refunded Obligations have been called for redemption, and the City Commission orders 
that such obligations are called for redemption on the date set forth on Schedule I attached to this 
Ordinance, and such order to redeem the Refunded Obligations on such date shall be irrevocable 
upon the delivery of the Bonds.  A copy of each notice of redemption pertaining to the Refunded 
Obligations is attached to this Ordinance as Exhibit D and is incorporated herein by reference for 
all purposes.  The paying agent for the Refunded Obligations is authorized and instructed to 



82653382.5  -22- 

provide notice of these redemptions to the holders of the Refunded Obligations in the form and 
manner described in the ordinances authorizing the issuance of the Refunded Obligations. 

SECTION 21. Covenants to Maintain Tax-Exempt Status. 

A. Definitions.  When used in this Section, the following terms have the following 
meanings: 

Closing Date means the date of physical delivery of the Initial Bond in exchange 
for the payment in full by the Purchasers. 

Code means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended by all legislation, if 
any, effective on or before the Closing Date. 

Computation Date has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-1(b) of the 
Regulations. 

Gross Proceeds means any proceeds as defined in Section 1.148-1(b) of the 
Regulations, and any replacement proceeds as defined in Section 1.148-1(c) of the 
Regulations, of the Bonds. 

Investment has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-1(b) of the Regulations. 

Nonpurpose Investment means any investment property, as defined in 
section 148(b) of the Code, in which Gross Proceeds of the Bonds are invested and which 
is not acquired to carry out the governmental purposes of the Bonds. 

Rebate Amount has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-1(b) of the Regulations. 

Regulations means any proposed, temporary, or final Income Tax Regulations 
issued pursuant to sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code, and 103 of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1954, which are applicable to the Bonds.  Any reference to any specific 
Regulation shall also mean, as appropriate, any proposed, temporary or final Income Tax 
Regulation designed to supplement, amend or replace the specific Regulation referenced. 

Yield of 

(1) any Investment has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-5 of the 
Regulations; and 

(2) the Bonds means the yield on the Bonds as calculated pursuant to Section 
1.148-4 of the Regulations. 

B. Not to Cause Interest to Become Taxable.  The City shall not use, permit the use 
of, or omit to use Gross Proceeds or any other amounts (or any property the acquisition, 
construction or improvement of which is to be financed or refinanced directly or indirectly with 
Gross Proceeds) in a manner which if made or omitted, respectively, would cause the interest on 
any Bond to become includable in the gross income, as defined in section 61 of the Code, of the 



82653382.5  -23- 

owner thereof for federal income tax purposes.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, 
unless and until the City receives a written opinion of counsel nationally recognized in the field of 
municipal bond law to the effect that failure to comply with such covenant will not adversely affect 
the exemption from federal income tax of the interest on any Bond, the City shall comply with 
each of the specific covenants in this Section. 

C. No Private Use or Private Payments.  Except to the extent that it will not cause the 
Bonds to become “private activity bonds” within the meaning of section 141 of the Code and the 
Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall at all times prior to the last Stated Maturity of 
Bonds: 

(1) exclusively own, operate and possess all property the acquisition, 
construction or improvement of which is to be financed or refinanced directly or indirectly 
with Gross Proceeds of the Bonds (including property financed with Gross Proceeds of the 
Refunded Obligations), and not use or permit the use of such Gross Proceeds (including all 
contractual arrangements with terms different than those applicable to the general public) 
or any property acquired, constructed or improved with such Gross Proceeds in any activity 
carried on by any person or entity (including the United States or any agency, department 
and instrumentality thereof) other than a state or local government, unless such use is solely 
as a member of the general public; and 

(2) not directly or indirectly impose or accept any charge or other payment by 
any person or entity who is treated as using Gross Proceeds of the Bonds or any property 
the acquisition, construction or improvement of which is to be financed or refinanced 
directly or indirectly with such Gross Proceeds (including property financed with Gross 
Proceeds of the Refunded Obligations), other than taxes of general application within the 
City or interest earned on investments acquired with such Gross Proceeds pending 
application for their intended purposes. 

D. No Private Loan.  Except to the extent that it will not cause the Bonds to become 
“private activity bonds” within the meaning of section 141 of the Code and the Regulations and 
rulings thereunder, the City shall not use Gross Proceeds of the Bonds to make or finance loans to 
any person or entity other than a state or local government.  For purposes of the foregoing 
covenant, such Gross Proceeds are considered to be “loaned” to a person or entity if:  (1) property 
acquired, constructed or improved with such Gross Proceeds is sold or leased to such person or 
entity in a transaction which creates a debt for federal income tax purposes; (2) capacity in or 
service from such property is committed to such person or entity under a take-or-pay, output or 
similar contract or arrangement; or (3) indirect benefits, or burdens and benefits of ownership, of 
such Gross Proceeds or any property acquired, constructed or improved with such Gross Proceeds 
are otherwise transferred in a transaction which is the economic equivalent of a loan. 

E. Not to Invest at Higher Yield.  Except to the extent that it will not cause the Bonds 
to become “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of section 148 of the Code and the Regulations 
and rulings thereunder, the City shall not at any time prior to the final Stated Maturity of the Bonds 
directly or indirectly invest Gross Proceeds in any Investment, if as a result of such investment the 
Yield of any Investment acquired with Gross Proceeds, whether then held or previously disposed 
of, materially exceeds the Yield of the Bonds. 



82653382.5  -24- 

F. Not Federally Guaranteed.  Except to the extent permitted by section 149(b) of the 
Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not take or omit to take any action 
which would cause the Bonds to be federally guaranteed within the meaning of section 149(b) of 
the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder. 

G. Information Report.  The City shall timely file the information required by 
section 149(e) of the Code with the Secretary of the Treasury on Form 8038-G or such other form 
and in such place as the Secretary may prescribe. 

H. Rebate of Arbitrage Profits.  Except to the extent otherwise provided in 
section 148(f) of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder: 

(1) The City shall account for all Gross Proceeds (including all receipts, 
expenditures and investments thereof) on its books of account separately and apart from 
all other funds (and receipts, expenditures and investments thereof) and shall retain all 
records of accounting for at least six years after the day on which the last Outstanding Bond 
is discharged.  However, to the extent permitted by law, the City may commingle Gross 
Proceeds of the Bonds with other money of the City, provided that the City separately 
accounts for each receipt and expenditure of Gross Proceeds and the obligations acquired 
therewith. 

(2) Not less frequently than each Computation Date, the City shall calculate the 
Rebate Amount in accordance with rules set forth in section 148(f) of the Code and the 
Regulations and rulings thereunder.  The City shall maintain such calculations with its 
official transcript of proceedings relating to the issuance of the Bonds until six years after 
the final Computation Date. 

(3) As additional consideration for the purchase of the Bonds by the Purchasers 
and the loan of the money represented thereby and in order to induce such purchase by 
measures designed to insure the excludability of the interest thereon from the gross income 
of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes, the City shall pay to the United 
States out of the Bond Fund or its general fund, as permitted by applicable Texas statute, 
regulation or opinion of the Attorney General of the State of Texas, the amount that when 
added to the future value of previous rebate payments made for the Bonds equals (i) in the 
case of a Final Computation Date as defined in Section 1.148-3(e)(2) of the Regulations, 
one hundred percent (100%) of the Rebate Amount on such date; and (ii) in the case of any 
other Computation Date, ninety percent (90%) of the Rebate Amount on such date.  In all 
cases, the rebate payments shall be made at the times, in the installments, to the place and 
in the manner as is or may be required by section 148(f) of the Code and the Regulations 
and rulings thereunder, and shall be accompanied by Form 8038-T or such other forms and 
information as is or may be required by section 148(f) of the Code and the Regulations and 
rulings thereunder. 

(4) The City shall exercise reasonable diligence to assure that no errors are 
made in the calculations and payments required by paragraphs (2) and (3), and if an error 
is made, to discover and promptly correct such error within a reasonable amount of time 
thereafter (and in all events within one hundred eighty (180) days after discovery of the 



82653382.5  -25- 

error), including payment to the United States of any additional Rebate Amount owed to 
it, interest thereon, and any penalty imposed under Section 1.148-3(h) of the Regulations. 

I. Not to Divert Arbitrage Profits.  Except to the extent permitted by section 148 of 
the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not, at any time prior to the 
earlier of the Stated Maturity or final payment of the Bonds, enter into any transaction that reduces 
the amount required to be paid to the United States pursuant to Subsection H of this Section 
because such transaction results in a smaller profit or a larger loss than would have resulted if the 
transaction had been at arm’s length and had the Yield of the Bonds not been relevant to either 
party. 

J. Bonds Not Hedge Bonds. 

(1) At the time the original bonds refunded by the Bonds were issued, the City 
reasonably expected to spend at least 85% of the spendable proceeds of such bonds within 
three years after such bonds were issued. 

(2) Not more than 50% of the proceeds of the original bonds refunded by the 
Bonds were invested in Nonpurpose Investments having a substantially guaranteed Yield 
for a period of 4 years or more. 

K. Current Refunding of the Refunded Obligations.  The Bonds are being issued to 
refund the Refunded Obligations, and the Bonds will be issued, and certain proceeds thereof used, 
within 90 days after the Closing Date for the redemption of the Refunded Obligations.  In the 
issuance of the Bonds, the City has employed no “device” to obtain a material financial advantage 
(based on arbitrage), within the meaning of section 149(d)(4) of the Code, apart from savings 
attributable to lower interest rates.  The City has complied with the covenants, representations, and 
warranties contained in the documents executed in connection with the issuance of the Refunded 
Obligations.  Accordingly, the City expects to invest the Bond proceeds to be used to refund the 
Refunded Obligations without regard to Yield restrictions. 

L. Elections.  The City hereby directs and authorizes any Authorized Official, either 
or any combination of the foregoing, to make such elections in the Certificate as to Tax Exemption 
or similar or other appropriate certificate, form, or document permitted or required pursuant to the 
provisions of the Code or the Regulations, as they deem necessary or appropriate in connection 
with the Bonds.  Such elections shall be deemed to be made on the Closing Date. 

M. Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations.  Section 265 of the Code provides, in general, 
that interest expense to acquire or carry tax-exempt obligations is not deductible from the gross 
income of the owner of such obligations.  In addition, section 265 of the Code generally disallows 
100% of any deduction for interest expense which is incurred by “financial institutions” described 
in such section and is allocable, as computed in such section, to tax-exempt interest on obligations 
acquired after August 7, 1986.  Section 265(b) of the Code provides an exception to this interest 
disallowance rule for financial institutions, stating that such disallowance does not apply to interest 
expense allocable to tax-exempt obligations (other than private activity bonds that are not qualified 
501(c)(3) bonds) which are properly designated by an issuer as "qualified tax-exempt obligations.”  
An issuer may designate obligations as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” only if the amount of 



82653382.5  -26- 

the issue of which they are a part, when added to the amount of all other tax-exempt obligations 
(other than private activity bonds that are not qualified 501(c)(3) obligations and other than certain 
current refunding bonds) issued or reasonably anticipated to be issued by the issuer during the 
same calendar year, does not exceed $10,000,000.  A tax-exempt obligation may be “deemed-
designated” as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” and receive the same treatment and not count 
against the City’s annual $10 million limit to the extent the amount of the City does not exceed the 
amount of the Refunded Obligations, (i) the Bonds are a current refunding of the Refunded 
Obligations, (ii) the Refunded Obligations were designated as a “qualified tax-exempt obligation”, 
(iii) the weighted average maturity of the Bonds does not exceed the remaining weighted average 
maturity of the Refunded Obligations, (iv) the amount of the Bonds does not exceed $10 million, 
and (v) the maturity date of the Bonds is not later than 30 years after the date the original “qualified 
tax-exempt obligation” was issued. 

 The City will designate the Bonds as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” or the Bonds will 
be deemed designated as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” within the meaning of section 265(b) 
of the Code.  In furtherance of that designation, the City will covenant to take such action that 
would assure, or to refrain from such action that would adversely affect, the treatment of the Bonds 
as “qualified tax-exempt obligations.” 
 

SECTION 22. Control and Custody of Bonds.  The Mayor shall be and is hereby 
authorized to take and have charge of all necessary orders and records pending investigation by 
the Attorney General of the State of Texas and shall take and have charge and control of the Bonds 
pending their approval by the Attorney General, the registration thereof by the Comptroller of 
Public Accounts and the delivery of the Bonds to the Purchasers. 

Furthermore, any Authorized Official, either or all, are hereby authorized and directed to 
furnish and execute such documents relating to the City and its financial affairs as may be 
necessary for the issuance of the Bonds, the approval of the Attorney General and their registration 
by the Comptroller of Public Accounts and, together with the City’s financial advisors, Bond 
Counsel, and the Paying Agent/Registrar, make the necessary arrangements for the delivery of the 
Initial Bond to the Purchasers and the initial exchange thereof for definitive Bonds. 

SECTION 23. Satisfaction of Obligation of City.  If the City shall pay or cause to be paid, 
or there shall otherwise be paid to the Holders, the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on 
the Bonds, at the times and in the manner stipulated in this Ordinance, then the pledge of taxes 
levied under this Ordinance and all covenants, agreements, and other obligations of the City to the 
Holders shall thereupon cease, terminate, and be discharged and satisfied. 

Bonds, or any principal amount(s) thereof, shall be deemed to have been paid within the 
meaning and with the effect expressed above in this Section when (i) money sufficient to pay in 
full such Bonds or the principal amount(s) thereof on or prior to Stated Maturity, or to the 
redemption date therefor, together with all interest due thereon, shall have been irrevocably 
deposited with and held in trust by the Paying Agent/Registrar, or an authorized escrow agent, 
and/or (ii) Government Securities shall have been irrevocably deposited in trust with the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, or an authorized escrow agent, which Government Securities mature as to 
principal and interest in such amounts and at such times as will insure the availability, without 
reinvestment, of sufficient money, together with any money deposited therewith, if any, to pay 



82653382.5  -27- 

when due the principal of and interest on such Bonds, or the principal amount(s) thereof, at the 
Stated Maturity thereof or (if notice of redemption has been duly given or waived or if irrevocable 
arrangements therefor acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar have been made) the redemption 
date thereof for the Bonds.  In the event of a defeasance of the Bonds, the City shall deliver a 
certificate from its financial advisor, the Paying Agent/Registrar, an independent accounting firm, 
or another qualified third party concerning the deposit of cash and/or Government Securities to 
pay, when due, the principal of, redemption premium (if any), and interest due on any defeased 
Bonds.  As and to the extent applicable, if at all, the City covenants that no deposit of money or 
Government Securities will be made under this Section and no use made of any such deposit which 
would cause the Bonds to be treated as arbitrage bonds within the meaning of section 148 of the 
Code (as defined in Section 21 hereof). 

Any money so deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar, and all income from 
Government Securities held in trust by the Paying Agent/Registrar, or an authorized escrow agent, 
pursuant to this Section which is not required for the payment of the Bonds, or any principal 
amount(s) thereof, or interest thereon with respect to which such money has been so deposited 
shall be remitted to the City or deposited as directed by the City.  Furthermore, any money held 
by the Paying Agent/Registrar for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds and 
remaining unclaimed for a period of three (3) years after the Stated Maturity or applicable 
redemption date of the Bonds, such money was deposited and is held in trust to pay shall upon the 
request of the City be remitted to the City against a written receipt therefor, subject to the 
unclaimed property laws of the State of Texas. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, it is hereby provided 
that any determination not to redeem defeased Bonds that is made in conjunction with the payment 
arrangements specified in subsection (i) or (ii) above shall not be irrevocable, provided that:  (1) in 
the proceedings providing for such defeasance, the City expressly reserves the right to call the 
defeased Bonds for redemption; (2) gives notice of the reservation of that right to the owners of 
the defeased Bonds immediately following the defeasance; (3) directs that notice of the reservation 
be included in any redemption notice that it authorizes; and (4) at the time of the redemption, 
satisfies the conditions of (i) or (ii) above with respect to such defeased debt as though it was being 
defeased at the time of the exercise of the option to redeem the defeased Bonds, after taking the 
redemption into account in determining the sufficiency of the provisions made for the payment of 
the defeased Bonds.  

SECTION 24. Printed Opinion.  The Purchasers’ obligation to accept delivery of the Bonds 
is subject to its being furnished a final opinion of Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP, Austin, Texas, 
as Bond Counsel, approving certain legal matters as to the  Bonds, said opinion to be dated and 
delivered as of the date of initial delivery and payment for such Bonds.  Printing of a true and 
correct copy of said opinion on the reverse side of each of the Bonds, with appropriate certificate 
pertaining thereto executed by facsimile signature of the City Secretary of the City is hereby 
approved and authorized. 

SECTION 25. CUSIP Numbers.  CUSIP numbers may be printed or typed on the definitive 
Bonds.  It is expressly provided, however, that the presence or absence of CUSIP numbers on the 
definitive Bonds shall be of no significance or effect as regards the legality thereof, and neither 



82653382.5  -28- 

the City nor attorneys approving said Bonds as to legality are to be held responsible for CUSIP 
numbers incorrectly printed or typed on the definitive Bonds. 

SECTION 26. Effect of Headings.  The Section headings herein are for convenience only 
and shall not affect the construction hereof. 

SECTION 27. Ordinance a Contract; Amendments - Outstanding Bonds.  The City 
acknowledges that the covenants and obligations of the City herein contained are a material 
inducement to the purchase of the Bonds.  This Ordinance shall constitute a contract with the 
Holders from time to time, shall be binding on the City and its successors and assigns, and shall 
not be amended or repealed by the City so long as any Bond remains Outstanding except as 
permitted in this Section.  The City may, without the consent of or notice to any Holders, from 
time to time and at any time, amend this Ordinance in any manner not detrimental to the interests 
of the Holders, including the curing of any ambiguity, inconsistency, or formal defect or omission 
herein.  In addition, the City may, with the written consent of Holders holding a majority in 
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding affected thereby, amend, add to, or 
rescind any of the provisions of this Ordinance; provided; however, that, without the consent of 
all Holders of Outstanding Bonds, no such amendment, addition, or rescission shall (1) extend the 
time or times of payment of the principal of, the redemption price therefore, and interest on the 
Bonds, reduce the principal amount thereof, or the rate of interest thereon, or in any other way 
modify the terms of payment of the principal of, or interest on the Bonds, (2) give any preference 
to any Bond over any other Bond, or (3) reduce the aggregate principal amount of Bonds required 
for consent to any such amendment, addition, or rescission. 

SECTION 28. Benefits of Ordinance.  Nothing in this Ordinance, expressed or implied, is 
intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person other than the City, Bond Counsel, Paying 
Agent/Registrar, and the Holders, any right, remedy, or claim, legal or equitable, under or by 
reason of this Ordinance or any provision hereof, this Ordinance and all its provisions being 
intended to be and being for the sole and exclusive benefit of the City, Bond Counsel, the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, and the Holders. 

SECTION 29. Inconsistent Provisions.  All ordinances and resolutions, or parts thereof, 
which are in conflict or inconsistent with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to 
the extent of such conflict, and the provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as 
to the matters ordained herein. 

SECTION 30. Construction of Terms.  If appropriate in the context of this Ordinance, 
words of the singular number shall be considered to include the plural, words of the plural number 
shall be considered to include the singular, and words of the masculine, feminine or neuter gender 
shall be considered to include the other genders. 

SECTION 31. Governing Law.  This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas and the United States of America. 

SECTION 32. Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof 
to any person or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance and the 
application of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and 



82653382.5  -29- 

the City Commission hereby declares that this Ordinance would have been enacted without such 
invalid provision. 

SECTION 33. Incorporation of Preamble Recitals.  The recitals contained in the preamble 
hereof are hereby found to be true, and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for 
all purposes and are adopted as a part of the judgment and findings of the City Commission. 

SECTION 34. Authorization of Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement.  The City 
Commission of the City hereby finds and determines that it is in the best interest of the City to 
authorize the execution of a Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement concerning the payment, 
exchange, registration, and transferability of the Bonds.  A copy of the Paying Agent/Registrar 
Agreement is attached hereto, in substantially final form, as Exhibit A and is incorporated by 
reference to the provisions of this Ordinance. 

SECTION 35. Public Meeting.  It is officially found, determined, and declared that the 
meeting at which this Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, 
place, and subject matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this 
Ordinance, was given, all as required by Chapter 551, as amended, Texas Government Code. 

SECTION 36. Unavailability of Authorized Publication.  If, because of the temporary or 
permanent suspension of any newspaper, journal, or other publication, or, for any reason, 
publication of notice cannot be made meeting any requirements herein established, any notice 
required to be published by the provisions of this Ordinance shall be given in such other manner 
and at such time or times as in the judgment of the City or of the Paying Agent/Registrar shall 
most effectively approximate such required publication and the giving of such notice in such 
manner shall for all purposes of this Ordinance be deemed to be in compliance with the 
requirements for publication thereof. 

SECTION 37. No Recourse Against City Officials.  No recourse shall be had for the 
payment of principal of, premium, if any, or interest on any Bond or for any claim based thereon 
or on this Ordinance against any official of the City or any person executing any Bond. 

SECTION 38. Continuing Disclosure Undertaking. 

Definitions. 

As used in this Section, the following terms have the meanings ascribed to such terms 
below: 

Rule means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time. 

SEC means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. 

The Bonds are being sold pursuant to a private placement with the Purchasers, in 
denominations of generally $100,000 or any integral multiple of $5,000 in excess thereof, to less 
than thirty-five sophisticated investors, and therefore the Rule is not applicable to the offering of 
the Bonds.  Accordingly, no contract to provide continuing disclosure information after the 
issuance of the Bonds has been made by the City with investors. 



82653382.5  -30- 

SECTION 39. Book-Entry Only System. 

The Bonds may initially be registered so as to participate in a securities depository system 
(the DTC System) with the Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, or any successor 
entity thereto (DTC), as set forth herein.  Each Stated Maturity of the Bonds shall be issued 
(following cancellation of the Initial Bond described in Section 7) in the form of a separate single 
definitive Bond.  Upon issuance, the ownership of each such Bond shall be registered in the name 
of Cede & Co., as the nominee of DTC, and all of the Outstanding Bonds shall be registered in the 
name of Cede & Co., as the nominee of DTC.  The City and the Paying Agent/Registrar are 
authorized to execute, deliver, and take the actions set forth in such letters to or agreements with 
DTC as shall be necessary to effectuate the DTC System, including the Letter of Representations 
attached hereto as Exhibit E (the Representation Letter). 

With respect to the Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, the 
City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to any broker-dealer, 
bank, or other financial institution for which DTC holds the Bonds from time to time as securities 
depository (a Depository Participant) or to any person on behalf of whom such a Depository 
Participant holds an interest in the Bonds (an Indirect Participant).  Without limiting the 
immediately preceding sentence, the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no 
responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the accuracy of the records of DTC, Cede & Co., or 
any Depository Participant with respect to any ownership interest in the Bonds, (ii) the delivery to 
any Depository Participant or any other person, other than a registered owner of the Bonds, as 
shown on the Security Register, of any notice with respect to the Bonds, including any notice of 
redemption, or (iii) the delivery to any Depository Participant or any Indirect Participant or any 
other Person, other than a Holder of a Bond, of any amount with respect to principal of, premium, 
if any, or interest on the Bonds.  While in the DTC System, no person other than Cede & Co., or 
any successor thereto, as nominee for DTC, shall receive a bond certificate evidencing the 
obligation of the City to make payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest pursuant to this 
Ordinance.  Upon delivery by DTC to the Paying Agent/Registrar of written notice to the effect 
that DTC has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., and subject to the 
provisions in this Ordinance with respect to interest checks or drafts being mailed to the Holder, 
the word “Cede & Co.” in this Ordinance shall refer to such new nominee of DTC. 

In the event that (a) the City determines that DTC is incapable of discharging its 
responsibilities described herein and in the Representation Letter, (b) the Representation Letter 
shall be terminated for any reason, or (c) DTC or the City determines that it is in the best interest 
of the beneficial owners of the Bonds that they be able to obtain certificated Bonds, the City shall 
notify the Paying Agent/Registrar, DTC, and the Depository Participants of the availability within 
a reasonable period of time through DTC of bond certificates, and the Bonds shall no longer be 
restricted to being registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC.  At that time, the 
City may determine that the Bonds shall be registered in the name of and deposited with a 
successor depository operating a securities depository system, as may be acceptable to the City, or 
such depository’s agent or designee, and if the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar do not select 
such alternate securities depository system then the Bonds may be registered in whatever name or 
names the Holders of Bonds transferring or exchanging the Bonds shall designate, in accordance 
with the provisions hereof. 



82653382.5  -31- 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, so long as any Bond 
is registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments with respect to principal 
of, premium, if any, and interest on such Bond and all notices with respect to such Bond shall be 
made and given, respectively, in the manner provided in the Representation Letter. 

SECTION 40. Further Procedures.  The officers and employees of the City are hereby 
authorized, empowered and directed from time to time and at any time to do and perform all such 
acts and things and to execute, acknowledge and deliver in the name and under the corporate seal 
and on behalf of the City all such instruments, whether or not herein mentioned, as may be 
necessary or desirable in order to carry out the terms and provisions of this Ordinance, the initial 
sale and delivery of the Bonds, the Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement, the Purchase Contract, and 
the Agreement.  In addition, prior to the initial delivery of the Bonds, any Authorized Official and 
Bond Counsel are hereby authorized and directed to approve any technical changes or corrections 
to this Ordinance or to any of the instruments authorized and approved by this Ordinance necessary 
in order to (i) correct any ambiguity or mistake or properly or more completely document the 
transactions contemplated and approved by this Ordinance, (ii) obtain a rating from any of the 
national bond rating agencies, or (iii) obtain the approval of the Bonds by the Texas Attorney 
General’s office.  In case any officer of the City whose signature shall appear on any certificate 
shall cease to be such officer before the delivery of such certificate, such signature shall 
nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes the same as if such officer had remained in 
office until such delivery. 

SECTION 41. Accounting Reports. The City shall provide annually to the Purchasers, for 
so long as they are the holders of the Bonds, within 270 days after the end of each fiscal year 
ending in or after 2022, financial information and operating date with respect to the City; provided 
that such financial statements so to be provided shall be (1) prepared in accordance with the 
generally accepted accounting principles, or such other accounting principles as the City may be 
required to employ from time to time pursuant to Texas law or regulations, and (2) audited, if the 
City commissions an audit of such statements and the audit is completed within the period during 
which they must be provided.  If the audit of such financial statements is not complete within such 
period, then the City shall provide (1) unaudited financial statements for the applicable fiscal year 
within 270 days after the end of such year, and (2) audited financial statements for the applicable 
fiscal year to the Purchasers when and if the audit report on such statements become available. 

SECTION 42. City’s Consent to Provide Information and Documentation to the Texas 
MAC.  The Municipal Advisory Council of Texas (the Texas MAC), a non-profit membership 
corporation organized exclusively for non-profit purposes described in section 501(c)(6) of the 
Internal Revenue Code and which serves as a comprehensive financial information repository 
regarding municipal debt issuers in Texas, requires provision of written documentation regarding 
the issuance of municipal debt by the issuers thereof.  In support of the purpose of the Texas MAC 
and in compliance with applicable law, the City hereby consents to and authorizes any Authorized 
Official, Bond Counsel to the City, and/or Financial Advisor to the City to provide to the Texas 
MAC information and documentation requested by the Texas MAC relating to the Bonds; 
provided, however, that no such information and documentation shall be provided prior to the 
Closing Date.  This consent and authorization relates only to information and documentation that 
is a part of the public record concerning the issuance of the Bonds. 



82653382.5  -32- 

SECTION 43. Contract with Financial Advisor.  The City Commission authorizes any 
Authorized Official, or the designee thereof, to take all actions necessary to execute any necessary 
financial advisory contracts with SAMCO Capital Markets, Inc., as the financial advisor to the 
City (the Financial Advisor).  The City understands that under applicable federal securities laws 
and regulations that the City must have a contractual arrangement with its Financial Advisor 
relating to the sale, issuance, and delivery of the Bonds.   

SECTION 44. Effective Date.  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 1201.028, as 
amended, Texas Government Code, this Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon adoption, 
notwithstanding any provision in the City’s Home Rule Charter to the contrary concerning a 
multiple reading requirement for the adoption of ordinances. 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.] 
 



 Signature Page to the Ordinance 
 S-1 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on the 24th day of January, 2022. 

CITY OF PAMPA, TEXAS 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

      
City Secretary 

 

(CITY SEAL) 

 

 

 

 

 



82653382.5  Index 

INDEX TO SCHEDULE AND EXHIBITS 

 

 

 

 

Schedule I ...................................................... Table of Refunded Obligations 

Exhibit A ....................................................... Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement 

Exhibit B ....................................................... Purchase Contract 

Exhibit C ....................................................... Escrow Deposit Letter 

Exhibit D ....................................................... Notice of Redemption 

Exhibit E ....................................................... DTC Letter of Representations 

 



82653382.5  Schedule I 

Schedule I 

Refunded Obligations 

City of Pampa, Texas General Obligation Bonds, Series 2012”, dated 
August 1, 2012, in the original principal amount of $2,970,000, stated to 
mature on June 1 in each of the years 2023 and 2024, June 1, 2026, June 1, 
2028, June 1, 2030, and June 1, 2032, in the aggregate principal amount of 
$2,100,000, to be redeemed on June 1, 2022. 



82653382.5  A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement 

See Tab No. __ 



82653382.5  B-1 

EXHIBIT B 

Purchase Contract 

See Tab No. __ 



82653382.5  C-1 

EXHIBIT C 

Escrow Deposit Letter 

See Tab No. __ 



82653382.5  D-1 

EXHIBIT D 

Notice of Redemption 

See Tab No. __ 



82653382.5  E-1 

EXHIBIT E 

DTC Letter of Representations 

See Tab No. __ 

 



82653384.3 

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT 

THIS PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT entered into as of January 24, 2022 
(this Agreement) is between the City of Pampa, Texas (the Issuer) and Community National Bank, 
Hondo, Texas, a national banking association duly organized and existing under the laws of the 
United States of America and authorized to transact business in the State of Texas (the Bank). 

RECITALS OF THE ISSUER 

The Issuer has duly authorized and provided for the issuance of its CITY OF PAMPA, 
TEXAS GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2022” (the Securities), 
dated March 1, 2022 in the aggregate principal amount of $___________ to be issued as registered 
securities without coupons; 

All things necessary to make the Securities the valid obligations of the Issuer, in accordance 
with their terms, will be taken upon the issuance and delivery thereof; 

The Issuer is desirous that the Bank act as the Paying Agent of the Issuer in paying the 
principal, premium (if any) and interest on the Securities, in accordance with the terms thereof, 
and that the Bank act as Registrar for the Securities; 

The Issuer has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Agreement; and all things 
necessary to make this Agreement the valid agreement of the Issuer, in accordance with its terms, 
have been done. 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed as follows: 

ARTICLE ONE 
APPOINTMENT OF BANK AS 

PAYING AGENT AND REGISTRAR 

Section 1.01 Appointment. 

The Issuer hereby appoints the Bank to act as Paying Agent with respect to the Securities 
in order to pay, when due, the principal, premium (if any), and interest on all or any of the 
Securities to the Holders of the Securities, all in accordance with this Agreement and the Ordinance 
(hereinafter defined). 

The Issuer hereby appoints the Bank as Registrar with respect to the Securities. 

The Bank hereby accepts its appointment, and agrees to act, as the Paying Agent and the 
Registrar. 

Section 1.02 Compensation. 

As compensation for the Bank’s services as Paying Agent/Registrar, the Issuer hereby 
agrees to pay the Bank the fees and amounts set forth in Annex A hereto; provided, however, 
notwithstanding anything herein or in Annex A to the contrary, the aggregate value of this 



82653384.3 -2- 

Agreement shall not exceed the dollar limitation set forth in Section 2271.002(a)(2) of the Texas 
Government Code or Section 2274.002(a)(2) of the Texas Government Code.  The Issuer 
covenants to provide notice to the Bank upon any change in the Issuer’s Fiscal Year within ten 
(10) business days of the governing body of the Issuer’s decision to change the Fiscal Year of the 
Issuer. 

In addition, the Issuer agrees to reimburse the Bank upon its request for all reasonable 
expenses, disbursements, and advances incurred or made by the Bank in accordance with any of 
the provisions hereof (including the reasonable compensation and the expenses and disbursements 
of its agents and counsel). 

ARTICLE TWO 
DEFINITIONS 

Section 2.01 Definitions. 

For all purposes of this Agreement, except as otherwise expressly provided or unless the 
context otherwise requires, the following terms, whenever the same appears herein without 
qualifying language, are defined to mean as follows: 

Acceleration Date of any Security means the date on and after which the principal 
or any or all installments of interest, or both, are due and payable on any Security which 
has become accelerated, to the extent permitted by law, pursuant to the terms of the 
Security. 

Bank Office means the corporate trust office of the Bank set forth on the signature 
page of this agreement.  The Bank will notify the Issuer, in writing, of any change in 
location of the Bank Office. 

Fiscal Year means the fiscal year of the Issuer, which currently begins on October 1 
and ends on September 30 of each year. 

Holder and Security Holder each means a Person in whose name a Security is 
registered in the Security Register. 

Issuer Request and Issuer Order each means a written request or order signed in 
the name of the Issuer by the Mayor or the /City Secretary of the Issuer or the City Manager 
and delivered to the Bank. 

Legal Holiday means a day on which the Bank is required or authorized to be 
closed. 

Ordinance means the resolution, order, or ordinance of the governing body of the 
Issuer pursuant to which the Securities are issued, certified by the City Secretary or any 
other officer of the Issuer, and delivered to the Bank. 



82653384.3 -3- 

Person means any individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, 
joint stock company, trust, unincorporated organization or government or any agency or 
political subdivision of a government. 

Predecessor Securities of any particular Security means every previous Security 
evidencing all or a portion of the same obligation as that evidenced by such particular 
Security (and, for the purpose of this definition, any mutilated, lost, destroyed, or stolen 
Security for which a replacement Security has been registered and delivered in lieu thereof 
pursuant to Section 4.06 hereof and the Ordinance). 

Record Date means the Record Date as defined in the Ordinance. 

Redemption Date when used with respect to any Security to be redeemed means the 
date fixed for such redemption pursuant to the terms of the Ordinance. 

Responsible Officer when used with respect to the Bank means the Chairman or 
Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors, the Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Executive 
Committee of the Board of Directors, the President, any Vice President, the Secretary, any 
Assistant Secretary, the Treasurer, any Assistant Treasurer, any Trust Officer or Assistant 
Trust Officer, or any other officer of the Bank customarily performing functions similar to 
those performed by any of the above designated officers and also means, with respect to a 
particular corporate trust matter, any other officer to whom such matter is referred because 
of his knowledge of and familiarity with the particular subject. 

Securities means the securities defined in the recital paragraphs herein. 

Security Register means a register maintained by the Bank on behalf of the Issuer 
providing for the registration of Securities and of transfers of Securities. 

Stated Maturity means the date specified in the Ordinance as the fixed date on 
which the principal of a Security is scheduled to be due and payable. 

Section 2.02 Other Definitions. 

The terms “Bank”, “Issuer”, and “Securities” have the meanings assigned to them in the 
opening paragraph of this Agreement or in the recitals of the Issuer. 

The term “Paying Agent/Registrar” refers to the Bank in the performance of the duties and 
functions of this Agreement. 

Section 2.03 Construction of Terms. 

If appropriate in the context of this Agreement, words of the singular shall be considered 
to include the plural, words of the plural shall be considered to include the singular, and words of 
the masculine, feminine, or neuter gender shall be considered to include the other genders. 



82653384.3 -4- 

ARTICLE THREE 
PAYING AGENT 

Section 3.01 Duties of Paying Agent. 

As Paying Agent, the Bank shall, provided adequate collected funds have been provided to 
it for such purpose by or on behalf of the Issuer, pay on behalf of the Issuer the interest on each 
Security when due.  The Bank shall compute the amount of interest to be paid each Holder, and 
shall prepare and send a check in the amount by United States mail (first class postage prepaid) on 
or prior to each interest payment date, to the Holder of each Security (or Predecessor Securities) 
whose name appears in the Security Register on the Record Date.  Such checks shall be mailed in 
such manner to such Holder at the address for each such Holder appearing on the Security Register, 
or shall be transmitted to such Holder on each interest payment date by such other method 
acceptable to the Bank, requested in writing by, and at the risk and expense of the Holder. 

Section 3.02 Payment Dates. 

The Issuer hereby instructs the Bank to pay the principal and interest on the Securities at 
the dates specified in the Ordinance.  The Issuer agrees to transfer or to cause to be transferred, in 
immediately available funds, to the Bank to pay principal and/or interest, either or both, by no later 
than 4:00 p.m. on the business day immediately preceding the payment dates. 

As Paying Agent, the Bank shall, provided adequate collected funds have been provided to 
it for such purpose by or on behalf of the Issuer, pay on behalf of the Issuer the principal of and 
interest on each Security when due, by computing the amount of interest to be paid each Holder, 
preparing the checks and mailing the checks on the payment date, to the Holders of the Securities 
on the Record Date, addressed to their address appearing on the Security Register. 

ARTICLE FOUR 
REGISTRAR 

Section 4.01 Transfer and Exchange. 

The Issuer shall keep at the Bank Office a register (the Security Register) in which, subject 
to such reasonable written regulations as the Issuer may prescribe (which regulations shall be 
furnished to the Bank herewith or subsequent hereto by Issuer Order), the Issuer shall provide for 
the registration of the Securities and for transfers of Securities.  The Bank is hereby appointed 
Registrar for the purpose of registering Securities and transfers of Securities as herein provided.  
The Bank agrees to maintain the Security Register while it is Registrar. 

Every Security surrendered for transfer or exchange shall be duly endorsed or be 
accompanied by a written instrument of transfer, the signature on which has been guaranteed by 
an officer of a federal or state bank or a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, 
in form satisfactory to the Bank, duly executed by the Holder thereof, or his agent, duly authorized 
in writing. 

As a condition to effecting a re-registration, transfer or exchange of the Securities, the 
Registrar may request any supporting documentation it feels necessary to effect a re-registration, 



82653384.3 -5- 

transfer or exchange of the Securities.  To the extent possible and under reasonable circumstances, 
the Bank agrees that, in relation to an exchange or transfer of Securities, the exchange or transfer 
by the Holders thereof shall be completed and new Securities delivered to the Holder or the 
assignee of the Holder in not more than three (3) business days after the receipt of the Securities 
to be canceled and exchange or transfer and the written instrument of transfer or request for 
exchange duly executed by the Holder, or his duly authorized agent, in form and manner 
satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

Section 4.02 Certificates. 

The Issuer shall provide the Registrar with an adequate inventory of Securities certificates 
to facilitate transfers.  The Bank covenants that it will maintain the Securities certificates in 
safekeeping and will use reasonable care in maintaining such Securities certificates in safekeeping, 
which shall not be less than the level of care it maintains for debt securities of other political 
subdivisions or corporations for which it serves as registrar, or which it maintains for its own 
securities. 

Section 4.03 Form of Security Register. 

The Bank as Registrar will maintain the records of the Security Register in accordance with 
the Bank’s general practices and procedures in effect from time to time.  The Bank shall not be 
obligated to maintain such Register in any form other than those which the Bank has currently 
available and currently utilizes at the time. 

The Security Register may be maintained in written form or in any other form capable of 
being converted into written form within a reasonable time. 

Section 4.04 List of Security Holders. 

The Bank will provide the Issuer at any time requested by the Issuer, upon payment of any 
required fee, a copy of the information contained in the Security Register.  The Issuer may also 
inspect the information in the Security Register at any time the Bank is customarily open for 
business, provided that reasonable time is allowed the Bank to provide an up-to-date listing or to 
convert the information into written form. 

The Bank will not release or disclose the content of the Security Register to any person 
other than to, or at the written request of, an authorized officer or employee of the Issuer, except 
upon receipt of a subpoena, court order, or as required by law.  Upon receipt of a subpoena or court 
order the Bank will notify the Issuer so that the Issuer may contest the subpoena or court order, 
provided such subpoena, court order or lawful request does not prevent the Bank from providing 
such notice. 

Section 4.05 Return of Canceled Securities. 

The Bank will destroy all canceled Securities pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934. 



82653384.3 -6- 

Section 4.06 Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost or Stolen Securities Certificates. 

The Issuer hereby instructs the Bank to deliver and issue Securities certificates in exchange 
for or in lieu of mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Securities certificates as long as the same does 
not result in an over-issuance. 

The Bank will issue and deliver a new Security certificate in exchange for a mutilated 
Security certificate surrendered to it.  The Bank will issue a new Security certificate in lieu of a 
Security certificate for which it received written representation from the Holder that the certificate 
representing such Security is destroyed, lost, or stolen, without the surrender or production of the 
original certificate.  The Bank will pay on behalf of the Issuer the unpaid principal and premium, 
if any, of a Security at the Stated Maturity or on the Redemption Date or Acceleration Date, for 
which it receives written representation that the certificate representing such Security is destroyed, 
lost, or stolen without the surrender or production of the original certificate. 

The Bank will not issue a replacement Security certificate or pay such replacement Security 
certificate unless there is delivered to the Bank such security or indemnity as it may require (which 
may be by the Bank’s Blanket Lost Original Instrument Bond or similar certifications that may be 
required by the Bank) to save both the Bank and the Issuer harmless. 

On satisfaction of the Bank and the Issuer that a Security certificate has been mutilated, 
destroyed, lost or stolen, the certificate number on the mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Security 
certificate will be canceled with a notation that it has been mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen and 
a new Security certificate will be issued of the same series and of like tenor and principal amount 
bearing a number (according to the Security Register) not contemporaneously outstanding. 

The Bank may charge the Holder the Bank’s fees and expenses in connection with issuing 
a new Security certificate in lieu of or exchange for a mutilated, destroyed, lost, or stolen Security 
certificate. 

The Issuer hereby accepts the Bank’s insurance policy, surety, or other form of security 
from time to time maintained thereby that secures lost, stolen, or destroyed certificates that the 
Bank may arrange; and agrees that the coverage under any such form of security is acceptable to 
it and meets the Issuer’s requirements as to security or indemnity therefor.  The Bank need not 
notify the Issuer of any changes in the security or other company giving such security or the terms 
of such form of security.  At any time the Bank is customarily open for business, the applicable 
form of security then utilized for the purpose of lost, stolen, or destroyed certificates by the Bank 
shall be available for inspection by the Issuer on request.  The Issuer hereby accepts the Bank’s 
indemnity to replace the Security certificates destroyed or lost while in the possession or under the 
control of the Bank. 

Section 4.07 Transaction Information to Issuer. 

The Bank will, within a reasonable time after receipt of written request from the Issuer, 
furnish the Issuer information as to the Securities it has paid pursuant to Section 3.01 and Securities 
it has delivered upon the transfer or exchange of any Securities pursuant to Section 4.01. 



82653384.3 -7- 

ARTICLE FIVE 
THE BANK 

Section 5.01 Duties of Bank. 

The Bank undertakes to perform the duties set forth herein and in the Ordinance and agrees 
to use reasonable care in the performance thereof. 

The Bank is also authorized to transfer funds relating to the closing and initial delivery of 
the Securities in the manner disclosed in the closing memorandum as prepared by the Issuer’s 
financial advisor, bond counsel, or other agent.  The Bank may act on a facsimile or email 
transmission of the closing memorandum acknowledged by the financial advisor, bond counsel, or 
the Issuer as the final closing memorandum.  The Bank shall not be liable for any losses, costs or 
expenses arising directly or indirectly from the Bank’s reliance upon and compliance with such 
instructions. 

Section 5.02 Reliance on Documents, Etc. 

(a) The Bank may conclusively rely, as to the truth of the statements and correctness 
of the opinions expressed therein, on certificates or opinions furnished to the Bank. 

(b) The Bank shall not be liable for any error of judgment made in good faith by a 
Responsible Officer, unless it shall be proved that the Bank was negligent in ascertaining the 
pertinent facts. 

(c) No provisions of this Agreement shall require the Bank to expend or risk its own 
funds or otherwise incur any financial liability for performance of any of its duties hereunder, or 
in the exercise of any of its rights or powers, if it shall have reasonable grounds for believing that 
repayment of such funds or adequate indemnity satisfactory to it against such risks or liability is 
not assured to it. 

(d) The Bank may rely and shall be protected in acting or refraining from acting upon 
any resolution, certificate, statement, instrument, opinion, report, notice, request, direction, 
consent, order, bond, note, security, or other paper or document believed by it to be genuine and 
to have been signed or presented by the proper party or parties.  Without limiting the generality of 
the foregoing statement, the Bank need not examine the ownership of any Securities but is 
protected in acting upon receipt of Securities containing an endorsement or instruction of transfer 
or power of transfer which appears on its face to be signed by the Holder or an agent of the Holder.  
The Bank shall not be bound to make any investigation into the facts or matters stated in a 
resolution, certificate, statement, instrument, opinion, report, notice, request, direction, consent, 
order, bond, note, security or other paper or document supplied by the Issuer.  The Bank may act 
on any order, request, approval or other authority relating to the Securities which is provided by 
the Issuer through a facsimile or e-mail transmission without the necessity of obtaining an original 
or executed copy of any such authority. 

(e) The Bank may consult with counsel, and the written advice of such counsel or any 
opinion of counsel shall be full and complete authorization and protection with respect to any 
action taken, suffered or omitted by it hereunder in good faith and in reliance thereon. 



82653384.3 -8- 

(f) The Bank may exercise any of the powers hereunder and perform any duties 
hereunder either directly or by or through agents or attorneys of the Bank. 

Section 5.03 Recitals of Issuer. 

The recitals contained herein and in the Securities shall be taken as the statements of the 
Issuer, and the Bank assumes no responsibility for their correctness. 

The Bank shall in no event be liable to the Issuer, any Holder or Holders of any Security, 
or any other Person for any amount due on any Security from its own funds. 

Section 5.04 May Hold Securities. 

The Bank, in its individual or any other capacity, may become the owner or pledgee of 
Securities and may otherwise deal with the Issuer with the same rights it would have if it were not 
the Paying Agent/Registrar or any other agent, provided that such dealings do not result in a breach 
of any duties or agreements imposed by this Agreement. 

Section 5.05 Money Held by Bank. 

A paying agent account shall at all times be kept and maintained by the Bank for the receipt, 
safekeeping, and disbursement of money received from the Issuer hereunder for the payment of 
the Securities, and money deposited to the credit of such account until paid to the Holders of the 
Securities shall be continuously collateralized by securities or obligations which qualify and are 
eligible under the laws of the State of Texas to secure and be pledged as collateral for paying agent 
accounts to the extent such money is not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 

The Bank shall be under no liability for interest on any money received by it hereunder. 

Any money deposited with the Bank for the payment of the principal, premium (if any), or 
interest on any Security and remaining unclaimed for three years after final maturity of the Security 
has become due and payable will be held by the Bank and disposed of only in accordance with 
Title 6 of the Texas Property Code (Unclaimed Property). 

The Bank will comply with the reporting provisions of Chapter 74 of the Texas Property 
Code with respect to property that is presumed abandoned under Chapter 72 or Chapter 75 of the 
Texas Property Code or inactive under Chapter 73 of the Texas Property Code. 

Section 5.06 Indemnification. 

The Issuer agrees, to the extent it legally may, to indemnify the Bank (including its 
directors, officers and employees) for, and hold it harmless against, any loss, liability, or expense 
incurred without negligence or bad faith on its part arising out of or in connection with its 
acceptance or administration of its duties hereunder, including the cost and expense (including its 
counsel fees) of defending itself against any claim or liability in connection with the exercise or 
performance of any of its powers or duties under this Agreement.  The foregoing indemnities in 
this paragraph shall survive the resignation or substitution of the Bank or the termination of this 
Agreement. 



82653384.3 -9- 

Section 5.07 Interpleader. 

The Issuer and the Bank agree that the Bank may seek adjudication of any adverse claim, 
demands or controversy over its persons as well as funds on deposit, in either a Federal or State 
District Court located in the State of Texas and County or Counties where either the Bank (Texas 
offices only) or the Issuer is located, waive personal service of any process, and agree that service 
of process by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, shall constitute adequate 
service.  The Issuer and the Bank further agree that the Bank has the right to file a Bill of 
Interpleader in any court of competent jurisdiction in the State of Texas to determine the rights of 
any Person claiming interest herein. 

Section 5.08 Depository Trust Company. 

It is hereby represented and warranted that, in the event the Securities are otherwise 
qualified and accepted for “Depository Trust Company” services or equivalent depository trust 
services by other organizations, the Bank has the capability and, to the extent within its control, 
will comply with the “Operational Arrangements”, promulgated from time to time by The 
Depository Trust Company, which establishes requirements for securities to be eligible for the 
timeliness of payments and funds availability, transfer turnaround time, and notification of 
redemptions and calls. 

ARTICLE SIX 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

Section 6.01 Amendment. 

This Agreement may be amended only by an agreement in writing signed by both of the 
parties hereof. 

Section 6.02 Assignment. 

This Agreement may not be assigned by either party without the prior written consent of 
the other. 

Section 6.03 Notices. 

Any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent, waiver or other document 
provided or permitted hereby to be given or furnished to the Issuer or the Bank shall be mailed or 
delivered to the Issuer or the Bank, respectively, at the addresses shown on the signature page of 
this Agreement. 

Section 6.04 Effect of Headings. 

The Article and Section headings herein are for convenience only and shall not affect the 
construction hereof. 



82653384.3 -10- 

Section 6.05 Successors and Assigns; Merger, Conversion, Consolidation or Succession. 

All covenants and agreements herein by the Issuer shall bind its successors and assigns, 
whether so expressed or not. 

Any corporation into which the Bank may be merged or converted or with which it may be 
consolidated, or any corporation resulting from any merger, conversion, or consolidation to which 
the Bank shall be a party, or any corporation succeeding to all or substantially all of the corporate 
trust business of the Bank shall be the successor of the Bank hereunder without the execution or 
filing of any paper or any further act on the part of either of the parties hereto.  In case any Security 
shall have been registered, but not delivered, by the Bank then in office, any successor by merger, 
conversion, or consolidation to such authenticating Bank may adopt such registration and deliver 
the Security so registered with the same effect as if such successor Bank had itself registered such 
Security. 

Section 6.06 Severability. 

In case any provision herein, or application thereof,  shall be invalid, illegal, or 
unenforceable, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions or applications 
shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby. 

Section 6.07 Benefits of Agreement. 

Nothing herein, express or implied, shall give to any Person, other than the parties hereto 
and their successors hereunder, any benefit or any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim 
hereunder. 

Section 6.08 Entire Agreement. 

This Agreement and the Ordinance constitute the entire agreement between the parties 
hereto relative to the Bank acting as Paying Agent/Registrar for the Securities, and if any conflict 
exists between this Agreement and the Ordinance, the Ordinance shall govern. 

Section 6.09 Counterparts. 

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same Agreement. 

Section 6.10 Termination. 

This Agreement will terminate on the date of final payment by the Bank issuing its checks 
for the final payment of principal of, and premium, if any, and interest on the Securities. 

This Agreement may be earlier terminated upon 60 days written notice by either party; 
provided, however, that this Agreement may not be terminated (i) by the Bank until a successor 
Paying Agent/Registrar that is a national or state banking institution and a corporation or 
association organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America or of any state 
which possesses trust powers and is subject to supervision or examination by a federal or state 



82653384.3 -11- 

regulatory agency has been appointed by the Issuer and has accepted such appointment, or (ii) at 
any time during which such termination might, in the judgment of the Issuer, disrupt, delay, or 
otherwise adversely affect the payment of the principal, premium, if any, or interest on the 
Securities.  Prior to terminating this Agreement, the Issuer may reasonably require the Bank to 
show that such termination will not occur during a period described in (ii) above. 

The resigning Paying Agent/Registrar may petition any court of competent jurisdiction for 
the appointment of a successor Paying Agent/Registrar if an instrument of acceptance by a 
successor Paying Agent/Registrar has not been delivered to the resigning Paying Agent/Registrar 
within sixty (60) days after the giving of such notice of resignation. 

Upon an early termination of this Agreement, the Bank agrees to promptly transfer and 
deliver the Security Register (or a copy thereof), together with other pertinent books and records 
relating to the Securities, to the successor Paying Agent/Registrar designated and appointed by the 
Issuer. 

The provisions of Section 1.02 and of Article Five shall survive and remain in full force 
and effect following the termination of this Agreement. 

Section 6.11 Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan or Foreign 
Terrorist Organizations Prohibited (S.B. 252 85th Texas Legislature). 

The Bank represents that neither it nor any of its parent company, wholly- or majority-
owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates is a company identified on a list prepared and maintained 
by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts under Section 2252.153 or Section 2270.0201, Texas 
Government Code, and posted on any of the following pages of such officer’s internet website:  

https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/sudan-list.pdf, 
https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/iran-list.pdf, or 

https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/fto-list.pdf. 

The foregoing representation is made solely to comply with Section 2252.152, Texas 
Government Code, and to the extent such Section does not contravene applicable Texas or Federal 
law and excludes the Bank and each of its parent company, wholly- or majority-owned 
subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if any, that the United States government has affirmatively 
declared to be excluded from its federal sanctions regime relating to Sudan or Iran or any federal 
sanctions regime relating to a foreign terrorist organization.  The Bank understands “affiliate” to 
mean any entity that controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with the Bank and 
exists to make a profit. 

Section 6.12 Governing Law. 

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the 
State of Texas and the United States of America. 



 Signature Page to the Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement 
 S-1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day 
and year first above written. 

 
CITY OF PAMPA, TEXAS 
 
 
 
By:_________________________________ 
     Title:   City Manager 
     Address: 200 West Foster Avenue 
  Pampa, Texas  79066



 Signature Page to the Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement 
 S-2 

COMMUNITY NATIONAL BANK,  
as Paying Agent/Registrar 
 
 
 
 
By: _______________________________________ 
Title: _____________________________________ 
Address: 1502 Avenue M 
 Hondo, Texas 78861 

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Title:      

 



82653384.3 A-1 

Annex A 

Paying Agent/Registrar Fee Schedule 

As additional consideration for its being awarded the sale of the Securities by the 
Issuer, the Bank has offered to, and will, in fact, perform the duties described in 
this Agreement for no additional fee to the Issuer. 



82653385.3   

COMMUNITY NATIONAL BANK 
1502 Avenue M 

Hondo, Texas 78861 

January 24, 2022 

Re: City of Pampa, Texas General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2022 (the 
Obligations) 

City of Pampa, Texas 
200 West Foster Avenue 
Pampa, Texas  79066 

SAMCO Capital Markets, Inc. 
1020 NE Loop 410, Suite 640 
San Antonio, Texas  78209-1130 

Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP 
98 San Jacinto Blvd., Suite 1100 
Austin, Texas  78701 

 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We have agreed to purchase, and the City Commission of the City of Pampa, Texas (the 
Issuer) has agreed to sell to us the captioned Obligations scheduled to mature on June 1 in each of 
the years of 2023 through 2032 at the purchase price of $1,940,000 being the principal amount of 
the Obligations and no accrued interest.  Such Obligations will bear the terms, will be subject to 
redemption prior to stated maturity, and will be secured as described in the Issuer’s ordinance (the 
Ordinance) authorizing the Obligations adopted on January 24, 2022, all subject to receipt by you 
and by us of such opinions, certificates, and other documents as you or we may reasonably require 
to establish the validity and legality of the Obligations.  In addition, as a condition precedent to 
our obligation to accept delivery and to pay for the Obligations, no event shall have occurred which 
in the reasonable opinion of the undersigned would materially adversely affect the fair market 
value of the Obligations. 

We hereby represent and warrant that: 

(1) we are (i) an “accredited investor” within the meaning of Regulation D promulgated 
under the Securities Act of 1933 or (ii) a state or national bank organized under the laws of the 
United States, and we have sufficient knowledge and experience in financial and business matters, 
including purchase and ownership of tax-exempt municipal obligations, to be able to evaluate the 
economic risks and merits of the purchase of the Obligations; 

(2) we have made our own inquiry and analysis with respect to the Obligations and the 
security therefor, and other material factors affecting the security and payment of the Obligations, 
and we have not relied upon any statement by you, your officers, directors, or employees, or your 
financial consultants or legal advisors in connection with such inquiry or analysis or in connection 
with the offer and sale of the Obligations; 



82653385.3  - 2 - 

(3) we have either been furnished with or have had access to all necessary information that 
we desire in order to enable us to make an informed decision concerning the purchase of the 
Obligations, and we have had the opportunity to ask questions and receive answers from 
knowledgeable individuals concerning the purpose for which the proceeds of the Obligations will 
be utilized, and the security therefor, so that we have been able to make an informed decision to 
purchase the Obligations; 

(4) we are purchasing the Obligations for our own account, as evidence of a privately 
placed and negotiated bank loan to the Issuer, and not with a view to, and with no present intention 
of, selling, pledging, transferring, conveying, hypothecating, mortgaging, disposing, reoffering, 
distributing, or reselling the Obligations, or any part or interest thereof, except to persons who are 
able to and do confirm in writing to us and to you the representations contained in paragraphs (1) 
through (3) and this paragraph to the same extent as if such paragraphs referred to such persons; 

(5) we further acknowledge that we are responsible for consulting with our advisors 
concerning any obligations, including, but not limited to, any obligations pursuant to federal and 
state securities and income tax laws, we may have with respect to subsequent purchasers of the 
Obligations if and when any such future disposition of the Obligations may occur; 

(6) we understand that the Obligations (a) are not being registered under the Securities Act 
of 1933 and are not being registered or otherwise qualified for sale under the “Blue Sky” laws and 
regulations of any state due to exemptions from registration provided for therein, (b) will not be 
listed on any stock or other securities exchange, (c) will carry no rating from any rating service, 
and (d) will not be readily marketable; 

(7) we understand that, with respect to the Obligations, the Issuer is not required to make 
any continuing disclosure pursuant to Rule 15c2-12(b) (the Rule) of the United States Securities 
and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, because the Obligations 
are being sold pursuant to a private placement with the Purchasers (as defined in the Ordinance), 
generally in denominations of $100,000 or any integral multiple of $5,000 in excess thereof, to 
less than thirty-five sophisticated investors, and therefore the Rule is not applicable to the offering 
of the Obligations; provided, however, the City, agrees to deliver to us its audited financial 
statements within 270 days of each fiscal year end;  

(8) we hereby verify our company and our parent company, wholly- or majority-owned 
subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if any, do not boycott Israel and, to the extent this Purchase and 
Investment Letter is a contract for goods or services, will not boycott Israel during the term of this 
Purchase and Investment Letter.  The foregoing verification is made solely to comply with Section 
2271.002, Texas Government Code, and to the extent such Section does not contravene applicable 
Federal law.  As used in the foregoing verification, ‘boycott Israel’ means refusing to deal with, 
terminating business activities with, or otherwise taking any action that is intended to penalize, 
inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial relations specifically with Israel, or with a person 
or entity doing business in Israel or in an Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action 
made for ordinary business purposes.  We understand ‘affiliate’ to mean an entity that controls, is 
controlled by, or is under common control with our company and exists to make a profit; 



82653385.3  - 3 - 

(9) we represent that neither our company nor any parent company, wholly- or majority-
owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates is a company identified on a list prepared and maintained 
by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts under Section 2252.153 or Section 2270.0201, Texas 
Government Code, and posted on any of the following pages of such officer’s internet website: 

https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/sudan-list.pdf, 
https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/iran-list.pdf, or 

https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/fto-list.pdf. 
 
The foregoing representation is made solely to comply with Section 2252.152, Texas 

Government Code, and to the extent such Section does not contravene applicable Federal law and 
excludes our company and each parent company, wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, and 
other affiliates, if any, that the United States government has affirmatively declared to be excluded 
from its federal sanctions regime relating to Sudan or Iran or any federal sanctions regime relating 
to a foreign terrorist organization.  We understand “affiliate” to mean any entity that controls, is 
controlled by, or is under common control with our company and exists to make a profit; and 

(10) we understand and agree that the foregoing representations and warranties will be 
relied upon by Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP, as Bond Counsel to the Issuer, in rendering their 
opinion on the exemption of the Obligations from the registration requirements under existing 
federal and state securities laws. 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.]



 Signature Page to the Purchase and Investment Letter 
 -S-1-  

Very truly yours, 
 
COMMUNITY NATIONAL BANK 
 
By:  
 
Name:  
 
Title:  



 Signature Page to the Purchase and Investment Letter 
 -S-2- 

AGREED TO AND ACCEPTED this 24th day of January, 2022. 

CITY OF PAMPA, TEXAS 
 
 
 
By:    
Title:   Mayor 

 
 



82653397.3  -1- 

CITY OF PAMPA, TEXAS  
200 WEST FOSTER AVENUE 

PAMPA, TEXAS  79066 

January 24, 2022 

Mr. Michael Moore 
The Bank of New York Mellon Trust 
Company, N.A. 
2001 Bryan Street, 11th Floor 
Dallas, Texas  75201 
 

Mr. Ronnie Miller 
Community National Bank 
1502 Avenue M 
Hondo, Texas  78861 

Re: City of Pampa, Texas General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2022 (the 
Bonds) 

Dear Mr. Moore and Mr. Miller: 

The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Dallas, Texas, currently serves as 
the Paying Agent (the Refunded Paying Agent) for obligations designated as “City of Pampa, Texas 
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2012” currently outstanding in the amount of $2,100,000 (the 
Refunded Obligations). 

Community National Bank, Hondo, Texas, has been designated as the Paying 
Agent/Registrar (the Bank) and is the purchaser (the Purchaser) for the captioned financing. 

[The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Dallas, Texas] has been designated 
as the Escrow Agent (the Escrow Agent) for the captioned financing. 

The Refunded Obligations will be redeemed on June 1, 2022 (the Redemption Date), with 
certain proceeds of the Bonds, which are scheduled to be delivered in exchange for the purchase 
price therefor on March 9, 2022 (the Closing Date).  The issuer of the Bonds is the City of Pampa, 
Texas.  At 9:00 a.m., Central Time, on the Closing Date, the members of the City Council (the 
City Council) of the City (the Issuer) will receive or transfer (or cause to be transferred) the 
following funds: 

1. $_____ (representing an amount equal to the principal amount of the Bonds of 
$_____, plus a reoffering premium of $_____, less the Purchasers’ discount of 
$_____), and accrued interest of $_____, will be internally transferred by the 
Purchaser to the Bank for the benefit of City of Pampa, Texas General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2022, Attn: Beverly Brown, (830) 426-3066; and 

2. $_____ representing lawfully available funds of the Issuer will be deposited by the 
Issuer with the Bank by federal funds wire transfer to ABA No. 114909165, Account 
No. 00-612-2, FFC: City of Pampa, Texas General Obligation Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2022, Attn: Beverly Brown, (830) 426-3066. 

Upon receipt from the Bank on the Closing Date, the Escrow Agent agrees to hold 
$2,133,555.00 in a segregated, collateralized, trust account (the Escrow Fund).  Such amount shall 



82653397.3  -2- 

be collateralized only with, and, if invested, in whole or in part, shall be invested upon the direction 
of the City Council and only in securities or obligations specified in Section 1207.062(b)(1), as 
amended, Texas Government Code (the Escrow Securities), which may be in book-entry form; 
any uninvested funds shall be continuously collateralized with securities or obligations which 
qualify and are eligible under both the laws of the State of Texas and the laws of the United States 
of America to secure and be pledged as collateral for public funds to the extent such money is not 
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.  The principal, premium, if any, and accrued 
interest on the Refunded Obligations to the Redemption Date is $2,133,555.00.  The Issuer intends 
that this deposit shall constitute the making of firm banking and financial arrangements for the 
discharge and final payment of the Refunded Obligations as required by the provisions of the laws 
of the State of Texas.  Capitalized terms used herein and not defined shall have the meanings 
assigned in the Ordinance adopted by the City Council of the Issuer on January 24, 2022 (the 
Ordinance) which authorized the issuance of the Bonds. 

The Issuer agrees to pay the Escrow Agent a reasonable fee for its services under this 
Agreement, which fee may be fixed by a separate agreement, but the agreement herein to pay such 
reasonable fee is deemed and confessed to be full and valid consideration to the Escrow Agent for 
its services hereunder.  The Escrow Agent agrees that the fee for this Agreement shall be $500.00.  
This Agreement shall not be assignable by the parties hereto, in whole or in part, and any attempted 
assignment shall be void and of no force and effect.  The Escrow Agent hereby agrees that in no 
event shall it ever assert any claim or lien against the Escrow Fund for any fees for its services as 
Escrow Agent, or in any other capacity, or for any reimbursement for any of such expenses. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, and notwithstanding anything else herein to the contrary, the 
aggregate value of this Agreement shall not exceed the dollar limitation set forth in Section 
2271.002(a)(2) of the Texas Government Code or Section 2274.002(a)(2) of the Texas 
Government Code. 

The Escrow Agent shall act only in the capacity of an Escrow Agent and shall be 
responsible and liable solely for a faithful account of the funds and any earnings thereon.  The 
Escrow Agent assumes no liability except as expressed in this Agreement and in the observance 
of due diligence in accordance with ordinary business practices.  No provisions of this Agreement 
shall require the Escrow Agent to expend or risk its own funds or otherwise incur any financial 
liability for performance of any of its duties hereunder, or in the exercise of any of its rights or 
powers, if it shall have reasonable grounds for believing that repayment of such funds or adequate 
indemnity satisfactory to it against such risks or liability is not assured to it.  Absent its negligence 
or willful misconduct, the Escrow Agent shall not be liable for any act or omission hereunder. 

The Issuer also agrees to pay all Paying Agent fees and expenses, if any, relating to the 
Refunded Obligations until stated maturity or redemption, and the Paying Agent hereby covenants 
and agrees that it will continue to provide these services for the life of the Refunded Obligations 
with the remedy for nonpayment being solely an action by the Paying Agent against the City 
Council for amounts owing under the Paying Agent contract. 

The Issuer may terminate this Agreement with the Escrow Agent by giving the Escrow 
Agent (a) 30 days written notice of termination and (b) an executed copy of an agreement with a 
successor escrow agent (which agent is qualified under Chapter 1207, as amended, Texas 
Government Code) of the Issuer’s choosing which provides that the funds shall be transferred and 



82653397.3  -3- 

held by the successor escrow agent on terms and conditions substantially the same as herein 
provided.  In addition, upon disbursement of all of the funds this Agreement shall terminate and 
the Escrow Agent shall provide the Issuer with a final accounting of all of the funds disbursed 
from the Escrow Fund. 

The Escrow Agent may consult with legal counsel in the event of a dispute or question as 
to the Escrow Agent’s duties hereunder, and the Escrow Agent shall incur no liability and shall be 
fully protected in acting in accordance with the good faith, opinion and instruction of such counsel. 

Should the Escrow Agent become involved in litigation in any manner whatsoever on 
account of this Agreement or the funds, in the absence of negligence or bad faith on the part of the 
Escrow Agent, the Issuer hereby binds and obligates itself to pay, to the extent permitted by law, 
the Escrow Agent in addition to any charge made hereunder for acting as the Escrow Agent, 
reasonable attorney’s fees incurred by the Escrow Agent, and any other disbursements, expenses, 
losses, costs, and damages in connection with and resulting from such litigation. The Escrow 
Agent’s right to indemnification shall survive the resignation or removal of the Escrow Agent and 
the termination of this Agreement.  

The Escrow Agent represents that neither it nor any of its parent company, wholly- or 
majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates is a company identified on a list prepared and 
maintained by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts under Section 2252.153 or Section 
2270.0201, Texas Government Code, and posted on any of the following pages of such officer’s 
internet website:  

https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/sudan-list.pdf, 
https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/iran-list.pdf, or 

https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/fto-list.pdf. 

The foregoing representation is made solely to comply with Section 2252.152, Texas 
Government Code, and to the extent such Section does not contravene applicable Texas or Federal 
law and excludes the Escrow Agent and each of its parent company, wholly- or majority-owned 
subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if any, that the United States government has affirmatively 
declared to be excluded from its federal sanctions regime relating to Sudan or Iran or any federal 
sanctions regime relating to a foreign terrorist organization.  The Escrow Agent understands 
“affiliate” to mean any entity that controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with the 
Escrow Agent and exists to make a profit. 

The Escrow Agent shall be protected in acting upon any written notice, request, waiver, 
consent, certificate, receipt, authorization, power of attorney or other paper or document which the 
Escrow Agent in good faith believes to be genuine and what it purports to be. 

The Escrow Agent shall have only those duties as are specifically provided herein, which 
shall be deemed purely ministerial in nature, and shall under no circumstance be deemed a 
fiduciary for any of the parties to this Agreement.  The Escrow Agent shall neither be responsible 
for, nor chargeable with, knowledge of the terms and conditions of any other agreement, 
instrument or document between the other parties hereto, in connection herewith.  This Agreement 



82653397.3  -4- 

sets forth all matters pertinent to the escrow contemplated hereunder, and no additional obligations 
of the Escrow Agent shall be inferred from the terms of this Agreement or any other Agreement. 

You are hereby directed to disburse, transfer or retain the funds deposited pursuant to this 
Agreement in the following manner: 

1. $_____ shall be transferred on the Bond Closing Date by the Bank to the Refunded 
Paying Agent by federal funds wire transfer to The Bank of New York Mellon Trust 
Company, N.A., ABA No. 021000018, Account #: 4417058400, Attn. Mr. Michael 
Moore (214) 468-6409, for further credit to the “City of Pampa, Texas General 
Obligation Bonds, Series 2012” to (i) redeem the principal amount of the Refunded 
Obligations in the amount of $2,100,000, (ii) to pay a redemption premium of 
$0.00, (iii) to pay accrued interest on the Refunded Obligations in the amount of 
$33,555.00, and (iv) to pay fees owing to the Refunded Paying Agent, including a 
redemption notice fee of $_____, in connection with the Refunded Obligations;  

2. $_____ shall be retained by the Bank on the Closing Date for the first year’s fee as 
Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds;  

3. $_____, representing accrued interest on the Bonds shall be deposited to the Bond 
Fund in accordance with the wiring instructions provided in the Closing 
Memorandum; and 

4. $_____, representing certain costs of issuance of the Bonds, shall be wired by 
federal funds wire by the Bank on the Closing Date in accordance with the Closing 
Memorandum prepared by SAMCO Capital Markets, Inc., as Financial Advisor to 
the Issuer. 

The Escrow Agent on May 2, 2022, or as soon as possible thereafter, shall submit a written 
statement to the Issuer that accounts for all investment earnings, if any, on the amounts deposited 
in the Escrow Fund and shall thereafter transfer such investment earnings to the Bond Fund.  Any 
amount remaining in the Escrow Fund after the transfer of the investment earnings to the Bond 
Fund shall be maintained in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas and any money 
remaining unclaimed by the holders of the Refunded Obligations for a period of three (3) years 
after May 1, 2022 shall be remitted to the Issuer against a written receipt therefor, subject to the 
unclaimed property laws of the State of Texas. 

Thank you for your assistance in this matter. 

This Agreement is provided pursuant to the provisions of the Ordinance authorizing the 
issuance of the Bonds. 

 



 
Signature Page to the Escrow Deposit Letter 

S-1 
 

EXECUTED AND DELIVERED this 24th day of January, 2022. 

CITY OF PAMPA, TEXAS 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
  Mayor 



 
Signature Page to the Escrow Deposit Letter 

S-2 
 

This acknowledgment is provided for the benefit of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
his review and approval of the Bonds.  The undersigned, as paying agent under the Paying 
Agent/Registrar Agreement dated as of January 24, 2022 between the Issuer and the undersigned, 
acknowledges the (i) receipt of $_____ (representing an amount equal to the principal amount of 
the Bonds of $_____, plus a reoffering premium of $_____, less the Purchasers’ discount of 
$_____), and accrued interest of $_____, [(ii) cash contribution from the City in the amount of 
$62,150.00, ] and (iii) that it has applied such amounts in accordance with the closing instructions 
provided herein.  
 
 

COMMUNITY NATIONAL BANK 
 
 
Dated:  _______________________   By: _________________________________  
 

Name: ______________________________  
 
Title: _______________________________  

 



 
Signature Page to the Escrow Deposit Letter 

S-3 
 

This acknowledgment is provided for the benefit of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
his review and approval of the Bonds. The undersigned, as the Escrow Agent, acting through the 
authorized representative below, acknowledges receipt of this Escrow Deposit Letter and that it 
will apply such amounts in accordance with the terms provided herein. The Escrow Agent, acting 
through the authorized representative designated below, acknowledges receipt of the Order and 
the bond order authorizing the issuance of the Refunded Obligations. 
 

 
 
 
[THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST 
COMPANY, N.A.] 

 
 
Dated:  ________________________            By: _______________________________________ 
 

Name: ____________________________________ 
 
Title: _____________________________________ 
 



 
Signature Page to the Escrow Deposit Letter 

S-4 
 

This acknowledgment is provided for the benefit of the Attorney General of the State of 
Texas in his review and approval of the Bonds.  The undersigned, as paying agent for the Refunded 
Obligations, acting through the authorized representative below, acknowledges receipt of this 
Escrow Deposit Letter, the Ordinance, the Notice of Redemption or waiver thereof, and the 
ordinance authorizing the issuance of the Refunded Obligations and that it will apply such amounts 
in accordance with the terms provided herein.  The Paying Agent acknowledges that the amount 
due for any paying agent fees owed in connection with the Refunded Obligations is $300.00.  The 
Notice of Redemption has been or will be provided to the holders of the Refunded Obligations in 
the form and manner required by the provisions of the ordinance authorizing the issuance of the 
Refunded Obligations. 

 

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST 
COMPANY, N.A. 

 
 
Dated:  ________________________            By: _______________________________________ 
 

Name: ____________________________________ 
 
Title: _____________________________________ 
 

 



82653383.3  

CERTIFICATE OF CITY SECRETARY 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 
 
COUNTY OF GRAY 
 
CITY OF PAMPA 

§ 
§ 
§ 
§
§ 

 

 
THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY CERTIFIES that: 

1. On the 24th day of January, 2022, the City Commission (the Commission) of the 
City of Pampa, Texas (the City) convened in regular session at its regular meeting place in the City 
Hall of the City (the Meeting), the duly constituted members of the Commission being as follows: 

Lance DeFever Mayor 
Paul Searl Commissioner, Ward 1 
Brian Doughty Commissioner, Ward 2 
Jimmy Keough Commissioner, Ward 3 
Brian Fisher Commissioner, Ward 4 

and all of such persons were present at the Meeting, except the following:                                  , 
thus constituting a quorum.  Among other business considered at the Meeting, the attached 
ordinance (the Ordinance) entitled: 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PAMPA, 
TEXAS AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF “CITY OF PAMPA, TEXAS 
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2021”, LEVYING 
AN ANNUAL AD VALOREM TAX, WITHIN THE LIMITATIONS 
PRESCRIBED BY LAW, FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE BONDS; 
PRESCRIBING THE FORM, TERMS, CONDITIONS, AND RESOLVING 
OTHER MATTERS INCIDENT AND RELATED TO THE ISSUANCE, SALE, 
AND DELIVERY OF THE BONDS, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A 
PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT, A PURCHASE AND 
INVESTMENT LETTER, AND AN ESCROW DEPOSIT LETTER; 
COMPLYING WITH THE LETTER OF REPRESENTATIONS ON FILE WITH 
THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION 
OF ANY NECESSARY ENGAGEMENT AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY’S 
FINANCIAL ADVISOR; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

was introduced and submitted to the Commission for passage and adoption.  After presentation 
and due consideration of the Ordinance, a motion was made by Commissioner                 that the 
Ordinance be finally passed and adopted in accordance with the City’s Home Rule Charter.  The 
motion was seconded by Commissioner                 and carried by the following vote: 

             voted “For”             voted “Against”              abstained 

all as shown in the official Minutes of the Commission for the Meeting. 



82653383.3  - 2 - 

2. The attached Ordinance is a true and correct copy of the original on file in the 
official records of the City; the duly qualified and acting members of the Commission of the City 
on the date of the Meeting are those persons shown above, and, according to the records of my 
office, each member of the Commission was given actual notice of the time, place, and purpose of 
the Meeting and had actual notice that the Ordinance would be considered; and the Meeting and 
deliberation of the aforesaid public business, was open to the public and written notice of said 
meeting, including the subject of the Ordinance, was posted and given in advance thereof in 
compliance with the provisions of Chapter 551, as amended, Texas Government Code. 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.] 
 



82653383.3  S-1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have signed my name officially and affixed the seal of the 
City, this 24th day of January, 2022. 

 

__________________________________________ 
City Secretary, 
City of Pampa, Texas 

(CITY SEAL) 



82653386.3  

GENERAL CERTIFICATE 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 
 
COUNTY OF GRAY 
 
CITY OF PAMPA 

§
§
§
§
§ 

 

THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY CERTIFY that: 

1. The City Commission of the City of Pampa, Texas (the City) has authorized the 
issuance of the “CITY OF PAMPA, TEXAS GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, 
SERIES 2022”, dated March 1, 2022, in the aggregate principal amount of $_,___,___ (the 
Obligations) authorized by an ordinance passed and adopted on the 24th day of January, 2022 (the 
Ordinance). 

2. The total principal amount of outstanding indebtedness of the City, payable, in 
whole or in part, from taxes levied under and pursuant to Article XI, Section 5 of the Texas 
Constitution, including the Obligations (and excluding the Refunded Obligations), is as follows: 

Outstanding Tax Obligations* $13,170,000.00 
The Obligations _,___,___.00 
Total Indebtedness $_____.00 

*Excluding the Refunded Obligations. 
A schedule of indebtedness of the City payable, in whole or in part, from taxes (including 

the Obligations, but excluding the Refunded Obligations) is attached hereto as Exhibit A and made 
a part of this certificate for all purposes. 

3. A debt service requirement schedule for all outstanding general obligation 
indebtedness of the City, including the Obligations (excluding the Refunded Obligations), is 
attached hereto as Exhibit B and made a part of this certificate for all purposes. 

4. The City is a duly incorporated home rule city, having more than 5,000 inhabitants, 
operating and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas and the duly adopted 
Home Rule Charter of the City, which Charter has not been changed or amended since the passage 
of the ordinance authorizing the issuance of the City obligations designated as “City of Pampa, 
Texas Combination Tax and Limited Pledge Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2020”, 
dated April 1, 2020, were issued in the principal amount of $4,600,000. 

5. The members of the City Commission of the City are as follows: 

Lance DeFever Mayor 
Paul Searl Commissioner, Ward 1 
Brian Doughty Commissioner, Ward 2 
Jimmy Keough Commissioner, Ward 3 
Brian Fisher Commissioner, Ward 4 

 
6. Shane Stokes is the duly appointed, qualified, and acting City Manager of the City. 



82653386.3  - 2 - 

7. Theresa Daniels is the duly appointed, qualified, and acting Finance Director of the 
City. 

8. Barbara Stucker is the duly appointed, qualified, and acting City Secretary of the 
City. 

9. The assessed value of all taxable property (net of exemptions) in the City, as shown 
by the tax rolls for the year 2021-2022, which have been duly approved and are the latest official 
assessment of taxable property in the City, is as follows: 

TOTAL ASSESSED TAXABLE VALUES 
OF REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY 

 
$677,642,126 

  
10. All of the meetings held by the City Commission pursuant to which any 

proceedings were passed, adopted, and approved in connection with the Obligations were meetings 
open to the public for which public notice had been given, all as required by law and particularly 
Chapter 551, as amended, Texas Government Code. 

11. None of the obligations being refunded by the Obligations has ever been held in or 
purchased for the account of the special funds created and maintained for the payment and security 
of such obligations being refunded and, none of the obligations being refunded by the Obligations 
is currently owned nor has any of the same ever been purchased or held for any account or fund of 
the City. 

12. The City is not in default as to any covenant, condition, obligation, or undertaking 
contained in any ordinance or other document relating to the issuance of any obligations now 
Outstanding which are payable from and secured by ad valorem taxes, and each of the accounts 
created and established for the sole purpose of paying the principal of and interest on such 
obligations contains the amount now required to be on deposit therein. 

13. To the extent necessary, the City has or will timely notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission (the TEC) in an electronic format prescribed by the TEC, of the receipt of a complete 
disclosure of interested parties form and certification of filing from any privately held business 
entity contracting with the City pursuant to the requirements of the Texas Government Code 
Section 2252.908 and rules promulgated thereunder. 

14. Additional transcript requirements pursuant to the provisions of Section 1202.008, 
as amended, Texas Government Code, are attached hereto as Exhibit C. 

15. Capitalized terms not defined in this certificate shall have the meanings ascribed to 
them in the Ordinance. 

16. This certificate is made for the benefit of the persons involved with this transaction 
and the Attorney General of The State of Texas in connection with his examination into and the 
approval of the Obligations.  

 



 Signature Page to the General Certificate 
 S-1 

WITNESS OUR HANDS AND THE SEAL OF THE CITY OF PAMPA, TEXAS, this 
24th day of January, 2022. 

CITY OF PAMPA, TEXAS 
 
 
 
       
Mayor 
 
 
 
       
City Secretary 
 
 
 
 

(CITY SEAL) 



82653386.3  A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

CURRENTLY OUTSTANDING INDEBTEDNESS PAYABLE FROM TAXES 

 
 Description Amount 

 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2012* $0.00 

 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 7,180,000.00 

 Tax Notes, Series 2019 1,580,000.00 

  
Combination Tax and Limited Pledge Revenue Certificates of 
Obligation, Series 2020 4,410,000.00 

  
The Bonds _,___,___.00 

 
Total $_____.00 

 
*Excludes the Refunded Obligations.  



82653386.3  B-1 

EXHIBIT B 

COMBINED DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE 

 
 



82653386.3  C-1 

EXHIBIT C 

ADDITIONAL TRANSCRIPT REQUIREMENTS 

City of Pampa, Texas General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2022 

 
 
 



82653389.3  

SIGNATURE AND NO-LITIGATION CERTIFICATE 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF GRAY 

CITY OF PAMPA 

§
§
§
§
§

THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY CERTIFY that: 

1. This certificate is executed and delivered with reference to the “CITY OF PAMPA,
TEXAS GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2022”, dated March 1, 2022 
(the Bond Date), in the aggregate original principal amount of $_,___,___ (the Bonds). 

2. The Bonds have been duly and officially executed by the undersigned Mayor and
City Secretary of the City of Pampa, Texas (the City) with their manual or facsimile signatures in 
the manner appearing hereon, and the undersigned Mayor and City Secretary hereby adopt and 
ratify their respective signatures in the manner appearing on each of the Bonds in manual or 
facsimile form, as the case may be, as their true, genuine, and official signatures. 

3. On the Bond Date and on the date hereof, the undersigned were and are the duly
chosen, qualified, and acting officers indicated therein and were and are authorized to execute the 
same. 

4. The legally adopted, proper, and official corporate seal of the City is impressed,
imprinted, or lithographed on all of the Bonds and is impressed on this certificate. 

5. No litigation of any nature is now pending before any federal or state court, or
administrative body, or to our knowledge threatened, seeking to restrain or enjoin the issuance or 
delivery of the Bonds or the levy and collection of taxes to pay the principal of and interest on the 
Bonds, or in any manner questioning the proceedings and authority under which the same is made 
or affecting the validity of the Bonds thereunder; and neither the corporate existence or boundaries 
of the City nor the right to hold office of any member of the governing body of the City or any 
other elected or appointed official of the City is being contested or otherwise questioned; and no 
authority or proceedings for the issuance of the Bonds have been repealed, revoked, or rescinded. 

6. No authority or proceeding for the issuance, sale, or delivery of the Bonds, passed
and adopted by the governing body of the City, has been amended, repealed, revoked, rescinded, 
or otherwise modified since the date of passage thereof, and all such proceedings and authority 
relating to the issuance and sale of the Bonds remain in full force and effect as of the date of this 
certificate. 

Authorization of Attorney General to Date Certificate 

7. This certificate is submitted pursuant to Title 1, Chapter 53, Texas Administrative
Code.  Upon the approval of the Bonds by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, he is 
authorized to date this certificate as of the date of such approval.  If any litigation should develop, 
or if any other event should occur which should make this certificate inaccurate before the Attorney 



General’s approval of the Bonds, we will notify the Attorney General at once by both telephone 
and facsimile transmission.  With this assurance, the Attorney General is entitled to rely on the 
accuracy of this certificate at the time of approval of the Bonds unless we advise him otherwise. 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.] 

-2-82653389.3  



Signature Page to the Signature and No-Litigation Certificate 
-S-1-

EXECUTED AND DELIVERED this . 

SIGNATURE OFFICIAL TITLE 

Mayor, City of Pampa, Texas 

City Secretary, City of Pampa, Texas 

(CITY SEAL) 

Before me, on this day personally appeared the foregoing individuals, known to me to be 
the persons whose names are subscribed to the foregoing instrument and who executed this 
document in my presence. 

Given under my hand and seal of office this ____ day of January, 2022. 

____________________________________ 
Notary Public, State of Texas 

(NOTARY SEAL) 



82653392.3  

CERTIFICATE AS TO TAX EXEMPTION 

The undersigned, being the duly chosen and qualified Mayor and City Manager of City of 
Pampa, Texas (the City), hereby certify with respect to the CITY OF PAMPA, TEXAS GENERAL 
OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2022 in the aggregate principal amount of 
$_,___,___.00 (the Obligations), as follows: 

A. General. 

(1) For all purposes of this certificate, unless otherwise defined, all defined 
terms herein shall have the same meaning given to them in the ordinance authorizing the 
issuance of the Obligations (the Ordinance) and the Regulations (as defined below). 

(2) Pursuant to state law and the Ordinance authorizing the issuance of the 
Obligations, we, along with other officers of the City, are charged with the responsibility 
for issuing the Obligations. 

(3) This certificate is made pursuant to Treasury Regulations Sections 1.141 
through 1.150 (the Regulations), and sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended to the date hereof (the Code). 

(4) This certificate is based on the facts and estimates described herein in 
existence on this date, which is the date of delivery of the Obligations to and payment for 
the Obligations by the initial purchasers thereof, and, on the basis of such facts and 
estimates, the undersigned expects that the future events described herein will occur.  To 
the best knowledge and belief of the undersigned, there are no other facts, estimates, or 
circumstances which would materially change the following statements, and the 
expectations hereinafter set forth are reasonable.  The City covenants not to take any 
intentional acts or actions after the Closing Date of the Obligations to earn a Yield upon 
the investment of the proceeds materially higher than the Yield on the Obligations, except 
as provided herein, or take any other action or omit to take any action which would change 
the expectations of the City set forth herein. 

(5) Terms used and not defined herein have the same meanings given to them 
in the Ordinance of the City adopted on January 24, 2022, authorizing the issuance of the 
Obligations. 

(6) The City’s employer identification number is 75-6000633. 

B. Purpose and Size. 

(1) The Obligations are being sold to Community National Bank, Hondo, 
Texas, in a private placement (the Purchaser), and are issued pursuant to the Ordinance to 
(i) provide funds sufficient to pay the principal of, interest on, and redemption premium, if 
any, of the City’s obligations styled “City of Pampa, General Obligation Bonds, Series 
2012”, dated August 1, 2012, in the original principal amount of $2,970,000, stated to 
mature on June 1 in each of the years 2023 and 2024, June 1, 2026, June 1, 2028, June 1, 
2030, and June 1, 2032, in the aggregate principal amount of $2,100,000, to be redeemed 



82653392.3  -2- 

on June 1, 2022 (the  Refunded Obligations) and (ii) to pay the costs and expenses of issuing 
the Obligations. 

(2) The projects financed with proceeds of the Refunded Obligations (the Prior 
Projects) have always been and are owned, operated, and maintained by the City; and the 
City has not contracted with any firm, company, or other person or entity to manage, 
operate, and/or maintain the Prior Projects for and on behalf of the City.  The City does not 
expect to enter into any contract for the operation, maintenance, or management of the 
Prior Projects. 

(3) There is not, and as of the date hereof, the City does not anticipate entering 
into, any lease, contract, or other understanding or arrangement with any person other than 
a state or local governmental unit, pursuant to which the City expects that proceeds of the 
Obligations or the Prior Projects, will be used in the trade or business of such person 
(including all activities of such person who are individuals). 

(4) The City has and will, at all times prior to the last Stated Maturity of the 
Obligations, 

(a) exclusively owned, operated, and possessed all property financed or 
refinanced, acquired, constructed, or improved with Gross Proceeds of the 
Obligations and not used or permitted the use of any property financed or 
refinanced, acquired, constructed, or improved with Gross Proceeds of the 
Obligations in any activity carried on by any person or entity (other than a state or 
local government), unless such use is merely as a member of the general public, or 

(b) not directly or indirectly imposed or accepted any charge or other 
payment for use of Gross Proceeds of the Obligations or any property financed or 
refinanced, acquired, constructed, or improved with Gross Proceeds, other than a 
charge or other payment merely as a member of the general public or interest earned 
on Investments acquired with Gross Proceeds of the Obligations pending 
application for their intended purposes, either or both. 

(5) The City has not and will not use Gross Proceeds of the Obligations to make 
or finance or refinance loans to any person or entity other than a state or local government.  
For purposes of the foregoing covenant, Gross Proceeds are considered to be “loaned” to a 
person or entity if (1) property financed or refinanced, acquired, constructed, or improved 
with Gross Proceeds is sold or leased to such person or entity in a transaction which creates 
a debt for federal income tax purposes, (2) capacity in or service from such property is 
committed to such person or entity under a take-or-pay, output, or similar contract or 
arrangement, or (3) indirect benefits, or burdens and benefits of ownership, of Gross 
Proceeds or any property financed or refinanced, acquired, constructed, or improved with 
Gross Proceeds are otherwise transferred in a transaction which is the economic equivalent 
of a loan. 

(6) The City has decided to refund the Refunded Obligations in order to realize 
debt service savings. 



82653392.3  -3- 

(7) The Refunded Obligations will be redeemed or discharged at their earliest 
optional redemption date. 

(8) The amounts received from the sale of the Obligations, when added to the 
amount expected to be received from the investment thereof, do not exceed the amounts 
required to pay the principal of, interest on, and redemption premium, if any, of the 
Refunded Obligations to the date of redemption, and the costs of offering and issuing the 
Obligations. 

(9) No receipt from the sale of the Obligations or amounts received from the 
investment thereof will be used to pay the principal of or interest on any currently 
outstanding debt obligation of the City, other than the Obligations and the Refunded 
Obligations. 

C. Source and Disbursement of Funds. 

(1) The City has received as a result of the sale of the Obligations to the 
Purchaser an amount equal to the Issue Price of the Obligations of $_,___,___.00 and no 
accrued interest.  An Issue Price Certification is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

(2) The City has applied $_____ to pay costs of issuing the Obligations, 
$_____for the contingency amount, and has caused the deposit of the remaining Proceeds 
of the Obligations it received this day with the Other Paying Agent (hereinafter defined) in 
the amount of $_____. 

(3) [The City has contributed $_____ (the City Contribution), and has caused 
the deposit of such funds with the Other Paying Agent.  The City Contribution represents 
a portion of the funds currently on deposit in the interest and sinking fund related to the 
Refunded Obligations and available cash on hand, none of which represents proceeds from 
any borrowings of the City.  Such interest and sinking fund portion is a bona fide debt 
service fund established to achieve a proper matching of revenues and debt service on the 
Refunded Obligations.  ] 

D. Temporary Periods. 

The amount disbursed or set aside to pay costs of issuance of the Obligations will be so 
used within one month from the date hereof, will not be used to pay debt service on the Refunded 
Obligations, and may be invested without restriction as to Yield until expended as described 
herein. 

E. Bond Fund. 

(1) Pursuant to Section 11 of the Ordinance, the City will levy an ad valorem 
tax, within the limits prescribed by law, on all taxable property within the jurisdiction of 
the City to pay principal of and interest on the Obligation as such becomes due, and such 
tax has been pledged to the payment of the Obligations.  Amounts collected from such tax 
for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Obligations are to be deposited to 
the credit of the “CITY OF PAMPA, TEXAS GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING 



82653392.3  -4- 

BONDS, SERIES 2022 INTEREST AND SINKING FUND” (the Bond Fund).  The City 
may credit against its required deposits to the Bond Fund all amounts received from the 
investment of funds held therein.  All moneys deposited in the Bond Fund will be used 
solely to pay the principal of and interest on the Obligations as the same becomes due and 
payable. 

(2) Except for that portion of the Bond Fund, if any, consisting of deposits made 
to defease the Obligations, in whole or in part, the Bond Fund (i) was created primarily to 
achieve a proper matching of revenues and debt service with respect to the Obligations 
within each bond year, beginning on the Closing Date and ending on each anniversary of 
the Closing Date thereafter until the Obligations are no longer Outstanding and (ii) will be 
depleted at least once a year except possibly for a carry-over amount not greater than the 
larger of the preceding bond year’s income from the investment thereof or one-twelfth of 
the debt service paid during the preceding bond year on the Obligations.  All amounts 
deposited to the Bond Fund will be spent within 13 months of deposit, and all amounts 
received from investment of such fund will be deposited therein and will be expended 
within twelve months of receipt.  Any amounts held in the Bond Fund during such periods 
are expected to be invested by the City without regard as to restriction of Yield.  Any 
amounts held in the Bond Fund in excess of such amounts will be used as soon as possible 
to pay debt service on or to redeem the Obligations. 

(3) All money deposited in the Bond Fund will be used solely to pay the 
principal of, and interest on, the Obligations as the same becomes due and payable, and 
there will be no other funds that will be so used or pledged or otherwise restricted so as to 
be available with reasonable certainty to be so used. 

F. Escrow Fund. 

(1) All the Proceeds of the Obligations and City Contribution deposited this day 
to the Escrow Fund will be held under an Escrow Deposit Letter dated as of January 24, 
2022 (the Escrow Agreement) between the City and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust 
Company, N.A., Dallas, Texas, in its capacity as the paying agent/registrar for the 
Refunded Obligations (the Escrow Agent) and will be held uninvested in cash and applied 
to, and is hereby allocated to, the payment of principal of, interest on, and redemption 
premium, if any, of the Refunded Obligations on June 1, 2022. 

(2) No other tax-exempt obligations payable from the City’s taxes and other 
revenues were issued within 15 days of the sale date of the Obligations. 

G. Qualified Current Refunding. 

The Obligations are issued, in part, to refund the Refunded Obligations, and the Obligations 
will be issued, and certain proceeds thereof used, within 90 days after the Closing Date for the 
redemption of the Refunded Obligations.  In the issuance of the Obligations, the City has employed 
no “device” to obtain a material financial advantage (based on arbitrage), within the meaning of 
section 149(d)(4) of the Code, apart from savings attributable to lower interest rates.  The City has 
complied with the covenants, representations, and warranties contained in the documents executed 
in connection with the issuance of the Refunded Obligations. 



82653392.3  -5- 

H. No Transferred or Replacement Proceeds. 

(1) All amounts received from the sale of the Refunded Obligations and from 
the investment of such amounts have been expended for the purposes for which such 
obligations were issued. 

(2) The weighted average maturity of the Obligations is _____ years.  The 
remaining weighted average maturity of the Refunded Obligations is _____ years.  The 
weighted average maturity of the Obligations and the Refunded Obligations does not 
exceed 120% of the average reasonably expected economic life of the Prior Projects, 
determined pursuant to section 147(b) of the Code. 

I. Yield, Rebate and Miscellaneous. 

(1) The Yield on the Obligations is _____ percent calculated on the basis of the 
information provided by the City’s financial advisors, SAMCO Capital Markets, Inc., 
based on the initial purchase price paid by the Purchasers.  The Purchaser has represented, 
and the City has no reason to doubt the representations, that it is acquiring the Obligations 
for its own account as an investment and not in the capacity of an Underwriter (as defined 
in Regulation Section 1.148-1(f)(3)(iii)).  The City elects to apply the private placement 
rule of Regulation Section 1.148-1(f)(1)(i) to determine the Issue Price of the Obligations. 

(2) At the time the Refunded Obligations were issued, the City reasonably 
expected to spend at least 85% of the spendable proceeds of the Refunded Obligations 
within three years after the Refunded Obligations were issued.  Not more than 50% of the 
proceeds of the Refunded Obligations was invested in Nonpurpose Investments having a 
substantially guaranteed Yield for a period of four (4) years or more. 

(1) Unless the City has qualified for an exception to rebate pursuant to section 
148(f)(4) of the Code, not less frequently than each Computation Date, the City has 
covenanted in the Ordinance to calculate or cause to be calculated by a nationally 
recognized accounting, financial advisory firm or financial institution, in accordance with 
rules set forth in section 148(f) of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the 
Rebate Amount.  The City has covenanted in the Ordinance to maintain such calculations 
with the official transcript of the proceedings relating to the issuance of the Obligations 
until six years after the final Computation Date. 

(3) The City has covenanted in the Ordinance to pay to the United States the 
amount described in the preceding paragraph of this Section, at the times, in the 
installments, to the place, in the manner, and accompanied by such forms or other 
information as is or may be required by section 148(f) of the Code and the Regulations and 
rulings thereunder. 

(4) The City has covenanted to account for the Gross Proceeds of the 
Obligations separately and apart from all other funds of the City from the date hereof. 



82653392.3  -6- 

(5) The City does not expect that the proceeds of the Obligations will be used 
in a manner that would cause the Obligations to be arbitrage bonds within the meaning of 
section 148 of the Code. 

(6) The City hereby designates the Obligations, or the Obligations will be 
deemed designated, as qualified tax-exempt obligations for purposes of section 265(b) of 
the Code.  The Obligations will be deemed designated to the extent the Obligations do not 
exceed the outstanding amount of the Refunded Obligations and the Obligations.  In 
furtherance of such designation, the City represents, covenants and warrants the following:  
(1) with respect to the deemed designated portion: (i) the Obligations are a current 
refunding of the Refunded Obligations, (ii) the Refunded Obligations were each designated 
as a “qualified tax”, (iii) the weighted average maturity of the Obligations does not exceed 
the remaining weighted average maturity of the Refunded Obligations, (iv) the amount of 
the Obligations does not exceed $10,000,000.00, and (v) the maturity date of the 
Obligations is not later than 30 years after the date each of the original “qualified tax-
exempt obligation” was issued; and (2) with respect to any designated portion:  (a) during 
the calendar year in which the Obligations are issued, the City (including any subordinate 
entities) has not designated nor will designate obligations, which when aggregated with the 
Obligations, will result in more than $10,000,000.00 of “qualified tax-exempt obligations” 
being issued and designated (excluding deemed designated qualified tax-exempt 
obligations); (b) the City reasonably anticipates that the amount of tax-exempt obligations 
(excluding deemed designated qualified tax-exempt obligations) issued during the calendar 
year 2021 by the City (including any subordinate entities) will not exceed $10,000,000.00; 
and (c) the City will take such action or refrain from such action as is necessary in order 
that the Obligations will not be considered “private activity bonds” within the meaning of 
section 141 of the Code. 

J. No Abusive Arbitrage Device. 

(1) In connection with the issuance of the Obligations, the City has not 
employed any action which has the effect of overburdening the market for tax-exempt 
obligations by issuing more bonds, issuing bonds earlier, or allowing bonds to remain 
outstanding longer than is reasonably necessary to accomplish the governmental purposes 
of the Obligations. 

(2) In connection with the issuance of the Obligations, the City has not 
employed any action which has the effect of enabling the City to exploit the difference 
between tax-exempt and taxable interest rates to gain a material financial advantage. 

K. Written Procedures.  This certificate shall constitute written procedures and 
processes that require the City to insure that, after the Closing Date, the City is in compliance with 
the covenants and representations contained herein and the Code and Regulations related to the 
Obligations and for a period of three (3) years after the Obligations are paid in full will maintain 
records that show compliance with the covenants and representations contained herein and the 
Code and Regulations related to the Obligations.  The City designates the following officer(s) to 
have primary responsibility for maintaining post-issuance compliance with the covenants and 
representations contained herein and the Code and Regulations related to the Obligations: 



82653392.3  -7- 

City Manager 
 

and the following officer(s) shall maintain the records related thereto: 

City Manager 
 

Such officers may assign and delegate responsibilities to others as they deem necessary or 
appropriate. 

L. Remedial Action/Voluntary Closing Agreement Program.  If the City in complying 
with the terms and provisions the policies or guidelines set forth herein and the Code and 
Regulations related to the Obligations determines that the requirements of these policies and 
guidelines or the Code and Regulations related to the Obligations may have been violated, the City 
will make final determinations, if necessary with the assistance of its bond and tax counsel and 
financial advisors, and take appropriate actions related to such noncompliance including, if 
appropriate, any remedial action described under applicable Regulations or through the Tax 
Exempt Bonds Voluntary Closing Agreement Program. 

 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.] 
 



 Signature Page to the Certificate as to Tax Exemption 
 S-1 

Executed and delivered        . 

CITY OF PAMPA, TEXAS 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Mayor 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
City Manager 

 



82653392.3  A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

Issue Price Certificate 

See Tab No. __ 



82653391.3   

January 24, 2022 

Ms. Theresia Goetz 
Cash and Securities Management Division 
Bond Registration Division 
Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts 
Thomas Jefferson Rusk Building 
208 East 10th Street, 2nd Floor, Room 232 
Austin, Texas  78701-2407 

Re: “City of Pampa, Texas General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2022” (the Bonds) 

Dear Ms. Theresia Goetz: 

The initial Bond prepared in connection with the captioned financing will be delivered to 
you by the Attorney General when approved by him.  We request that you register the initial Bond 
on behalf of the City and, when so registered, that you mail it, along with the approving opinions 
of the Attorney General, together with the Comptroller’s registration certificates, directly to the 
offices of Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP, 98 San Jacinto Boulevard, Suite 1100, Austin, Texas 
78701, Attn: Stephanie Leibe. 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.] 



 Signature Page to the Comptroller Letter 
 S-1 

Thank you for your assistance in this matter. 

Very truly yours, 
 
CITY OF PAMPA, TEXAS 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Mayor 
 



REGISTERED REGISTERED 
NO. T-1 PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 
 $1,940,000 

United States of America 
State of Texas 

County of Gray 
CITY OF PAMPA, TEXAS 

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, 
SERIES 2022 

Dated Date: Interest Rate: Stated Maturity: CUSIP NO: 
March 1, 2022 as shown below as shown below  

REGISTERED OWNER: COMMUNITY NATIONAL BANK 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: ONE MILLION NINE HUNDRED FORTY THOUSAND AND 
NO/100 DOLLARS 

The City of Pampa, Texas (the City), a body corporate and municipal corporation in the 
County of Gray, State of Texas, for value received, acknowledges itself indebted to and hereby 
promises to pay to the order of the Registered Owner named above, or the registered assigns 
thereof, the Principal Amount specified above stated to mature on the first day of June in each of 
the years and in principal amounts and bearing interest at per annum rates in accordance with the 
following schedule: 

Years of 
Stated Maturity 

Principal 
Amounts ($) 

Interest 
Rates (%) 

2023 160,000 4.000 
2024 170,000 4.000 
2025 175,000 4.000 
2026 185,000 4.000 
2027 190,000 4.000 
2028 195,000 4.000 
2029 205,000 4.000 
2030 215,000 4.000 
2031 220,000 4.000 
2032 225,000 2.000 

   

(or so much thereof as shall not have been paid upon prior redemption) and to pay interest on the 
unpaid Principal Amount hereof from the Dated Date, or from the most recent Interest Payment 
Date (hereinafter defined) to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, to the earlier of 
redemption or Stated Maturity, while Outstanding, at the per annum rates of interest specified 
above computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months; such interest being 



82654475.3 - 2 - 

payable on June 1 and December 1 of each year (each, an Interest Payment Date), commencing 
June 1, 2022. 

Principal of this Bond shall be payable to the Registered Owner hereof (the Holder), upon 
its presentation and surrender to Stated Maturity, while Outstanding, at the corporate trust office 
of Community National Bank, Hondo, Texas (the Paying Agent/Registrar) (provided, however, 
with respect to principal payments prior to the final Stated Maturity, the Bonds need not be 
surrendered to the Paying Agent/Registrar, who will merely document this payment on an internal 
ledger maintained by the Paying Agent/Registrar).  Interest shall be payable to the Holder of this 
Bond whose name appears on the Security Register maintained by the Paying Agent/Registrar at 
the close of business on the Record Date, which is the fifteenth day of the month next preceding 
each Interest Payment Date.  All payments of principal of and interest on this Bond shall be in any 
coin or currency of the United States of America which at the time of payment is legal tender for 
the payment of public and private debts.  Interest shall be paid by the Paying Agent/Registrar by 
check sent on or prior to the appropriate date of payment by United States mail, first-class postage 
prepaid, to the Holder hereof at the address appearing in the Security Register or by such other 
method, acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar, requested by, and at the risk and expense of, 
the Holder hereof. 

This Bond is one of the series specified in its title issued in the aggregate principal amount 
of $1,940,000 (the Bonds) pursuant to an ordinance adopted by the governing body of the City (the 
Ordinance), for the purpose of providing funds for the (i) discharge and final payment of the 
Refunded Obligations and (ii) payment of the costs of issuance of the Bonds, under and in strict 
conformity with the laws of the State of Texas, including Chapter 1207, as amended, Texas 
Government Code, and the City’s Home Rule Charter. 

The Bonds of this series are payable from the proceeds of an annual ad valorem tax levied 
upon all taxable property within the City within the limitations prescribed by law. 

As specified in the Ordinance, the Bonds having Stated Maturities on and after June 1, 
2032 shall be subject to redemption prior to Stated Maturity, at the option of the City, on June 1, 
2031 or on any date thereafter, in whole or in part in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral 
multiple thereof (and if within a Stated Maturity selected at random and by lot by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar) at the redemption price of par, together with accrued interest to the date of 
redemption, and upon thirty (30) days prior written notice being given by United States mail, first-
class postage prepaid, to Holders of the Bonds to be redeemed, and subject to the terms and 
provisions relating thereto contained in the Ordinance.  If this Bond is subject to redemption prior 
to Stated Maturity and is in a denomination in excess of  $5,000, portions of the principal sum 
hereof in installments of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof may be redeemed, and, if less than 
all of the principal sum hereof is to be redeemed, there shall be issued, without charge therefor, to 
the Holder hereof, upon the surrender of this Bond to the Paying Agent/Registrar at its corporate 
trust office, a new Bond or Bonds of like Stated Maturity and interest rate in any authorized 
denominations provided in the Ordinance for the then unredeemed balance of the principal sum 
hereof. 

If this Bond (or any portion of the principal sum hereof) shall have been duly called for 
redemption and notice of such redemption has been duly given, then upon such redemption date 



82654475.3 - 3 - 

this Bond (or the portion of the principal sum hereof to be redeemed) shall become due and 
payable, and, if the money for the payment of the redemption price and the interest accrued on the 
principal amount to be redeemed to the date of redemption is held for the purpose of such payment 
by the Paying Agent/Registrar, interest shall cease to accrue and be payable hereon from and after 
the redemption date on the principal amount hereof to be redeemed.  If this Bond is called for 
redemption, in whole or in part, the City or the Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be required to 
issue, transfer, or exchange this Bond within forty-five (45) days of the date fixed for redemption; 
provided, however, such limitation of transfer shall not be applicable to an exchange by the Holder 
of the unredeemed balance hereof in the event of its redemption in part. 

Reference is hereby made to the Ordinance, a copy of which is on file in the corporate trust 
office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and to all of the provisions of which the Holder by his 
acceptance hereof hereby assents, for definitions of terms; the description of and the nature and 
extent of the tax levied for the payment of the Bonds; the terms and conditions relating to the 
transfer or exchange of the Bonds; the conditions upon which the Ordinance may be amended or 
supplemented with or without the consent of the Holders; the rights, duties, and obligations of the 
City and the Paying Agent/Registrar; the terms and provisions upon which this Bond may be 
redeemed or discharged at or prior to the Stated Maturity thereof, and deemed to be no longer 
Outstanding thereunder; and for the other terms and provisions specified in the Ordinance.  
Capitalized terms used herein have the same meanings assigned in the Ordinance. 

This Bond, subject to certain limitations contained in the Ordinance, may be transferred on 
the Security Register upon presentation and surrender at the corporate trust office of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, duly endorsed by, or accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form 
satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar duly executed by the Holder hereof, or his duly 
authorized agent, and thereupon one or more new fully registered Bonds of the same Stated 
Maturity, of authorized denominations, bearing the same rate of interest, and of the same aggregate 
principal amount will be issued to the designated transferee or transferees. 

The City and the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any agent of either, shall treat the Holder 
hereof whose name appears on the Security Register (i) on the Record Date as the owner hereof 
for purposes of receiving payment of interest hereon, (ii) on the date of surrender of this Bond as 
the owner hereof for purposes of receiving payment of principal hereof at its Stated Maturity or its 
redemption, in whole or in part, and (iii) on any other date as the owner hereof for all other 
purposes, and neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar, or any such agent of either, shall be 
affected by notice to the contrary.  In the event of a non-payment of interest on a scheduled 
payment date, and for thirty (30) days thereafter, a new record date for such interest payment (a 
Special Record Date) will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the 
payment of such interest have been received from the City.  Notice of the Special Record Date and 
of the scheduled payment date of the past due interest (the Special Payment Date - which shall be 
fifteen (15) days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five (5) business days prior 
to the Special Record Date by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, to the address of each 
Holder appearing on the Security Register at the close of business on the last business day next 
preceding the date of mailing of such notice. 

It is hereby certified, covenanted, and represented that all acts, conditions, and things 
required to be performed, exist, and be done precedent to the issuance of this Bond in order to 



82654475.3 - 4 - 

render the same a legal, valid, and binding obligation of the City have been performed, exist, and 
have been done, in regular and due time, form, and manner, as required by the laws of the State of 
Texas and the Ordinance, and that the issuance of the Bonds does not exceed any constitutional or 
statutory limitation; and that due provision has been made for the payment of the principal of, 
premium if any, and interest on the Bonds by the levy of a tax as aforestated.  In case any provision 
in this Bond or any application thereof shall be deemed invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the 
validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions and applications shall not in any 
way be affected or impaired thereby.  The terms and provisions of this Bond and the Ordinance 
shall be construed in accordance with and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas. 

 

 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.]



82654475.3 - S-1 - 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Bond to be duly executed under its 
official seal. 

CITY OF PAMPA, TEXAS 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
City Secretary 

(CITY SEAL) 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.] 



82654475.3 - S-2 - 

REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE OF 
COMPTROLLER OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER OF 
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS 

§
§
§
§ 

 
 
REGISTER NO.    

I HEREBY CERTIFY that this Bond has been examined, certified as to validity and 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and duly registered by the Comptroller of 
Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 

WITNESS my signature and seal of office this      . 

____________________________________ 
Comptroller of Public Accounts 

of the State of Texas 

(SEAL) 

 

 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto  (Print 
or typewrite name, address, and zip code of transferee): _________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
(Social Security or other identifying number):  ________________________________________ 
the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
____________________attorney to transfer the within Bond on the books kept for registration 
thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

DATED: ____________________________ 

________________________________________________ 
NOTICE:  The signature on this assignment must correspond 
with the name of the registered owner as it appears on the 
face of the within Bond in every particular. 

Signature guaranteed: 
 
 
____________________________________ 

  



82654475.3 - S-3 - 

REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR 

This Bond has been duly issued under the provisions of the within-mentioned Ordinance; 
the Bond or Bonds of the above-entitled and designated series originally delivered having been 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the Comptroller of Public 
Accounts, as shown by the records of the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

Registered this date: 
 
 
 
 ___________________________________  

COMMUNITY NATIONAL BANK, 
HONDO, TEXAS, as Paying Agent/Registrar 
 
 
By:  _______________________________  

Authorized Signature 

 
 

 

 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto  (Print 
or typewrite name, address, and zip code of transferee): _________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
(Social Security or other identifying number):  ________________________________________ 
the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
____________________attorney to transfer the within Bond on the books kept for registration 
thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

DATED: ____________________________ 

________________________________________________ 
NOTICE:  The signature on this assignment must correspond 
with the name of the registered owner as it appears on the 
face of the within Bond in every particular. 

Signature guaranteed: 
 
 
____________________________________ 

 



REGISTERED REGISTERED 
NO. _______ PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 
 $_____________ 

United States of America 
State of Texas 

County of Gray 
CITY OF PAMPA, TEXAS 

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, 
SERIES 2022 

Dated Date: Interest Rate: Stated Maturity: CUSIP NO: 
March 1, 2022    

REGISTERED OWNER: _________________________________________________________ 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: _________________________________________________________ 

The City of Pampa, Texas (the City), a body corporate and a municipal corporation in the 
County of Gray, State of Texas, for value received, acknowledges itself indebted to and hereby 
promises to pay to the order of the Registered Owner specified above, or the registered assigns 
thereof, on the Stated Maturity date specified above, the Principal Amount specified above and to 
pay interest (computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months) on the unpaid 
Principal Amount hereof from the Dated Date, or from the most recent Interest Payment Date 
(hereinafter defined) to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, to the earlier of 
redemption or Stated Maturity, while Outstanding, at the per annum rate of interest specified 
above; such interest being payable on June 1 and December 1 of each year (each, an Interest 
Payment Date), commencing June 1, 2022. 

Principal and premium, if any, on this Bond shall be payable to the Registered Owner 
hereof (the Holder), upon presentation and surrender (provided, however, with respect to principal 
payments prior to the final Stated Maturity, the Bonds need not be surrendered to the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, who will merely document this payment on an internal ledger maintained by the 
Paying Agent/Registrar) at the corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar executing the 
registration certificate appearing hereon or a successor thereof.  Interest shall be payable to the 
Holder of this Bond (or one or more Predecessor Bonds, as defined in the Ordinance hereinafter 
referenced) whose name appears on the Security Register maintained by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the Record Date, which is the fifteenth day of the month 
next preceding each Interest Payment Date.  All payments of principal of, and interest on this Bond 
shall be in any coin or currency of the United States of America which at the time of payment is 
legal tender for the payment of public and private debts.  Interest shall be paid by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar by check sent on or prior to the appropriate date of payment by United States mail, 
first-class postage prepaid, to the Holder hereof at the address appearing in the Security Register 
or by such other method, acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar, requested by the Holder hereof 
at the Holder’s risk and expense. 



82654476.3 - 2 - 

This Bond is one of the series specified in its title issued in the aggregate principal amount 
of $_________ (the Bonds) pursuant to an ordinance adopted by the governing body of the City 
(the Ordinance), for the purpose of providing funds for the (i) discharge and final payment of the 
Refunded Obligations and (ii) payment of the costs of issuance of the Bonds, under and in strict 
conformity with the laws of the State of Texas, including Chapter 1207, as amended, Texas 
Government Code, and the City’s Home Rule Charter. 

The Bonds of this series are payable from the proceeds of an annual ad valorem tax levied 
upon all taxable property within the City within the limitations prescribed by law. 

As specified in the Ordinance, the Bonds stated to mature on June 1, 20__ are referred to 
herein as the “Term Bonds”.  The Term Bonds are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption 
prior to their stated maturities from money required to be deposited in the Bond Fund for such 
purpose and shall be redeemed in part, by lot or other customary method, at the principal amount 
thereof plus accrued interest to the date of redemption in the following principal amounts on June 
1 in each of the years as set forth below: 

Term Bonds 
Stated to Mature 
on June 1, 20__  

Year 

 
Principal 
Amount ($)  

   
   
   
   
   
   

*Payable at Stated Maturity 
 

The principal amount of a Term Bond required to be redeemed pursuant to the operation 
of such mandatory redemption provisions shall be reduced, at the option of the City, by the 
principal amount of any Term Bonds of such Stated Maturity which, at least 50 days prior to the 
mandatory redemption date (1) shall have been defeased or acquired by the City and delivered to 
the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation, (2) shall have been purchased and canceled by the 
Paying Agent/Registrar at the request of the City with money in the Bond Fund, or (3) shall have 
been redeemed pursuant to the optional redemption provisions set forth below and not theretofore 
credited against a mandatory redemption requirement. 

As specified in the Ordinance, the Bonds having Stated Maturities on and after June 1, 
2032 shall be subject to redemption prior to Stated Maturity, at the option of the City, on June 1, 
2031 or on any date thereafter, in whole or in part in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral 
multiple thereof (and if within a Stated Maturity selected at random and by lot by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar) at the redemption price of par, together with accrued interest to the date of 
redemption, and upon thirty (30) days prior written notice being given by United States mail, first-



82654476.3 - 3 - 

class postage prepaid, to Holders of the Bonds to be redeemed, and subject to the terms and 
provisions relating thereto contained in the Ordinance.  If this Bond is subject to redemption prior 
to Stated Maturity and is in a denomination in excess of  $5,000, portions of the principal sum 
hereof in installments of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof may be redeemed, and, if less than 
all of the principal sum hereof is to be redeemed, there shall be issued, without charge therefor, to 
the Holder hereof, upon the surrender of this Bond to the Paying Agent/Registrar at its corporate 
trust office, a new Bond or Bonds of like Stated Maturity and interest rate in any authorized 
denominations provided in the Ordinance for the then unredeemed balance of the principal sum 
hereof. 

If this Bond (or any portion of the principal sum hereof) shall have been duly called for 
redemption and notice of such redemption has been duly given, then upon such redemption date 
this Bond (or the portion of the principal sum hereof to be redeemed) shall become due and 
payable, and, if the money for the payment of the redemption price and the interest accrued on the 
principal amount to be redeemed to the date of redemption is held for the purpose of such payment 
by the Paying Agent/Registrar, interest shall cease to accrue and be payable hereon from and after 
the redemption date on the principal amount hereof to be redeemed.  If this Bond is called for 
redemption, in whole or in part, the City or the Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be required to 
issue, transfer, or exchange this Bond within forty-five (45) days of the date fixed for redemption; 
provided, however, such limitation of transfer shall not be applicable to an exchange by the Holder 
of the unredeemed balance hereof in the event of its redemption in part. 

Reference is hereby made to the Ordinance, a copy of which is on file in the corporate trust 
office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and to all of the provisions of which the Holder by his 
acceptance hereof hereby assents, for definitions of terms; the description of and the nature and 
extent of the tax levied for the payment of the Bonds; the terms and conditions relating to the 
transfer or exchange of the Bonds; the conditions upon which the Ordinance may be amended or 
supplemented with or without the consent of the Holders; the rights, duties, and obligations of the 
City and the Paying Agent/Registrar; the terms and provisions upon which this Bond may be 
redeemed or discharged at or prior to the Stated Maturity thereof, and deemed to be no longer 
Outstanding thereunder; and for the other terms and provisions specified in the Ordinance.  
Capitalized terms used herein have the same meanings assigned in the Ordinance. 

This Bond, subject to certain limitations contained in the Ordinance, may be transferred on 
the Security Register upon presentation and surrender at the corporate trust office of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, duly endorsed by, or accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form 
satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar duly executed by the Holder hereof, or his duly 
authorized agent, and thereupon one or more new fully registered Bonds of the same Stated 
Maturity, of authorized denominations, bearing the same rate of interest, and of the same aggregate 
principal amount will be issued to the designated transferee or transferees. 

The City and the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any agent of either, shall treat the Holder 
hereof whose name appears on the Security Register (i) on the Record Date as the owner hereof 
for purposes of receiving payment of interest hereon, (ii) on the date of surrender of this Bond as 
the owner hereof for purposes of receiving payment of principal hereof at its Stated Maturity or its 
redemption, in whole or in part, and (iii) on any other date as the owner hereof for all other 
purposes, and neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar, or any such agent of either, shall be 



82654476.3 - 4 - 

affected by notice to the contrary.  In the event of a non-payment of interest on a scheduled 
payment date, and for thirty (30) days thereafter, a new record date for such interest payment (a 
Special Record Date) will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the 
payment of such interest have been received from the City.  Notice of the Special Record Date and 
of the scheduled payment date of the past due interest (the Special Payment Date - which shall be 
fifteen (15) days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five (5) business days prior 
to the Special Record Date by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, to the address of each 
Holder appearing on the Security Register at the close of business on the last business day next 
preceding the date of mailing of such notice. 

It is hereby certified, covenanted, and represented that all acts, conditions, and things 
required to be performed, exist, and be done precedent to the issuance of this Bond in order to 
render the same a legal, valid, and binding obligation of the City have been performed, exist, and 
have been done, in regular and due time, form, and manner, as required by the laws of the State of 
Texas and the Ordinance, and that the issuance of the Bonds does not exceed any constitutional or 
statutory limitation; and that due provision has been made for the payment of the principal of, 
premium if any, and interest on the Bonds by the levy of a tax as aforestated.  In case any provision 
in this Bond or any application thereof shall be deemed invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the 
validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions and applications shall not in any 
way be affected or impaired thereby.  The terms and provisions of this Bond and the Ordinance 
shall be construed in accordance with and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas. 

 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.]



82654476.3 - S-1 - 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Bond to be duly executed under its 
official seal. 

CITY OF PAMPA, TEXAS 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
City Secretary 

(CITY SEAL) 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.] 



82654476.3 - S-2 - 

REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR 

This Bond has been duly issued under the provisions of the within-mentioned Ordinance; 
the Bond or Bonds of the above-entitled and designated series originally delivered having been 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the Comptroller of Public 
Accounts, as shown by the records of the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

Registered this date: 
 
 
 
 ___________________________________  

COMMUNITY NATIONAL BANK, 
HONDO, TEXAS, as Paying Agent/Registrar 
 
 
By:  _______________________________  

Authorized Signature 

 

 

 

 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto  (Print 
or typewrite name, address, and zip code of transferee): _________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
(Social Security or other identifying number):  ________________________________________ 
the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
____________________attorney to transfer the within Bond on the books kept for registration 
thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

DATED: ____________________________ 

________________________________________________ 
NOTICE:  The signature on this assignment must correspond 
with the name of the registered owner as it appears on the 
face of the within Bond in every particular. 

Signature guaranteed: 
 
 
____________________________________ 

 



CITY OF PAMPA 
AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET 

 
 

 
  AGENDA ITEM: 3 

ITEM/PROJECT:   RESOLUTION R22-002 – EXTENDING PAMPA’S 
DECLARATION OF LOCAL DISASTER ORDER. 

MEETING DATE:  January 24, 2022 

DESCRIPTION  Consider adopting Resolution No. R22-001, a Resolution by 
the City Commission continuing Executive Order GA-34 
and extending to February 14, 2022 the City of Pampa’s 
Declaration of Local Disaster Order. 

STAFF CONTACT:  Shane Stokes, City Manager 
Bryan Guymon, City Attorney 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  N/A 
SOURCE OF FUNDS:  N/A 

START/COMPLETION 
SCHEDULE: 

 Resolution R22-002 will take effect after Commission 
adopts. 

RECOMMENDED 
ACTION: 

 Staff recommends Commission adopt Resolution No. R22- 
002, continuing Executive Order GA-34 and extending the 
City’s Declaration of Local Disaster to February 14, 2022. 

RECOMMENDED 
MOTION: 

 I make a motion to adopt Resolution No. R22-002, 
extending the City’s Declaration of Local Disaster Order 
until February 14, 2022. 

BACKGROUND/ 
ADDITIONAL 
INFORMATION: 

 Copy of Resolution No. R22-002 attached. 

 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  R22-002 
 

CITY OF PAMPA, TEXAS 
EXTENSION OF DECLARATION OF LOCAL DISASTER 

 
 WHEREAS, COVID-19 continues to spread and to pose an increasing, imminent threat of 
disaster throughout the City of Pampa and beyond; and 
 WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, the Mayor of the City of Pampa, Brad Pingel, declared 
a local state of disaster for public health emergency pursuant to Section 418.108(a) of the Texas 
Government Code, based upon the need for extraordinary measures to contain COVID-19 and to 
prevent its spread throughout the City of Pampa with such declaration being extended by 
Resolutions of the City Commission of the City of Pampa; and 
 WHEREAS, the Governor of the State of Texas has stated that while there has been a 
steady decline in hospitalizations and the rate of new COVID-19 cases due to the millions of 
Texans who have voluntarily been vaccinated, including many within the City of Pampa, the 
natural immunity of many within the community, improved medical treatments for COVID-19 
patients, abundant supplies of testing and personal protective equipment, and Texans’ adherence 
to safe practices like social distancing, hand sanitizing, and use of face coverings, there still is a 
danger related to COVID-19 and the Delta variant; and  

WHEREAS, on December 23, 2021, the Governor of the State of Texas renewed his state-
wide disaster proclamation for an additional thirty (30) days, certifying that COVID-19 poses an 
imminent threat of disaster for all counties in the State of Texas; and 
 WHEREAS, Trauma Service Area A, which includes Gray County, has seen significant 
increases in COVID-19 cases and hospitalizations over the past several months; and 

WHEREAS, on July 29, 2021, the Governor of the State of Texas issued Executive Order 
GA-38 further clarifying that no local governmental entity, including municipalities, can mandate 
anyone to wear a face covering or obtain the COVID-19 vaccine; and  
 WHEREAS, in areas where the COVID-19 transmission rate is high, individuals are 
encouraged to follow safe practices such as wearing face coverings over the nose and mouth when 
social distancing is impossible or impractical; and 
 WHEREAS, the Declaration of Local Disaster extended in the latest Resolution of the 
City Commission is set to expire at 11:59 p.m. on January 24, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Pampa, in an effort to continue to combat the spread of COVID-
19 and to continue to support the improvement of local economic conditions while still maintaining 
the ability to protect against COVID-19 and pursuant to Texas Government Code §418.108, the 
City Commission believes it to be in the best interest of the City and its citizens, in order to protect 
and preserve the public health, safety and welfare, to continue the extension of the Declaration of 
Local Disaster, and adopt the measures outlined herein; 
  
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED BY THE CITY COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF PAMPA, TEXAS, THAT: 
SECTION 1.  The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated as if fully 
set forth herein.   



SECTION 2.  All terms and conditions of Governor’s Executive Order GA-34 and Executive 
Order GA-38 are hereby adopted and the Mayoral Declaration of Local Disaster initially 
signed and executed by the Mayor on March 17, 2020 and extended by the City Commission 
is renewed and extended to the extent it does not directly conflict with this resolution.   
SECTION 3.  Pursuant to §418.108(c) of the Texas Government Code, this Resolution shall be 
given prompt and general publicity and shall be filed promptly with the City Secretary of the City 
of Pampa. 
SECTION 4. Outdoor gatherings, to the extent they do not violate Executive Order GA-34 or 
GA-38 and are otherwise in compliance with applicable law are permitted.  In areas where the 
COVID-19 transmission rate is high, the City continues to encourage individuals to follow safe 
practices such as using hand sanitizer, wearing face coverings over the nose and mouth when social 
distancing is impossible or impractical. 
SECTION 5.  This Resolution shall go into effect immediately upon approval and continue until 
11:59 p.m., Monday, February 14, 2022, unless renewed, extended, amended or cancelled by the 
Mayor or City Commission of the City of Pampa. 
SECTION 6. This resolution and order, pursuant to applicable provisions of Texas Government 
Code Chapter 418 and Texas Health and Safety Code § 122.006, authorizes the Mayor on behalf 
of the City of Pampa, to take any actions necessary to promote health and suppress the COVID-
19 virus, including enforcing applicable orders issued by the Gray County Judge, the Governor of 
the State of Texas or the Texas Department of State Health Services related to suppressing the 
COVID-19 virus, and insuring compliance for those who do not comply with the City’s rules and 
directives.  
SECTION 7. To the extent permitted by law, any local ordinance or administrative rule 
prescribing the procedures for conduct of City business or any local ordinance or administrative 
rule that would in any way prevent, hinder, or delay necessary action in coping with this disaster, 
including any local ordinance or administrative rule regarding contracting or procurement which 
would impede the City's emergency response necessary to cope with this declared disaster, are 
hereby suspended, but only for the duration of this declared local  disaster and only for that limited 
purpose. 
SECTION 8.  That to the extent this Resolution or any order or directive issued pursuant to this 
Resolution, directly conflicts with any subsequent order issued by the Governor of the State of 
Texas applicable to municipalities, the Mayor may comport, clarify and amend any such order or 
directive to be consistent therewith without further action by the City Commission. 
SECTION 9.  That the Mayor is authorized to use all available resources of the City of Pampa 
reasonably necessary to comply with this resolution. 
READ, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Commission this the 24th day of January, 2022. 
        

CITY OF PAMPA 
 
        

By:       
              Lance DeFever, Mayor 
 



ATTEST: 
 
      
Barbara Stucker, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
Bryan J. Guymon, City Attorney  
 

      
       
 



CITY OF PAMPA 
AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET 

 
 

 
  AGENDA ITEM: 4 

ITEM/PROJECT:   LIST OF DISBURSEMENTS DATED DECEMBER 2021 

MEETING DATE:  January 24, 2022 

DESCRIPTION  Consider approving the List of Disbursements dated 
December 2021 with the total disbursements being 
$1,811,007.49 and the amount after balance sheet and 
income accounts is $954,233.58. 

STAFF CONTACT:  Theresa Daniels, Finance Director 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  See amounts listed above. 

SOURCE OF FUNDS:  2021-2022 Operating Budget 

START/COMPLETION 
SCHEDULE: 

 List of Disbursements were paid in December 2021. 

RECOMMENDED 
ACTION: 

 Staff recommends Commission approve the List of 
Disbursements dated December 2021. 

RECOMMENDED 
MOTION: 

 I make a motion to approve the List of Disbursements 
dated December 2021 with the total disbursements being 
$1,811,007.49 and the amount after balance sheet and 
income accounts is $954,233.58. 

BACKGROUND/ 
ADDITIONAL 
INFORMATION: 

 Copy of Check Register Attached. 

 
 
 













































































































CITY OF PAMPA 
AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET 

 
 

 
  AGENDA ITEM: 5 

ITEM/PROJECT:   DELINQUENT TAX PROPERTY 

MEETING DATE:  January 24, 2022 

DESCRIPTION  Consider awarding bid to Sandra L. Martinez in the amount 
of $1,500.00 for delinquent tax property located at Lot 12, 
Block 2, Prairie Village Addition, commonly known as 1041 
Varnon. 

STAFF CONTACT:  Gary Turley, Public Works Director 
Cary Rushing, Building Official 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  N/A 

SOURCE OF FUNDS:  N/A 

START/COMPLETION 
SCHEDULE: 

 Bids must be approved by the City, County and Pampa 
Independent School District before Property Deed is issued 
to the winning bidder. 

RECOMMENDED 
ACTION: 

 Staff recommends Commission award bid as presented 
from Gray County Tax Office. 

RECOMMENDED 
MOTION: 

 I make a motion to award bid to Sandra L. Martinez in the 
amount of $1,500.00 for delinquent tax property located 
at Lot 12, Block 2, Prairie Village Addition, commonly 
known as 1041 Varnon. 

BACKGROUND/ 
ADDITIONAL 
INFORMATION: 

 Copy of Gray County Tax Property Bid sheet and photos of 
properties attached. 

 









CITY OF PAMPA 
AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET 

 
 

 
  AGENDA ITEM: 6 

ITEM/PROJECT:   EXECUTIVE SESSION: BOARD APPOINTMENTS 

MEETING DATE:  January 24, 2022 

DESCRIPTION  EXECUTIVE SESSION: The City Commission will convene into 
closed session in accordance with Texas Government Code, 
Subchapter D, Section 551.074 – Personnel Matters to discuss: 

 
• Board Appointments 
 

RECONVENE: The City Commission will reconvene into open 
session to act, if necessary, regarding matters discussed in 
Executive Session. 
 

STAFF CONTACT:  Commission Members 
Shane Stokes, City Manager 

   

   

   

   

   

   

 



CITY OF PAMPA 
AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET 

 
 

  AGENDA ITEM: 7 
ITEM/PROJECT:   RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS OF TIRZ 1 

MEETING DATE:  January 24, 2022 

DESCRIPTION  Consider adopting Resolution No. R22-003, a Resolution 
by the City Commission appointing the members of the 
Board of Directors of Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone 
#1 – Downtown Pampa (TIRZ 1); appointing one member 
of the Board to serve as Chairperson for the current year; 
and providing for other matters relating to such Board. 

STAFF CONTACT:  Shane Stokes, City Manager 
Bryan Guymon, City Attorney 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  N/A 

SOURCE OF FUNDS:  N/A 

START/COMPLETION 
SCHEDULE: 

 Resolution R22-003 will take effect after Commission adopts. 

RECOMMENDED 
ACTION: 

 Staff recommends Commission adopt Resolution No. R22-003, 
a Resolution of the City Commission appointing members of 
the Board of Directors of TIRZ 1 

RECOMMENDED 
MOTION: 

 I make a motion to adopt Resolution No. R22-003, a 
Resolution of the City Commission appointing the members 
of the Board of Directors of Tax Increment Reinvestment 
Zone #1 – Downtown Pampa (TIRZ 1); appointing one 
member of the Board to serve as the Chairperson for the 
current year; and providing for other matters relating to such 
Board. 

BACKGROUND/ 
ADDITIONAL 
INFORMATION: 

 Copy of Resolution No. R22-003 attached. 

 



 

Resolution No. R22-003   1 

RESOLUTION NO. R22-003 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PAMPA, 
TEXAS APPOINTING THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
TAX INCREMENT REINVESTMENT ZONE #1 – DOWNTOWN PAMPA 
(TIRZ 1); APPOINTING ONE MEMBER OF THE BOARD TO SERVE AS 
CHAIRPERSON FOR THE CURRENT YEAR; AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER 
MATTERS RELATING TO SUCH BOARD. 

 
WHEREAS, on December 13, 2021, the City Commission of the City of Pampa, Texas 

adopted Ordinance No. 1759, which created Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone #1 – Downtown 
Pampa (the “TIRZ 1” or "Zone") and established a Board of Directors for the Zone as authorized 
and in accordance with the Tax Increment Financing Act (the "Act"), Chapter 311 of the Texas 
Tax Code, Vernon's Texas Code Annotated; and 
 

WHEREAS, Section 3 of Ordinance No. 1759 creating the Zone states:  
 

Section 3. Board of Directors 
 

A board of directors (“Board”) for the Zone is hereby created. The Board shall consist of 
seven (7) members who shall serve for terms of two (2) years each. The Board shall be 
appointed as follows: 

 
3.1 Of the seven (7) Board members, Commission shall appoint five (5) 
members and contingent upon Gray County becoming a participating taxing unit, 
Gray County may, but is not required to, appoint two (2) members. The initial board 
of directors shall be appointed by resolution within sixty (60) days of the passage 
of this Ordinance. Commission shall appoint members as is necessary to fill the 
remaining positions, if Gray County does not become a participating taxing unit or 
does not appoint their allotment. All members appointed to the Board shall meet 
the eligibility requirements as set forth in Section 311.009 of the Texas Tax Code. 
Such members may be members of the City Commission. 

 
3.2 Commission shall annually designate a member of the Board to serve as 
chairperson of the Board, and the Board shall elect from its members a vice 
chairperson or other officers as it considers appropriate. 

 
WHEREAS, Section 311.009(e) of the Texas Tax Code states that “To be eligible for 

appointment to the board by the governing body of the municipality, an individual must be at least 
18 years of age and: 
 

(A) be a resident of the county in which the zone is located or a county adjacent to that 
county; or 

 
(B) own real property in the zone, whether or not the individual resides in the county in 

which the zone is located or a county adjacent to that county. 
 



 

Resolution No. R22-003   2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY 
OF PAMPA, TEXAS: 
 

1. THAT the City Commission of the City of Pampa hereby appoints the following 
individuals and accepts Gray County's appointments, all meeting the requirements of 
Section 311.009(e) of the Texas Tax Code, to the Board of Directors of the Zone for a 
two (2) year term commencing on the effective date of this resolution: 

 
Position 1 (City Appointee)   
Position 2 (City Appointee)  
Position 3 (City Appointee)  
Position 4 (City Appointee)  
Position 5 (City Appointee)  
Position 6 (Gray County Appointee)   
Position 7 (Gray County Appointee)   

 
II. 
 

______________________ is hereby designated to serve as Chairperson of the Board of 
Directors of the Zone, serving until January 24, 2023, and that each year thereafter, the City 
Commission of the City of Pampa shall appoint one voting member of the Board of Directors of 
the Zone to serve as Chairperson for a one-year term that begins on January 25. 
 

III. 
 

This resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its final date of passage, and it 
is accordingly so ordered. 
 
INTRODUCED, READ and APPROVED on this the 24th day of January, 2022. 
 
       CITY OF PAMPA, TEXAS 
 
       By: ________________________________ 
                   Lance DeFever, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
Barbara Stucker, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________________ 
Bryan J. Guymon, City Attorney 
 

 


	Agenda Cover
	1/24/22 AGENDA
	AGENDA pg. 2
	AGENDA pg. 3
	PRESENTATION- CODE ENFORCEMENT
	REPORT- PAMPA PD
	2021 Annual Police Report
	Code of Ethics
	Patrol
	Traffic
	Criminal Investigation
	Communication
	Admin/Support
	Accomplishments
	Racial Profiling
	Pursuit Report
	Use of Force Analysis
	Accident & Injury Analysis
	AGENDA ITEM 1
	January 10, 2022 Minutes
	AGENDA ITEM 2
	Ordinance No. 1762
	Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement
	Purchase Contract
	Escrow Deposit Letter
	Certificate of City Secretary
	General Certificate
	Signature and No-Litigation Certificate
	Certificate as to Tax Exemption
	Comptroller Letter
	Initial Bond
	Definitive Bonds
	AGENDA ITEM 3
	Resolution No. R22-002
	AGENDA ITEM 4
	December 2021 Check Register
	AGENDA ITEM 5
	Tax Bid
	AGENDA ITEM 6
	AGENDA ITEM 7
	Resolution No. R22-003



